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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

GOVERNOR *S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL & OTHER DRUGS

Lori A SWN«««e IW PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
Coamisstooer 603-271-9564 1-800-804-0909

Fax:603-271-6105 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.ah.gov/clcbca/b<las

October 14, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to amend an existing Sole
Source agreement with JSI Research & Training Institute d/b/a Community Health Institute,
(Vendor #161611-8001), Bow, New Hampshire for website maintenance to provide additional
support for the Alcohol and Other Drug Continuum of Care System Supports, by Increasing the
price limitation by $31,500 from $6,307,576 to $6,339,076 with no change to the contract
completion date of June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 66% Federal
Funds. 34% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on October 17, 2018, item
#6. It was subsequently amended with Governor and Council approval on December 5, 2018,
item #18, and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 24, 2020,
item #34.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Please attached fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because a previous action was approved as sole source and
MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source. The services and
contractor were requested, authorized and approved by the Governor's Commission on Alcohol
and other Drugs (Commission) on January 10, 2020 and March 5, 2020.

The purpose of this request is to provide website maintenance and content management
services for the Treatment Locator fhttDs://nhtreatment.orq/l and New Hampshire Recovery Hub
fhttD://nhrecovervhub.ora/) websites. The additional scope supports and expands existing
treatment and recovery listings, website content and educational materials.

The Contractor will host each website and ensure the websites function properly while
updating and uploading content, as requested by providers and the Department. The Contractor
will maintain each website and ensure directory listings are current by improving coordination of
edits and new provider listings as well as identifying key providers and organizations.

The Department will monitor additional contracted senrices by reviewing monthly written
progress reports that include a summary of the key work performed during the monthly period.

/

77ie Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunilies for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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The Contractor will identify foreseeable key issues and Include mitigation strategies with a
schedule of work to be completed for the upcoming reporting period.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department
is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request the Department will not be
able to maintain the websites that offer vital information in support of the statewide Substance
Use Treatment and Recovery efforts.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.243 FAIN SP020796: CFDA #93.959 FAIN TI083041;
General Funds; and Other Funds (Govemor Commission Funds).

In the event that Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



Fiscal Details

05-95-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL. OPIOID STR GRANT.(100% Federal Funds CFDA #93.788 FAIN
TI080246)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program
92052559 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program
92052559

$0 $0
$0

Subtotal $50,000 $0 $50,000

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058501

$599,676 $0 $599,676

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058502

$599,676 $0 $599,676

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058501

$324,676 $0 $324,676

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058502

$806,518 $0 $806,518

2021 .  102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058501

$75,000 $0 $75,000

2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058502

$550,000 $0 $550,000

Subtotal

$2,955,546 $0 $2,955,546
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05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL. CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds CFDA #93.959 FAIN
TI010035 and 34% General Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92057501

$300,000 $0 $300,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92057501

$300,000 $0 $300,000

2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92057501

$0 $31,500 $31,500

Subtotal $600,000 $31,500 $631,500

05-95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL, PFS2 GRANT (100% Federal Funds CFDA #93.243 FAIN SP020796
)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052407

$240,000 $0 $240,000

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052408

$75,000 $0 $75,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052407

$265,000 $0 $265,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052408

$75,000 $0 $75,000

2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052407

$150,000 $0 $150,000

2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052408

$150,000 $0 $150,000

Subtotal $955,000 $0 $955,000
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05-95-92-920510-69350000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL. MAT GRANT (100% Federal Funds CFDA #93.243 FAIN TI026741)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92056935

$108,800 $0 $108,800

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92056935

$133,800 $0 $133,800

Subtotal $242,600 $0 $242,600

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds CFDA
#93,788 FAINTI081685)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92057040 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92057040 $400,000 $0 $400,000

Subtotal $900,000 $0 $900,000

05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY OFFICE,
OFFICE OF MEDICAID AND BUSINESS POLICY MEDICAID CARE

MANAGEMENT (100% General Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
47000554

$162,562 $0 $162,562

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
47000554

$441,868 $0 $441,868

Subtotal $604,430 $0 $604,430

Grand

Total
$6,307,576 $31,500 $6,339,076
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care System Supports

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4 to the Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD)
Continuum of Care System Supports

This 4^^ Amendment to the Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Continuum of Care System Supports contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #4") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and JSI Research
& Training Institute d/b/a Community Health Institute, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a
domestic nonprofit corporation a place of business at 501 South Street, 2"^ Floor, Bow, NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on October 17, 2018, (Item #6), as amended on December 5, 2018, (Item #20), August 28, 2019, (Item
#12) and June 24, 2020, (Item #34), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$6,339,076.

2. Modify Exhibit A-Amendment #3, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection
2.6, Department Collaboration, Meetings, Websites, by adding Paragraph 2.6.2 to read:

2.6.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to update and maintain the New
Hampshire Treatment Locator website lhttDs://nhtreatment.orq) through December 31,
2020, by conducting activities that include, but are not limited to:

2.6.2.1. Hosting the website.

2.6.2.2. Ensuring the website functions properly.

2.6.2.3. Updating and uploading edits to listings within 48 hours of the requested action
from providers and as requested by the Department.

3. Modify Exhibit A-Amendment #3, Scope of Services, Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection
2.6, Department Collaboration, Meetings. Websites, by adding Paragraph 2.6.3 to read:

2.6.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to update and maintain the New
Hampshire Recovery Hub website (httD://nhrecovervhub.orai through December 31, 2020,
by conducting activities that include, but are not limited to:

2.6.3.1. Hosting the website.

2.6.3.2. Ensuring the website functions properly.

2.6.3.3. Updating and uploading content in collaboration with and as requested by the
Department.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #3, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3,
— DS

10/8/2020

JSI Research & Training Institute d/b/a
Community Health Institute Amendment #4 Contractor Initiais

RFP-2019-BDAS-03-ALCOH-01-A04 Page 1 of 5 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-5OE6-427O-BC63-02FE39F98949

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care System Supports

Subsection 3.2, Paragraph 3.2.1. to read:

3.2.1. Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Block Grant (SAPT) CFDA #93.959 is available
for SFY2019. SFY2020 and SFY 2021 FAIN # TI010035.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #3, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, by
adding Subsection 3.3. to read:

3.3. General Funds.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #3, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4,
Subsection 4.1, by adding Paragraph 4.1.1 to read:

4.1.1. Payment for activities referenced in Exhibit A-Amendment #3, Scope of Services, Section
2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.6, Department Collaboration, Meetings, Websites,
Paragraphs 2.6.2 through 2.6.3 shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for allowable activities
incurred through December 31, 2020.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #3, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4,
Subsection 4.2, Paragraph 4.2.1, Subparagraph 4.2.1.3. to read:

.  4.2.1.3. Exhibit B-20 Amendment #4 (SFY 21).

7. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #3, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 4,
Subsection 4.2, Paragraph 4.2.2, Subparagraph 4.2.2.2. to read:

4.2.2.2. Exhibits B-21, Amendment #4, Governor's Commission Support Budget, SFY 2021,
through Exhibit B-28, Amendment #4, Website Management Services Budget.

8. Modify Exhibit B-20, Amendment #3, Master AOD Continuum of Care Systems Supports Budget
by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-20, Amendment #4, Master AOD Continuum of Care
Systems Supports Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Modify Exhibit B-21, Amendment #3, Governor's Commission Support Budget by replacing in its
entirety with Exhibit B-21, Amendment #4, Governor's Commission Support Budget, which is
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

10. Modify Exhibit B-22, Amendment #3, PFS SEOW Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit
B-22, Amendment #4, PFS SEOW Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

11. Modify Exhibit B-23, Amendment #3, PFS Program Support Budget by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B-23, Amendment #4, PFS Program Support Budget, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

12. Modify Exhibit B-24, Amendment #3, PFS Media Budget by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-
24, Amendment #4, PFS Media Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

13. Modify Exhibit B-25. Amendment #3, Service to Science Budget by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B-25, Amendment #4, Service to Science Budget, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

14. Modify Exhibit B-26, Amendment #3, Prevention Awareness and Education Campaign Budget in
its entirety with Exhibit B-26, Amendment #4, Prevention Awareness and Education Campaign
Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

15. Modify Exhibit B-27, Amendment #3, Cost Effectiveness Reporting for Prevention Budget by
replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-27, Amendment #4. Cost Effectiveness Reporting for

JSI Research & Training Institute d/b/a
Community Health Institute Amendment #4 Contractor Initials

RFP-2019-BDAS-03-ALCOH-01-A04 Page 2 of 5 DateiWTW



DocuSign Envelope ID; 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Continuum of Care System Supports

Prevention Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

16. Add Exhibit 8-28, Amendment #4, Website Maintenance Services, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

WeJSI Research & Training Institute d/b/a
Community Health Institute Amendment #4 Contractor Initials

10/8/2020
RFP-2019-BDAS-03-ALCOH-01-A04 PageOofS Date



DoojSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care System Supports

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #4
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemorand Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

10/8/2020

Date

^DocuStgncd by:

—EO9D05804C83442..

Name:'<®^:i3
Title: Director

JSI Research & Training Institute d/b/a
Community Health Institute

10/8/2020

Date

— D©eu8lgn«d by:

.75EFAC2CA9e^49B
Name: Katie Robert
Title: Director

JSI Research & Training Institute d/b/a
Community Health Institute

RFP-2019-BDAS-03-ALCOH-01-A04

Amendment #4

Page 4 of 5



DocuSign Envelope ID; 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care System Supports

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

10/13/2020

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

— Oo«uSlj|n«d by:

05CA9202e32C4Ae..

Date NameiCa^^ef""®
Title.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and'Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Research & Training Instilute d/b/a
Communily Health Institute ^ Amendment #4
RFP-2019-BDAS-03-ALCOH-01-A04 Page 5 of 5
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 17,

2016. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's otilcc have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739507

Certificate Number: 0004883368

"9

.A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY HEALTH

INSTITUTE is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 12, 2016. I further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 742096

Certificate Number: 0004883373

%
%

u.

•9

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

1, Joel H. Lamstein. of the JSI Research & Training Institute, inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute, do hereby
certify that:

1. I am the duly elected President of the JSI Research & Training institute. Inc., d/b/a Community

Health Institute:

2. By Unanimous Consent In Writing of the Board of Directors in Lieu of the 2008 Annual Meeting, the

following is true copy of one resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the JSI Research &

Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute, duly dated October 24. 2008;

RESOLVED: Appointment of Katherine Robert as Director of the Community Health Institute

with the authority to enter into contracts and agreements binding the Corporation.

3. I further certify that the foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full

force and effect as of October 7. 2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the President of the JSI Research & Training Institute.

Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute this 7th day of October 2020.

JoeKH.iLamstean, President

STATE OF New Hampshire

COUNTY OF Merrimack

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 7th dav of October. 2020 bv Joel H.
Lamstein.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission Expires:
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JOHNSNO-01 DMEANEY

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (HMIDDrrVYY)

9/10/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

Anmfield. Harrison & Thomas. Inc. dba AHT Insurance
458 South Ave.
Whitman, MA 02362

cgjsiACT judyYeary

(wc.'no. Extj: (781) 447-5531 | fA')c.No):(781) 447-7230
iyeary(gahtlns.com

INSURERfSt AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC »

INSURER A: Federal Insurance Comoanv 20281

INSURED jgi dib/a Community Health Institute
JSI Research & Training Instituto, Inc.
501 South Street
2nd Floor

Bow, NH 03304

INSURERS:Executive Risk Indemnity 35181

INSURER C:

INSURER 0 ;

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED A80VE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL
INSn

8UBR

VYvn POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL G NERAL LiABILITY

56 1 X [ OCCUR 35873320 9/9/2020 9/9/2021

EACH CX';r.URRENCE j  1,000,000
CLAIMS-MA DAMAGE TO RENTED ,  1,000,000

j  10,000

PERSONAL. & ADV IN.IliRY
j  1,000,000

QE

X

VL AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 1 1 LOC
OTHER Combined Agg SlOfM

GFNFRAI AGGREGATE
s  2,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
j  Included

$

A AUl

X

OMOeiLE LIABILITY

73546634 9/9/2020 9/9/2021

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT s  1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

aIj^ only

BODILY INJURY (Per benoni s

X

X

AUTOS BODILY IN.IURY (Per acddeni) s

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acctdenii t

i

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE 79661066 9/9/2020 9/9/2021

EACHOCCURRFNCF
j  20,000,000

AGGREGATE
,  20,000,000

OED RETENTIONS
i

A WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LWBIUTY ^ ̂ ̂
ANY PROPRIETORff>ARTNER;e*eCUTIve I 1

!—1
II yea, descriM under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Nf A

71733182 9/9/2020 9/9/2021

y PER OTH-
^ STATIITF ER

E-L. EACH ACCIDENT
,  1.000,000

F.I.. TXSFASE - EA EMPLOYEE
J  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
J  1,000,000

B

A

E&O/CYBER

Directors & Officers

G46887694

61595534

11/30/2019

11/30/2019

11/30/2020

11/30/2020

GENERAL AGGREGATE

EACH OCC/GEN AGG

5,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional RemaHit Sohotfula, may b« attached if more apace la required)
It Is understood and agreed that NH Department of Health and Human Services Is Included as an additional insured as respects general liability as required by
written contract per the terms and conditions of Chubb form 80-02-2367 (5-07). All forms available for your review upon request.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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JSI Research and Training Institute Inc.

Mission Statement

JSl Research and Training Insdrute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
organizadon in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSl maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Bow, New Hampshire; as well as
seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its incepdon,JSi has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human scr\'ice fields.
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Community Health Institute

Mission Statement

The Communir)' Health Institute's mission is to support and strengthen New Hampshire's
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,
statewide. Our success translates into improved access to qualit)' health and social scr\'ices
for all New Hampshire residents.
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Consolidated Financial Statements and

Report of Independent Certified Public
Accountants

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
Affiliates

September 30, 2019
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Grant Thornton

OltANT TMOWnON LLP

75 State StreeL 13" Roor

Boston, MA 02109

D ♦1617 723 7900

r  ♦1617 723 3640

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
✓

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of JSi
Research & Training Institute, Inc., ( a nonprofit organization ), which comprise the
consoiidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2019, and the
related consoiidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management s responsibility for the financial statements
IVIanagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consoiidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consoiidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

GT.COM Grant Thornton LLP is the U.S. memher llrm of Grant Thornton Iniemational Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of its member rums
are separate legal entities ano are not a worldwide partnership.
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Grant Thornton

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
as of September 30, 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Boston. Massachusetts

August 5. 2020
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables for program work

Field advances - program

Employee advances

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and payroll withholdings

Accrued vacation

Advances for program work

Total current liabilities

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

98,563,248

45,130,388

25,188

184,277

1,665.471

145,568,572

70,862

36,945

$  145,676,379

59,600,173

1,464,584

29,722,037

90,786,794

54,585,599

303.986

54,889,585

145,676,379

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

5
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended September 30, 2019

Net assets without donor restrictions

Public support and revenue

Public support;

Global Fund

Government grants and contracts:

U.S. Government

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Other grants and contracts

Program income

Contributions

In-kind project contributions

Inherent contribution

Interest income

Total support and revenue

$  570,358.986

196,939,720

5,739,415

101.715,710

280.588

265,399

9,678,628

778,482

852,027
886,608,955

Expenses

Program services:

International programs

Domestic programs

Total program services

Supporting services

Management and general

Fundraising

Total supporting services

Other Expenses

Unallowable

Total other expenses

Total expenses

Change in net assets

Change in net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

818,431,255

27,263.690

845,694,945

36,428,678

2,806,595

39,235,273

288,094
288,094

885,218,312

1,390,643

46,777

53,452,165

$  54,889,585

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

6
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended Septemtwr 30, 2019

Program services

International

programs

Domestic

programs Total

Management

and general Fundraising 2019

Commodities S  544.559.844 $ S  544,556.844 5  1,421 $  1,471 $  544.559,736
Freight Costs 39.652.513 . 39.652,513 . . 39.652.513
Salaries 24.532,253 12,172.719 36.704,972 11.085,659 2,353,165 50,143.796
Consultants 14.119,065 5,791.456 19.910,521 2.090.816 379.622 22,380.959
Cooperating national salaries 49,761,390 244,621 50,006.011 658.261 . 50.664,272
Travel 9,468.547 1.256,109 10,724.656 940.323 22.704 11.667,683
Allowance and training 7,052.172 46,360 7,098.532 236.650 250 7.335,432
Sut>grants/Sut7contracts 63.262.033 5.191.198 88,453,231 . 22,267 88.475.498
Equipment, material and supplies 4.555.167 231.216 4.786,383 300,443 . 5,086.826
Other costs 31.154,814 2,330.011 33,484,825 20.713,133 24,233 54,222.191
Information Technology 146,193 146,193 387,941 2,883 537.017
Non-Commodity 277,348 277,348 . . 277,348
Quality Assurance 184,863 184,863 (548) - 184,315
Incidence 29.423 29.423 1.382 . 30,805
In-kind project expenses 9,678.630 9,676.630 . . 9.678.630
Depreciation

• . 13.197 . 13.197

Total expense $  818.431,255 $  27,263.690 $  845.694,945 $  36.428,678 $  2.806,595 $  884,930.216

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

7
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30. 2019

Cash flows from operating activities:

Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash

used in operating activities:

Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in receivables for program work

(Inaease) decrease in field advances - program

(Inaease) decrease in employee advances

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses

(Increase) decrease in other assets

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and payroll withholdings

Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation

Increase (decrease) in advances for program work

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of property and equipment

Inherent contribution net of cash acquired

Net cash provided by investing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

1,437,420

19,685

(26,553,124)

500,547

(79,414)

(766,262)

(22,609)

28,512,414

(210,088)

(18,507,594)

(15,669,025)

(52,342)

37,427,968

37,375,626

21,706,601

76,856,647

$  98,563,248

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

8
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (the "Organization") was incorporated in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts on April 11, 1979. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. provides education and research
primarily to non-profit health and human service agencies both in the United States and abroad. Current
funding is principally from the United States Agency for International Development and the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is the sole member of World Education, Inc. and The Partnership
for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (Affiliates). JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is accorded with
such powers as are typical for a sole member including the power of appointment and removal of the
Affiliates' board of trustees, the right to approve amendments to the bylaws and certificate of incorporation,
and the right to approve any merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of Affiliates.

World Education, Inc. was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New Jersey. Working in
partnership with community, national, and international agencies in Asia, Africa, and the United States, it
provides professional assistance in the design and implementation of non-formal adult education programs.
These programs Integrate functional education with relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth
and national development such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education,
agricultural practices, literacy, and income generation. World Education, Inc's financial data is consolidated
utilizing its fiscal year-end financial position at June 30, 2019.

The Partnership for Supply Chain Management (PfSCM) was incorporated on February 14, 2005 under the
laws of Massachusetts. PfSCM began operations on October 1, 2005 as a non-profit organization
established by JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. and Management Sciences for Health, Inc. On
October 11, 2018, Management Sciences for Health, Inc. discontinued their relationship with PfSCM and
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. became the sole member of PfSCM. PfSCM's financial data is
consolidated utilizing its fiscal year-end financial position at September 30, 2019.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates are tax exempt organizations under 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code and file separate unconsolidated tax returns.

NOTE B CHANGE IN CONTROL

As previously referred to in Note A, the Organization achieved a controlling interest in the PfSCM during
fiscal year 2019. This transaction was effected without the transfer of consideration, and as such, the net
assets of PfSCM as of October 11, 2018, totaling $2,778,482, were contributed to the Organization and
were recognized in the accompanying consolidated statement of activities as an inherent contribution.
Details of the transaction are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,206,450
Accounts receivable 2,608,518
Other assets 774,153
Liabilities (40,81o!639)

$  778,482
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019

NOTE C - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. as
well as World Education, Inc. and PfSCM, Its affiliates (collectively referred to as the Organization).
Significant intra-entity accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis
of accounting and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP). Net
assets, revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, the net" assets of the Organization and the changes thereof are classified and
reported as follows;

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets with donor restrictions ■ Contributions, grants, and income whose use by the
Organization has been limited by donors or grantors to a specific time period or purpose.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair
value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments. Total cash held in foreign accounts
was $3,483,206 at September 30, 2019.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinate fair values and all investments in debt
securities (marketable investments) are measured at fair values based on quoted market prices in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the consolidated
statement of activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the organization are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated
depreciation. Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value.of the respective assets
over their estimated useful lives (5 - 7 years) of the related assets. Property and equipment purchased with
grant funds where ownership rests with the donor is expensed at the time of purchase and is returned to
the donor or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the grant and/or donor permissions at the
conclusion of the grant period.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019

Revenue Recognition

The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements, and
grants with U.S. government agencies, primarily the United States Agency for International Development
and the United States Department of Health and Human Services, as well as other private foundations and
non-governmental organizations. Revenues are recognized when the Organization incurs qualifying
expenditures that are reimbursable under the terms of the contracts, agreements or grants, or in
accordance with the grantor's restrictions.

Unrestricted and restricted contributions are recognized as revenue at the date the pledge is made or the
gift is received, whichever is earlier.

Contributions received are recorded as revenue without donor restrictions, or with donor restrictions
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Contributions are reported as restricted
support and are then released to without donor restrictions upon expiration of the time and/or purpose of
the restriction. Restricted support, whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period, is shown as
support without restrictions.

Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in-kind project contributions at their estimated fair market
value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of activities.
Donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhance non-financial assets or require
specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased If not provided by donation.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
is not a private foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is
included, in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material changes to
the results of its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable taxing authorities,
federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and required returns in a timely manner including
as permitted allowed extensions. Following administrative practice of the taxing authorities, the tax years
2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019 remain open years subject to examination and review.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., World Education, Inc. and PfSCM file separate unconsolidated
tax returns. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and PfSCM file tax returns are based on a
September 30 year end and World Education, Inc. files its tax return based on a June 30 year end.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classification includes all expenses related to
the underlying operations by natural classification. Natural expenses attributable to more than one
functional expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocation techniques.

11
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019

Foreign Currency Transactions

Expenses of international operations are measured generally using local currency. Expenses are translated
to USD using the first in, first out method of exchange based on the bank rate assigned at transfer. As a
result, foreign currency transaction gains and losses are negligible and are included as direct program
expenses.

Receivables for Program Work

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a provision for bad debt
expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2019 was $0. Included in receivables for program work
is $38,093,960 of amounts billed and $7,036,428 of amounts unbilled.

Implementation of New Accounting Standards

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
{ASU) 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities, which revises the not-for-
profit financial reporting model. ASU 2016-14 provides for additional disclosure requirements and modifies
net asset reporting. The Organization adopted ASU 2016-14 effective in the fiscal year ended September
30, 2019. As a result of the adoption of ASU 2016-14, the Organization was required to reclassify its net
assets into two categories: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. In
addition, the guidance requires enhanced disclosures about liquidity and expenses by both their natural
and functional classification, among other changes.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The amendments in this ASU assist entities in: (1)
evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions)
within the scope of Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to
other guidance: and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional. For contributions, an entity
should follow the guidance in Subtopic 958-605, whereas for exchange transactions, an entity should follow
other guidance (for example. Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers). Management has
adopted this ASU in fiscal year 2019 and there was no impact upon adoption.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which
is a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that will supersede existing revenue recognition
guidance. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Management is currently
evaluating the effect the provisions of this ASU will have on the consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The guidance in this ASU
supersedes the leasing guidance in Topic 840, Leases. Under the new guidance, lessees are required to
recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position for all leases with terms
longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting
the pattern of expense recognition in the statement of activities. Management is currently evaluating the
impact of the pending adoption of the new standard on the financial statements.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019

NOTE D - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions. At times,
certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the.United States government; The
uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the assets of the financial
institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a financial loss to the Organization.
However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these accounts in the past and management
believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE E - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances are as follows:

Accumulated

Cost depreciation Net

Furniture and equipment $ 709,627 $  654,090 $ 55,537

Leasehold improvements 45,680 30,355 15,325

$ 755,307 $  684,445 $ 70,862

Depreciation expense was $13,197 for the year ended September 30, 2019.

NOTE F - OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following at September 30, 2019:

Deposits $ 132,401
Artwork - donated 36,945

169,346

Donated artwork is recorded at a discounted appraised value at the date of gift.

NOTE G-ACCRUED VACATION

In accordance with formal policies, vacation was accrued at September 30, 2019 as follows:

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. $ 1,464,584

13
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019

NOTE H - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2019: -

Other - non-governmental
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation $ 13,272,043
Various Donors 10,225,618

Global Fund 4,048,678
Doris Duke Charitable Foundation 2,175,699

$  29,722,038

Advances for program work represent refundable advances of cash received from non-governmental
organizations. They are reported as advances because there is typically a barrier placed by the granting
organization, as well as a right of return if the funds are not used In accordance with the terms of the
arrangement with the funding organization. Once the barriers are overcome and there is no longer a right
of return, revenue is recognized.

NOTE 1-DEBT

Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. has a revolving line of credit with a bank with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The
revolving line of credit was renewed on September 10, 2018. The loan is payable on demand. Interest is
charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line of credit
remains in effect until May 31, 2020 and annually thereafter contingent upon performance. The loan is
collateralized by a first priority interest in all the assets of World Education, Inc. No funds were borrowed
during the year and as a result, as of June 30, 2019, the outstanding balance is $0 and no interest was
incurred on this loan during the year ended June 30, 2019.

John Snow, Inc.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured revolving line of credit with John Snow, Inc. (a related party) with
a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The loan was renewed on July 1, 2019. Interest is charged by utilizing
a fluctuating rate based on the current prime rate plus 0.25%. The loan is payable on demand and, in any
event, on or prior to June 30, 2022. The loan is not collateralized. No funds were borrowed during the year
and as a result, as of June 30, 2019, the outstanding balance is $0. No interest was incurred on this loan
during the year ended June 30, 2019 (See Note Q).

NOTE J - CONTINGENCIES

In accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the Organization
are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingently liable for any disallowed costs.
Management believes that any adjustment which might result from such an audit would be immaterial.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower (with a related party) of a demand loan with no
balance due at September 30, 2019. Management believes that the co-borrower is current on the loan and
that its collateral exceeds the balance due (See Note Q).

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the United States Agency for International Development
(AID) on an annual basis. As of September 30, 2019, actual indirect cost rates have been approved by AID
for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. through December 31,2014 and World Education, Inc. through
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2019

June 30, 2018. 8ased on favorable past experience, management believes the effects of changes to the
overhead rates, if any, would not be material to the consolidated financial statements.

NOTE K NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization received $46,777 of restricted donations. The
donations are restricted for use in specific programs and/or projects that are specified by the donor.

NOTE L - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Snow, Inc.

JSI Research arid Training Institute, Inc. (an exempt organization) and John Snow, Inc. (a non-exempt
corporation) purchase consulting services from each other. Mr. Joel Lamstein is President and Director of
both organizations, and is the sole stockholder of John Snow, Inc. The two companies bill each other at the
same rates that they bill the federal and state governments.

During the year ended September 30, 2019^ John Snow, Inc. billed JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc. $28,335,233 for consulting services (technical support). This amount Is reflected under program
services - consulting totaling $15,311,055 and program services - other costs totaling $13,024,177 On the
consolidated statement of functional expenses. In addition, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
performed consulting services (technical support) for John Snow, Inc. totaling $7,658,189.

The two companies also share facilities and pool various overhead expenses. For the year ended
September 30,2019, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. incurred $23,073,571 of overhead expenses
(supporting services), of which $9,292,686 was its share of John Snow, Inc. incurred costs.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower with John Snow, Inc. on a commercial demand
loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration date of May 31, 2020, which allows for borrowings up to
$6,500,000. The loan is collateralized by a security agreement with a first position lien on all corporate
assets of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and John Snow. Inc. including assignment of promissory
notes and security documents between the two companies. Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate
based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus 2.00% payable monthly in arrears, which at September 30, 2019 was
3.826%. At September 30, 2019, a balance of $0 was outstanding on the loan.

During the year, the Company had various accounts payable due from and to John Snow, Inc. At
September 30,2019, the accounts receivable balance is $0 and the accounts payable balance is $369,577.

World Education, Inc. has an agreement with John Snow, Inc. whereby John Snow, Inc. will provide
administrative and technical support as requested from time to time by WEI, on arms-length terms as
agreed by WEI and JSI. Transactions between World Education, Inc. and John Snow, Inc. for the year
ended June 30, 2019 are summarized as follows:

Administrative and technical support $ 1,561,799

Other direct charges (including rent of $871,877) 1,375,414

$  2,937,213

The agreement is on a year-to-year basis and can be terminated by either party upon 90 days written notice
to the other.
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World Education, Inc. has an unsecured line of credit with John Snow, Inc. with a borrowing limit of up to
$1,000,000 (See Note L).

Other

The Organization has an agreement with a related company to purchase services. Transactions with this
company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows for the year ended September 30
2019;

The Manoff Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation; 40%
owned by John Snow, Inc.) $ 686,384

686,384

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has a defined contribution profit sharing/401(k) plan covering
substantially all its employees. Employee contributions are voluntary. The Company contributes an amount
equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll. In addition, employees
will receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to their retirement account. Employees
who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account will automatically be enrolled at
2% either at the time of hire, or annually in July. The Plan was effective April 11, 1979. Pension expense
was $2,458,753 for the year ended September 30, 2019.

World Education, Inc. provides retirement benefits to substantially all employees under a plan. World
Education, Inc.'s contributions of 7% of employee salaries are used to purchase individual annuities.
Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the employees. Participants of the pian are fully and
immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension costs incurred by World Education, Inc. were
$360,907 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE N - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. leases space for general offices under operating leases
expiring from 2019 through 2026. The leases contain renewal options for periods of up to five years.

During the year ended September 30, 2019, rent expense under long-term lease obligations were
$505,419. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term leases as of
September 30, 2019 are:

2020 $ 423,198
2021 434,419
2022 450,718
2023 396,612
2024 155,324
Thereafter 326,716

$  2,186.987

World Education, Inc. leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent expense for the year
ended June 30, 2019 was $877,010.
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NOTE O - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through contracts and grants with various departments
and agencies of the federal government.

The Organization received 10% or more of Its revenues and support from the following sources for the year
ended September 30, 2019;

Income received % of total income

U.S. Agency for International Development $ 165,608,943 55.9%

NOTE P - IN-KIND PROJECT CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization receives donated materials and services consisting of commodities, facilities and
equipment, and services for use in its programs from overseas collaborative private voluntary organizations
and from foundations providing grants directly to a project. Donated materials and services totaled
$11,154,095 for the year ended September 30, 2019, and are reflected as in-kind project contributions on
the consolidated statement of activities and in-kind project expenses on the consolidated statement of
functional expenses.

These contributions satisfy part of the matching requirements needed to obtain fuii funding on certain U.S.
AID grants. During the year ended September 30, 2019, the following donated materials and services
received by the Organization have been used to fulfill matching requirements on active grants:

AIDSFree - $ 6,334,951
Tanzania CHSS 301,174
Timor LesteRBHS - 329,437
Ghana HIV/AIDS 112,512
Madagascar CCH 1,204,366
Ethiopia TRANSFORM 1,396,190
Laos 13,531
Uganda 50,015
Zimbabwe 3,250
OUTCOMES 1,235,558

Mozambique 173,111

$  11,154,095

NOTE QS LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The Organization maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. Given the project-based nature of the
Organization's work, the annual budget is structured to break even and ensure that there are sufficient
inflows to cover budgeted outflows each year. Any use of the Organization's reserve, which is minimal, is
subject to management's review and approval.
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The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of September 30, 2019, reduced by amounts
not available for general use within one year due to contractual or donor-imposed restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 98,563,248
Receivables for Program Work 45,130,388
Total Financials Assets Available VVithin One Year 143,693,636
Less Donor Restricted Assets 29 722 037

Total Financial Assets Available to Management for General Expenditures
Within One Year $ 113,971,599

The Organization also has two committed lines of credit totaling $8 million, which it could draw upon in the
event of an unanticipated liquidity need.

NOTE R - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through August 5, 2020, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. The COVID-19 pandemic, whose effects first
became known in March 2020, is having a broad and negative impact on commerce and financial markets
around the world. The extent of the impact of COVIO-19 on the Organization's operational and financial
performance will depend on"certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak and
Its impact on the Organization's funding agencies, employees and vendors, all of which at present cannot
be determined. Accordingly, the extent to which COViD-19 may impact the Organization's financial position
and changes in net assets and cash flows is uncertain and the accompanying consolidated financial
statements include no adjustments relating to the effects of this pandemic.
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Amy Daniels

JSI. 501 South Street. Bow. New Hampshire (603)573-3338 adaiuels@jsi.com

Education

BOSTON COLLEGE

Master ofSocial Work

University of New Hampshire

Bachelor of Social Work

Experience

JSl, Bow, New Hampshire
Senior Consultant. 2014 - present

Associate Director, JSI Northern New Cngland. October 2019 - present. Support effective, equitable management of
the New Hampshire, Vermont, and remote offices affiliated with JSI Northern New England.-Actively participate on the
Executive Leadership Team and seek input from the Advisory Team to ensure JSI NNE produces high quality work and
highly satisfied staff.

NH Center for Excellence: Addressing Alcohol and other Drugs. Project Director. January 2016 - present. Direct
a large team and multiple projects in consultation, training , technical assistance, data analysis and evaluation for alcohol
and other drug misuse prevention, substance use disorder treatment, recovery support services, continuum of care
development, and integration of behavioral health into primary care including needs assessment, system capacity
assessment, strategic planning, SBIRT and MAT implementation, and policy recommendation. Specifically:
•  Leading a large team of consultants to achieve diverse deliverables throughout the alcohol and other drug

continuum of care

•  Providing strategic planning, consultation, technical assistance, and training
•  Leading evaluation and data services delivery
•  Developing and disseminating written guidance on best practices

MRS A Behavioral Health Center for Excellence. October 2019 - present. Providing subject matter expertise and
technical assistance to HRSA grantees throughout the United States.

NH State Youth Treatment Initiative. Providing subject matter expertise, strategic planning, grant writing, and
systems development technical assistance to NH Department of Behavioral Health initiative to plan a comprehensive
system of care for youth and young adults with substance use disorders.

NHCF Youth SBIRT Initiative. Development of written guidance, website, and supportive implementation materials.
Providing training and technical assistance on-site, through a learning collaborative, and at national conferences
throughout the US. Nationally recognized SBIRT expertise.

Fostering EfTective Integration Evaluation. Providing insight and recommendations for priorities for future funding
for primary care and behavioral health integration support for the Blue Cross Blue Shield Foundation of Massachusetts
through site visits, literature review, and comprehensive reporting.

Massachusetts Health Policy Commission. Consultation with policymakers to improve substance use disorder
prevention, treatment and recovery support services. Including capacity and barriers assessment and recommendations to
address the opioid crisis and increase access to treatment for opioid use disorder (ODD).

New Futures, Concord, NH
Policy Director. 2010-2014
Responsible for advocacy to maximize the implementation of the Affordable Care Act in New Hampshire, particularly in policy
areas impacting the potential increase of access to treatment for substance use disorders through Medicaid expansion and parity in
the federally facilitated Marketplace.
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Child and Family Services of New Hampshire, Manchester. NH
Youih and Young Adult Programs Director. 1992-2010
Progressive 18 year career at statewide, non-profit child services organization. Developed, implemented and directed
•  alcohol and other drug prevention programs;

•  comprehensive youth/young adult substance use disorder outpatient and intensive outpatient services;
•  runaway and homeless youth prevention and emergency response; and
•  homeless street outreach programs in communities throughout NH.

Including federal, state, local and charitable grant writing and contract management; development and oversight of $ 1.5 million
annual budget and management and supervision of 20+ stafT members.

Southern New Hampshire Universit)', Manchester, NH
Sociology Adjunct Professor. 2017 - 2018
Develop and delivered Bachelor's level classes including Introduction to Sociology, and the Sociology of Social Problems.

Hesser College, Concord and Manchester, NH
Psychology/Sociology Adjunct Professor. 2008-2012
Developed and delivered Bachelor's classes including Intro to Sociology. Intro to Psychology, and Intro to Human Behavior.

Direct Scr\'ices, various locations, NH. 1988-1992

License/Certifications

LicKjNSEI) Independent CiJiNiCAL Social Workkr {Lies W) NH# 1311
CER riKiEi) Prevention Specialist IC & RC

Professional Awards

Lifetime Achievement Award

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association, 2012
E.xecutive Director's Award

New Futures. 2011

\

Recent Professional Memberships

NH Alcohol and other Drug Provider's Association
Member 2005 - present. President 2009-2010. Board Member 2005-2010
American Public Health Association, member 2015 - present
New Hampshire Governor's Commission on Alcohol and other Drugs
Treatment Task Force. 2010 - present: Healthcare Task Force 2014 - present: Joint Military Task Force 2014 - present: Systems
Reform Task Force. Co-Chair 2011- 2014: Prevention Task Force. 2001-2010
New Hampshire Voices for Health
Policy Committee. 2012 - 2015: Affordable Care Act Implementation Taskforce. 2011-2014

Recent Publications

2018

LaFave. L.R., Bradley. M., Murray, A.R., Pepin. A.L.. Sprangers. K.S. & Thies K.M. (2018). Lessons learned from
implementing screening, brief intervention, and referral to treatment for youth and young adults in primary carc
settings. Intearative Pediatrics and Child Care. HH. S-13.

ADaniels 2
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Rekha Sreedhara, mph
JSI. 50! South Street. 2nd Fl. Bow. New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3342 rsreedhara@jsi.com

Education

University ofMassacmuseits, Worcester. Massachusetts
Master of Public Health. Epidemiology. 2010
Delta Omega Honor Society

College of the Holy Cross, Worcester. Massachuseits
Bachelor of Arts. Psychology and Pre-Medical Studies. 2004

Experience

JSI d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Senior Consultant. May 2010 to present

Associate Director, JSI Northern New England, October 20!9 to present
Support effective, equitable management of the New Hampshire. Vermont, and remote offices affiliated with JSI
Northern New England. Actively participate on the Executive Leadership Team and seek input from the Advisory Team
to ensure JSI NNE produces high quality work and highly satisfied staff.

New Hampshire Center for Excellence Addressing Alcohol and Other Drugs. May 2010 to present
Serving as Assistant Director of a statewide training and technical assistance center serving professionals across the
substance misuse continuum of care. Activities include leading state-level initiatives to support provider- and system-
level change: conducting multi-system assessments of the substance misuse continuum of care; developing and
maintaining a statewide online treatment directory; assisting with NI Ts strategy to initiate and expand medication
assisted treatment to include the development of Nil's MAT Best Practice Guidance Document and creating a tool to
assess MAT program development and implementation; developing and coordinating .several Communities of Practice
including related to medication assisted treatment, peer recovery support .services, and sub.stance use di.sorder treatment;
assisting with the development and implementation of NH's Plans of Safe Care; and providing consultation and technical
support to the Opioid Task Force, Treatment Task Force, and Perinatal Substance Exposure Task Force of the NH
Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs.

HRSA Behavioral Health Technical Assistance Center of Excellence, October 2019 to present
Providing subject matter expertise and technical assistance to HRSA grantees throughout the United States.

State Youth Treatment Implementation Grant, March 2018 to present
Providing subject matter expertise to the NH Department of Behavioral Health federally funded initiative to implement a
comprehensive system of care for youth and young adults with substance u.se disorders.

NH Charitable Foundation Perinatal Substance Use Disorder Proicct, January 2018 to present
Serving as lead consultant contracted to provide technical assistance related to pregnant and parenting initiatives and to
support activities of the Perinatal Substance Exposure Task Force of the NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and
other Drugs. Efforts include leading activities to comply with federal and stale requirements related to Plans of Safe
Care.

San Mateo County Needs Assessment, October 2018 to January 2019
Providing subject matter expertise to the California San Mateo County Health Care for the Homeles.s/Farmworker Health
program. Activities include survey development, development of focus group and key informant interview questions and
protocol and content development of patient educational materials.

Northern Penobscot County Integration Initiative Substance Use Services Needs Assessment and SWOT Analysis,
February 2018 to July 2018
Served as lead subject matter expert to support needs assessment and SWOT analysis focused on substance use disorder
services in Maine.

B If ̂  LU!
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State Youth Treatment Planning Grant, April 2017 to September 2017
Contracted by the NH Department of Behavioral Health to conduct an assessment to inform NH's plan to develop a
comprehensive system of care for youth and young adults.

Harbor Homes, Inc., October 2014 to September 2017
Contracted to evaluate Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA)-funded Services in
Supportive Housing Program.

Massachusetts Health Policy Commission, April 2015 to August 2015
Contracted to support the development of an opioid policy in MA to include long-term reduction of incidence of opioid
misuse and improve access to opioid use disorder treatment and recovery support services through conducting a
comprehensive literature review, key informant interviews, geo-spatial mapping, and policy review.

Prior Experience

Communlt>' Healthlink, Inc., Worcester, Massachusetts
Quality Assurance Coordinator. 02/2010 to 04/2010
Oriented and trained 20 program staff to quality assurance procedures.to meet state licensing and site visit regulations for 75
client chans in 5 residential treatment programs.

Program Coordinator. Faith House. 02/2005 to 04/2010
Oversight of programming for a residential substance use disorder treatment program for women and infants, provided
supervision for Assistant Coordinator, 6 full-time counselors, 8-10 per diem relief counselors, and 1-2 interns per year, facilitated
evidence-based groups, oversight of medications, oversight of quality assurance procedures and adherence to state licensing and
site visit regulations, managed referrals, budget, and census, and oversight of comprehensive case management services for 28
residents with substance use and mental health disorders.

Residential Counselor. Faith House. 07/2004 to 02/2005

Served as primary Residential Counselor for 6-10 clients. Provided treatment planning and reviews, weekly sessions, and
rehabilitation services. Developed and facilitated groups including Wellness, Parenting & Nurturing, and Empowerment.

Family Health Center of Worcester, Worcester, Massachusetts
Patient Accounts Clerk. 1999-2006

Managed all aspects of encounter form processing within health center. Transcribed written diagnosis into ICD-9 codes and
entered diagnosis and procedure. Communicated with providers and insurance companies, posted payments and made
adjustments according to contractual agreements. .

Professional Activities

New Futures AOD/SUD Policy Advisory Committee Member

Treatment Task Force Member. New Hampshire Governor's Commission on Alcohol and other Drugs

Opioid Task Force Member, New Hampshire Governor's Commission on Alcohol and other Drugs

Perinatal Substance Exposure Task Force Member New l lampshirc Governor's Commission on Alcohol and other Drugs

Practicum Preceptor for MPH Candidate at the Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health

B K ̂  ii
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Communit}' Health Institute/JSI

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid

from this Contract

Amy Daniels Director, NH Center for

Excellence

$112,000 30% $33,600

Rekha Sreedhara Assistant Director, NH Center
for Excellence

S 100,000 10% $10,000
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STATE OF NEW

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COVERl^OR 'S COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL A OTHER DRUGS

UH A. SbiWoctic PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
CoaniuieBtr 603-271-9S64 140^^04-0909

Fill: 603-2714105 TDD Aecas: 1-100-735-2964 www.dhbi.ah.fov/dcba/bdu

June 10, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
■to amend an existing sole source agreement with JSI Research & Training Institute ̂ d/b/a
Community Health Institute. (Vendor #161611-6001), 501 South Street, 2nd Floor Bow. NH
03304, to provide assistance and support to the New Hampshire Governor's Commission on
Alcohol and Other Drugs (Commission), and Partnership for Success programs; provide public
information relative to alcohol and other drugs, including opioids; and to provide reporting and
evaluation relative to H61626 by exercising a contract renewal option by Increasing the price
limitation by $925,000 from $5,382,576 to $6,307,576 and extending the completion date from
June 30. 2020 to June 30, 2021, effective July 1. 2020 or upon Governor and Executive Council
approval, whichever Is later. 32.43% Federal Funds and 67.57% Other (Governor Commission)
Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Council on October 17. 2018
(Item #6) and subsequently amended on December 5. 2018 (Item # 18) and August 28, 2019
(Item #12). ^ ^

Funds are available in the following accounts for state fiscal years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Fiscal Details are attached

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the previous action on the contract increased the
funding of the contract by greater than ten percent (10%). The sen/ices and contractor were
requested, authorized and approved by the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and other Drugs
(Commission) on January 10, 2020 and March 5, 2020.

The Vendor currently provides services to the Commission, the Department, and
contractors receiving Partnership for Success federal grant funding state>vide. By renewing and
amending this contract, critical work will continue to collectively improve practices and skills and
to increase the Information needed and collected to make decisions about mitigating alcohol and
other drug misuse and its social, health, and behavioral consequences such as overdoses, lost
wages and strain on public resources like criminal justice and healthcare.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

Funding in this amendment wHI be used to provide services including, txit not limited to;
•  Providing administrative support, technical assistance to the Commission as

requested and directed by the Commission;
•  Designing and publishing reports in accordance with RSA12-J:4;
•  Implementing statewide messaging to increase community knowledge of risk and

protective factors related to substance misuse and_ to increase connection to
community resources for substance misuse prevention per the direction of the
Commission;

•  Employing NH's Senrice to Science process to support and guide promising NH
prevention programs in becoming a NH-endorsed, evidence-informed programs and
to provide consultation assistance and support to prevention organizations who are
seeking to improve the quality of their programs or practices;

•  Assisting the State Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW), Governor's
Commission Data and Evaluation Task Force and reporting relative to RSA12-J:4;

•  Supporting the Department and sub-grantees funded through the Substance Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration's Partnership for Success (PFS) grant.
PFS programs are designed to address underage drinking among Individuals who are
12 through 19 years of age and prescription drug misuse and abuse among individuals
who are 12 through 24 years of age; and

•  Conducting activities related to compiling and submitting the Cost-Effectiveness and
Outcomes Report for NH Prevention programs in accordance with HB1626.

The Contractor's progress toward meeting the contract goals will be reviewed and
measured through monthly progress reports.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-l, Revisions to General
Provisions, Section 3 that allows the Department to renew the contract for up to two (2) years,
subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written
authori2atlpr> and approval from the Governor and Executive Council. The Department is in
agreement with renewing services for one (1) year of the two (2) years available at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Govemor's Commission
would be unable to fulfill reporting requirements In accordance with RSA 12-J:4 and 12-J:5, which
would put the State out of compliance with NH Laws; NH prevention programs may not have the
support and guidance needed to address substance use disorders of youth and young adults in
their communities; and NH citizens may not have access to consistent messaging around risk
and protective factors and connection to community resources for substance misuse prevention.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 32.43% Federal Funds from DHHS, Substance Abuse & Mental Health
Services Admin. Center for Substance Abuse Prevention, CFDA #93.243 FAIN SP020796: and
67.57% Other Funds from Governor Commission Funds.

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitt^

lori A. Shibinettf

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Seruictt' Miuion it to join eommuniiUs and fomitin
in providing opporiunitiet for eiliunt to achieve healih and independence.
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Fiscal Details

05-95-92.920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL, OPIOID STR GRANT (100% Federal Funds CFDA #93.788 FAIN
TI080246)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current ^

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

600731

Contracts for

Program
92052559 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program
92052559

$0 $0
$0

Subtotal $50,000 $0 $50,000

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058501

$599,676 $0 $599,676

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058502

$599,676 $0 $599,676

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058501

$324,676 $0 $324,676

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058502

$806,518 $0 $806,518

2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058501

$0 $75,000 $75,000

2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92058502

$0 $550,000 $550,000

Subtotal

$2,330,546 $625,000 $2,955,546

Page 1 of 3
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05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL. CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds CFDA ̂ 3.959 FAIN
TI010035 and 34% General Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

.500731
Contracts for

Program Services
92057501

$300,000 $0 $300,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92057501

$300,000 $0 $300,000

Subtotal $600,000 $0 $600,000

05-95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL. PFS2 GRANT (100% Federal Funds CFDA #93.243 FAIN SP020796
I

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052407

$240,000 $0 $240,000

2019 102-

500731,

Contracts for

Program Sen/ices
92052408

$75,000 $0 $75,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052407

$265,000 $0 $265,000

2020 102-

. 500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052408

$75,000 $0 $75,000

2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052407

$0 $150,000 $150,000

2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052408

$0 $150,000 $150,000

Subtotal $655,000 $300,000 $955,000

Page 2 of 3
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05-95-92-920510-69350000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL, MAT GRANT (100% Federal Funds CFDA #93.243 FAIN TI026741)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92056935

$108,800 $0 $108,800

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92056935

$133,800 $0 $133,800

Subtotal $242,600 $0 $242,600

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG
AND alcohol, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds CFDA
#93,788 FAINTI081685)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92057040 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92057040 $400,000 $0 $400,000

Subtotal $900,000 $0 $900,000

05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS; MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY OFFICE,
OFFICE OF MEDICAID AND BUSINESS POLICY MEDICAID CARE
MANAGEMENT (iOO% General Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
47000554

$162,562 $0 $162,562

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for
Program Services

47000554
$441,868 $0 $441,868

Subtotal $604,430 $0 $604,430

Grand

Total
$5,382,576 $925,000 $6,307,576

Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care System Supports

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care
System Supports Contract

This 3rd Amendment to the Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care System Supports contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and JSI Research
& Training institute d/b/a Community Health Institute, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor^), a non
profit corporation with a place of business at 501 South Street, 2nd Floor. Bow. NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 17, 2018 (Item #6), as amended and approved on Deceml>er 5, 2018 (Item #20) and August
28, 2019 (Item #12) the Clontractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$6,307,576

3. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #1 Additional Scope of Services by deleting it In its entirety.

4. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #2, Scope of Services, by replacing it in. its entirety with Exhibit A
- Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by deleting in
its entirety and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #3.

6. Add Exhibit B-20, Amendment #3, Master AOD Continuum of Care Systems Supports Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-2T, Amendment #3, Governor's Commission Support Budget, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein

6. Add Exhibit B-22, Amendment #3, PFS SEOW Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein

9. Add Exhibit B-23, Amendment #3, PFS Program Support Budget, which is attached hereto and
Incorporated by reference herein

10. Add Exhibit B-24, Amendment #3, PFS Media Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein

11. Add Exhibit B-25, Amendment #3, Service to Science Budget, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

12. Add Exhibit B-26, Amendment #3, Prevention Awareness and Education Campaign Budget, which

i  . ' ■

JSI Research & Training instjiute d/b/a Amendmertt #3 Contractor Initials
Community Health Institute
RFP.2019-BDAS-03-ALCOH-A03 Page 1 of 4 Date 6-10-20
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care System Supports

is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit B'27, Amendment #3, Cost Effectiveness Reporting for Prevention Budget, which is
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

JSI Research & Training insUlute d/b/a AmendmenI #3 Contraclor Inilials
Community Heailh Institute
RFP-2019-BDAS^)3-ALCOH-A03 Pag02of4 pate 6.10.20
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New Hampshiie Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care System Supports

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #3
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective July 1.2020 upon the date of Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Oepapment of Health and Human Services

(o
Date

6.10.20

Name;

Title:

JS) Research & Training Institute d/b/a
Community Health Institute

Date Name:

Director

Katherine Robert

JSi RetMrcn & Tr«lnlr>g (nsUtuts (trb/a

Community Health Institute Amendment #3

RFP.2019-BOAS-03-ALCOH.A03 Page 3 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care System Supports

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

06/11/20 Pu
Date Name;

Ti(l0; Catherine Pinos, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved-by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting) ,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Resesrch & Training institute d/b/a

Community Health Instilule Amendment #3

RFP-2019-BDAS-03-ALCOH-A03 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care System Supports

Exhibit A ~ Amendment

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to AM Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that.,to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor
as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. Cost-Effectiveness and Outcomes Report for Prevention Programs

2.1.1. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Services (Bureau) to create and submit an annual Cost-Effectiveness and
Outcomes report for NH substance misuse prevention programs in
accordance with New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 12-
J;5. Chapter 302 NH Laws of 2018 (HB1626):
httD://www.aencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/l/12-J/12-J-5.htm.

2.1.2. Report on Cost-Effectiveness and Outcomes of Programs'Required.

2.1.3. The Contractor shall ensure the report utilizes a research-based
framework to conduct the cost-effectiveness analysis. The framework and
all data analytics must be determined in consultation with and be
approved by the Bureau. For this report:

2.1.3.1. "Evidence of effectiveness" means documented results of

evaluation assessing the effect of the program on the intended
outcome for program participants, or program beneficiaries in the
case of prevention programs. This may include results of program
evaluation conducted in New Hampshire or an evidence rating
developed by matching the program to available research using
one or more nationally recognized clearinghouses or database
on evidence based practices, including, but not limited to those
listed in:

2.1.3.1.1. The SAMHSA Evidence Based Practices Resource

Center. ^

2.1.3.1.2. The Pew-MacArthur Results First Clearinghouse
Database.

JSl Research S Training Inslitule Exhibit A Amendmenl #3 Contraclor Initials C
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-20i9-BDAS-03-ALCOH-0l-A03 Page 1 of 12 Date o iO.ZO
Rev.09/06/18
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care System Supports

Exhibit A - Amendment 03

2.1.3.1.3. Other sources approved by the Department.

2.1.3.2. "Cost-effectiveness analysis" means an economic evaluation in
which the costs and consequences of altemative interventions
are expressed as cost per unit of outcome.

2.1.4. The Contractor shall ensure the Cost-Effectiveness and Outcomes report;

2.1.4.1. Assesses the evidence of effectiveness for intended outcomes

for the selected programs.

2.1.4.2. Permits comparisons between the selected programs within a
given category.^

2.1.4.3. Includes findings relative to intermediate and long-term
outcomes.

2.1.5. The Contractor shall submit the Cost-Effectiveness and Outcomes report
for NH substance misuse prevention programs to the Department no later
than December 1, 2020

2.2. Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs Support

2.2.1. The Contractor shall design and publish reports at the direction and
request of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs
(hereinafter referred to as the Governor's Commission) and in accordance
with RSA 12-J:4, Meetings and Reports.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall provide support and technical assistance for all
Governor's Commission Taskforces and their respective meetings.

2.2.3. The Contractor shall ensure support and technical assistance includes,
but is riot limited to:

2.2.3:1. Providing administrative and logistical support including, but not
limited to:

2.2.3.1.1. Attending all Governor's Commission Taskforce
meetings.

2.2.3.1.2. Taking meeting minutes for each Governor's
Commission Taskforce. including preparing minutes for
approval and posting approved minutes on the
Governor's Commission Taskforce web pages at
https://nhcenterforexcellence.org/governors-
commission/

2.2.3.1.3. Communicating with the Governor's Commission
Taskforce Chairpersons to prepare agendas.

2.2.3.1.4. Communicating with presenters, as needed.

2.2.3.1.5. Providing copies of materials; including minutes from
previous meetings.

JSl Research & Trair^ing InsUlute Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials ^
d/b/a Community Health institute csmoA
RFP-2019-BDAS-03-AtCOH-0l-A03 Page 2 of 12 Date O-1Q-20
Rev.09/06/18



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care System Supports

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.2.3.2. Providing consultation and recommendations to enhance work of
respective taskforces including, but not limited to:

2.2.3.2.1. Identifying potential TA requests.

2.2.3.2.2. Submitting identified TA requests to the Governor's
Commission and Taskforces for approval.

2.2.3.2.3. Providing guidance and support to corhplete approved
requests.

2.2.3.2.4. Providing summary reports of completed TA to the
Governor's Commission and respective Taskforces.

2.2.4. The Contractor shall update membership lists for the Commission and
each Taskforce as requested.

2.2.5. The Contractor shall update and maintain the Governor's Commission
web page and associated Taskforce web pages on;
https://nhcenterforexcellence.ora/Qovernors-commission.

2.2.6. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Governor's Commission and the

Department to ensure requirements in RSA T2-J. Governor's Commission
on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention and Recovery are met.

2.3. Service to Science

2.3.1. The Contractor shall maintain a process for identifying, selecting, guiding,
and supporting promising programs in becoming,NH-endorsed, evidence-
informed prevention programs. The Contractor shall ensure the process
includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.1:1. Employing NH's Service to Science process, whose guidelines
are modeled from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health

Services Administration's (SAMHSA's) process which:

2.3.1.1.1. Establishes core elements of. an evidence-based

practice:

•  2.3.1.1.2. Ensures the approach is grounded in research;

2.3.1.1.3. Ensures valid and reliable data are collected and

analyzed to determine program effectiveness; and

2.3.1.1.4. Requires implementation support including, but not
limited to materials, manuals and training to support
replication.

2.3.1.2. Coordinating, convening, and facilitating the NH Expert Panel,
which:

2.3.1.2.1. Represents multiple sectors, statewide and nationally.
In the field of prevention; and
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2.3.1.2.2. Is responsible for reviewing applications submitted in
the NH Service to Science process.

2.3.1.3. Ensuring the application process includes a review and scoring
conducted by an expert panel.

2.3.1.4. Ensuring applicants who meet criteria are endorsed as Promising
Practices in prevention.

2.3.1.5. Ensuring applicants endorsed as Promising Practices In
prevention have the option to continue with the process to
become endorsed as an Evidence-Based Practice in prevention.

2.3.1.6. Collaborating with the Department to improve the current NH
Service to Science process by establishing an evidence-informed
workgroup to identify innovative NH-based programs that exhibit
a level of readiness to enter the process of becoming a NH
evidence-informed prevention program. •

2.3.1.7. Providing consultation, technical assistance and evaluation
support to prevention organizations who are seeking to improve
the quality of their programs or practices which may include, but
are not limited to;

2.3.1.7.1. Process improvements.

2.3.1.7.2. Protocol improvements.

2.3.1.7.3. Evaluation methodology consultation.

2.3.1.7.4. Evaluation development and implementation.

2.3.1.7.5. Communication improvements.

2.3.1.7.6. Marketing improvements.

2.3.2. The Contractor shall identify and assist a minimum of one (1) NH
• prevention program annually for participation in the Service to Science
process.

2.3.3. The Contractor shall provide consultation. TA, and evaluation support to
a minimum of three (3) prevention organizations who are seeking to
improve the quality of their programs.

2.4. Public Awareness and Education for Prevention and Health Promotion

2.4.1. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to develop and
Implement statewide messaging that increases public awareness and
education for substance misuse prevention and health promotion which
includes, but is not limited to:

2.4.1.1. Reviewing current prevention and health promotion materials and
content.
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2.4.1.2. Reviewing current data on emerging substance use disorders, to
inform messaging.

2.4.1.3. Identifying priority audiences.

2.4.1.4. Researching, creating, and confirming key messages that inform
the priority audiences of what they need to know and do in order
access substance misuse and health promotion information.

2.4.1.5. Engaging the identified audience(s) through focus groups or key
informant interviews.

2.4.1.6. Testing messaging with the identified audience to ensure the
content is relevant and culturally competent.

2.4.1.7. Engaging the State's Regional Public Health Networks and other
'  community-based prevention organizations and professionals in

the development, implementation and marketing of the
messages.

2.4.2. The Contractor, in collaboration with the Department, shall create a
campaign development and implementation work plan to ensure all
deliverables are met for prevention and health promotion messaging, no
later than 60 days from the effective date of Amendment #3, which
includes, but is not limited to. a timeline of key work to be performed.

2.4.3. The Contractor shall develop a strategic communications plan, in
consultation with the Department, no later than 60 days from the effective
date of Amendment #3, that ensures the frequency and reach of all paid
media is based on industry standards and reaches the intended
audiences, based on research and audience testing. The Contractor
shall:

2.4.3.1. Prepare media buy plans for Department review and approval.

2.4.3.2. Negotiate media placement rates to provide added value for each
media buy.

2.4.3.3. Pay for media buys.

2.4.4. The Contractor shall submit all final messages to the Department, for
approval prior to publishing and public release or distribution, which
includes electronic copies of the production files for all media messages.

2.4.5. The Contractor shall utilize a variety of culturally competent messages,
platforms, and communications channels to ensure messaging reaches
statewide.

2.4.6. The Contractor shall include information about The Doorways, 211-NH,
and other relevant websites specific in key messages, as appropriate.
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2.4.7. The Contractor shall maintain the website, http://drugfreenh.org/, which
includes, but is not limited to developing, updating, and uploading website
content at the request and approval of the Department.

2.4.6. The Contractor shall develop a messaging evaluation plan, for
Department approval, which includes an evaluation of the process,
outputs, and intermediate outcomes.

2.4.9. The Contractor shall implement the approved messaging evaluation plan.

2.4.10. The Contractor, shall evaluate the public awareness and education
messages campaign for process, outputs, and outcomes and submit a

report detailing results and recommendations, within thirty (30) days of the
evaluation.

2.4.11. The Contractor shall develop and launch a minimum of two (2) prevention
•  and health promotion messages per state fiscal year, which may result in

media and messages developed running beyond the contract completion
date.

2.5. Partnership for Success

2.5.1. Partnership for Success (PFS) 2015

2.5.1.1. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance (TA) and
evaluation support for the Department and sub-grantees funded
through SAMHSA's Partnership for Success (PFS) 2015 Grant.

2.5.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure TA includes, but is not limited to:

2.5.1.2.1. Designing surveys.

2.5.1.2.2. Reviewing evaluation administration procedures.

2.5.1.2.3. Reviewing evaluation reporting methodologies.

2.5.1.2.4. Analyzing the administration of evaluation results.

2.5.1.2.5. Aggregating school-level survey and young adult data.

2.5.1.2.6. Participating in the Department's Partnership for
Success advisory and evaluation teams.

2.5.1.3. The Contractor shall meet all federal reporting requirements for
the PFS 2015 Grant.

2.5.2. State Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW)

2.5.2.1. The Contractor shall provide administrative support and technical
assistance for the Governor's Commission Data and Evaluation

Taskforce and its work related to SEOW activities, which includes
but is not limited to: -

2.5.2.1.1. Convening members at the direction of the Taskforce
and the Departrrient
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2.5.2.1.2. Managing and facilitating a minimum of six (6) meetings
per year, which includes but is not limited to.
maintaining records of meetings and activities related to
the SEOW.

2.5.2.1.3. Developing and implementing practices and processes
that are demonstrated as effective including, but not
limited to:

2.5.2.1.3.1. ' Capacities for sustaining the SEOW. ,r

2.5.2.1.3.2. Products and disseminating product
information to key decision makers.

2.5.2.1.3.3. Continuously evaluating data and systems for
effectiveness.

2.5.2.1.4. Identifying and retrieving data sets from a diverse group
of suppliers of relevant data and translating data into a
variety of formats.

2.5.2.1.5. Participating with the Department in the collection and
analysis of data.

2.5.2.1.6. Identifying key data indicators for use in monitoring
progress across providers and program areas.

2.5.3. Student Assistance Programs

2.5.3.1. The Contractor shall provide supportive services for the Student
Assistance Program (SAP) in order to increase staff and provider
knowledge and skills.

2.5.3.2. The Contractor shall ensure supportive services include, but are
not limited to:

2.5.3.2.1. Training.

2.5.3.2.2. TA.

2.5.3.2.3. Program evaluation.

2.5.3.2.4. Data analysis.

2.5.3.2.5. Interpretation of evaluation results.

2.5.3.2.6. Support.

2.5.3.3. The Contractor shall conduct a minimum of two (2) focus groups
with stakeholders associated with SAP. to belter understand

behaviors, perceptions, and beliefs related to substance misuse

from the target population in order to better inform strategies and
programs.
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2.5.3.4. The Contractor shall review the following evaluation strategies
with the Department and advisory group for possible inclusion in
the evaluation plan;

,/

2.5.3.4.1. Process data; Refers to who is receiving which
interventions or information and when.

2.5.3.4.2. Knowledge attitude and behavior (KAB) information:
Typically collected utilizing surveys, but may be
gathered through direct observations or qualitative

approaches including, but not limited to focus groups or
surveys with parents or teachers, ensuring parental
consent is obtained prior to completing KAB collection
from students directly.

2.5.3.4.3. School performance and disciplinary data: Considers
the change in grades, truancy, and behavioral issues
through baseline before the student started with SAP
and through change at the end of school year, which
requires having access to individual level data for each
participant as well as an aggregate summary of all
students in the same school and time period for
comparison purposes.

2.5.3.5. The Contractor shall provide recommendations on data products
based on the evaluation findings of the PFS 2015 Grant to a
variety of stakeholders which include, but are not limited to:

2.5.3.5.1. School administrators.

2.5.3.5.2. Boards.

2.5.3.5.3. Communities.

2.5.3.5.4. The Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug
Abuse Prevention, Treatment and Recovery.

2.5.3.6. The Contractor shall provide the Department and SAP sub
recipients with analysis of data, as requested by the SAP and the
Department.

2.5.3.7. The Contractor shall complete the evaluation of the SAP no later
than 60 days prior to the contract completion date.
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2.5.4. Young Adult Strategies

2.5.4.1. The Contractor shall provide information and TA to the Regional
Public Health Networks" (RPHNs") Substance Misuse Prevention
Coordinators and Young Adult Coordinators related to the Young
Adult Strategies, for young adults aged 18 through 25 years,
regarding implementing and monitoring evidence-informed
strategies.

2.5.4.2. The Contractor shall ensure TA includes, but Is not limited to.
assistance with;

2.5.4.2.1. Facilitating strategic planning and training in the
application of the Strategic Prevention Framework.

2.5.4.2.2. Providing learning opportunities through the use of
subject matter experts.

2.5.4.2.3. Developing tools to collect evaluation data that are
consistent with federal reporting requirements.

2.5.4.2.4. Training, developing, and distributing resources to
Substance Misuse Prevention Coordinators and Young
Adult Coordinators.

2.5.4.3. The Contractor shall provide consultation on evaluation
methodologies to the RPHNs who are implementing Young Adult
Strategies that is consistent with federal requirements.

2.5.4.4. The Contractor shall provide TA to the RPHNs related to the
ongoing young adult social media campaigns that specifically
target the young adult population ages 18 through 25 years.

2.5.4.5. The Contractor shall conduct activities to ensure the delivery of
substance misuse prevention social media messages is
appropriate for a variety of venues.

2.5.4.6. The Contractor shall create, update and adapt existing media
messages based on data, research and input from young aduits,
as approved by the Department.

2.5.4.7. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are not limited
to:

2.5.4.7.1. Developing an evaluation plan of the young adult social
media campaigns,.with Department approval.

2.5.4:7.2. Implementing the approved evaluation plan.

2.5.4.7.3. Providing a written report of evaluation findings
including recommendations for improvements.
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2.5.4.8. The Contractor shall deploy campaign strategies that are
culturally sensitive based on the evaluation findings and
recommendations.

2.5.4.9. The Contractor shall provide services, as approved by the
Department, that include, but are not limited to:

2.5.4.9.1. Marketing.

2.5.4.9.2. Strategy development.

2.5.4.9.3. Traditional and digital advertising.

2.5.4.9.4. Public relations.

2.5.4.9.5. Market research.

,2.5.4.9.6. Formative research.

2.5.4.9.7. Creative development and production.

2.5.4.9.8. Media planning and buying.

2.5.4.9.9. Hosting and maintaining websites and social media
platfonns. as determined in conjunction • with the
Department.

2.5.4.10. The Contractor shall implement digital media campaigns, as
approved by the Department, that include but are not limited to:

2.5.4.10.1. Binge-Free 603: What's your Reason?

2.5.4.10.2. Preppy-partier peer crowd campaign.

2.5.4.11. The Contractor shall complete the evaluation of the Young Adult
social media campaign(s) for process, output and outcomes, and
provide an analysis of the evaluation data to the Department by
June 30,2021.

2.5.4.12. The Contractor shall ensure any website or media campaign
accesising or gathering user information shall not store, retain, or'
collect personal identifying information of the user, including IP or
email address.

2.8. Department Collaboration, Meetings, Websites

2.6.1. The Contractor shall meet with the Department; at least quarterly, to
review the status of all contract requirements for each scope of work
including, but not limited to: '

2.6.1.1. Work plans/timelines for each scope of work for the upcoming
quarter.^

2.6.1.2. Anticipated staffing needs for each scope of work for the
upcoming quarter.
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2.6.1.3. Potential issues that may impact deliverables and outcomes for
each scope of work and suggested rriitigation strategies.

2.6.1.4. Quarterly financial reports that clearly identify costs charged as
they relate to work done per scope.

2.6.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to ensure that all
websites within this agreement are designed, created, and managed
according to all NH DolT website requirements and that any protected
health Information (PHI), personal information (PI), or other confidential
information solicited, will not be stored or captured on the website and
shall not be further disclosed except as provided by contract. Unless
notice is clearly provided on the website, the Contractor agrees that
website visitation will not be monitored and recorded for website analytics
or marketing.

2.6.3.. The Contractor shall, in collaboration with the Department, develop an
end-of-contract plan that includes, but is not limited to developing a
process for compiling an electronic file of all final products produced
through this contract for submission to the Department within 30 days of
the contract-completion.

3. REPORTING

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a work plan and timeline to the Department for
approval, that defines the activities, deliverables, and due dates for each scope of
work within 20 business days following the Amendment #3 approval date,
ensuring any changes to approved work plans or timelines are subject to
Department notice and approval.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit written monthly progress reports to the Department
related to each scope of work which includes, but is not limited to:

3.2.1. A summary of the key work performed during the monthly period.

3.2.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues, with mitigation strategies as
applicable.'

3.2.3. Scheduled work for the upcoming period.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide semi-annual reports, including de-identified or
aggregated data only, for the Governor's Commission in accordance with RSA
12-J:4, Meetings and Reports.

3.4. The Contractor shall provide a written report of Public Awareness and Education
messaging evaluation findings as outlined in paragraph 2.4.10, prior to June 30,
2021.

3.5. The Contractor shall provide a written report of the Young Adult social media
campaign(s) evaluation findings as outlined in subparagraph 2.5.4.7, prior to June
30.2021.
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3.6. The Contractor shall submit an end-of-year report no later than sixty (60) days
after the end of the state fiscal year which includes, but is not limited to:

3.6.1. An overview of work completed throughout the slate fiscal year, including
accomplishments towards program goals.

3.6.2. End of year financial report.
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Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8. Price
Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A Amendment #3. ,
Scope of Services.

2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A Amendment #3, Scope of Services
in compliance with funding requirements.

3. This contract is funded as follows:

3.1. Funding from the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs.

3.2. Federal funds from the United States Department of Health and Human Services.
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA):

3.2.1. Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Block Grant (SAPT) CFDA #93.959
is available for SFY2019 and SFY2020. FAIN # TI010035.

3.2.2. NH Partnership for Success Initiative (PFS2) CFDA #93.243 is available for
SFY2019. SFY2020. and SFY2021, FAIN # SP020796.

3.2.3. Medication-Assisted Treatment Prescription Drug and Opioid Addiction Grant
(MAT-PDOA) CFDA #93.243 is available for SFY2019 and SFY2020. FAIN
#TI026741.

3.2.4. Slate Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis Grant (STR) CFDA#93.788 is
available for SFY2019. FAIN # TI080246.

3.2.5. State Opioid Response Grant (SOR) CFDA #93.788 is available for SFY2019
and SFY2020. FAIN H79TI081685

4. Paymerit for said sen/ices shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in
the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved budget
line items.

4.2. Contractor budgets include:

4.2.1. Total Budgets inclusive of all programs per State Fiscal Year as follows:

4.2.1.1. Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1 (SFY 19);

4.2.1.2. Exhibit B-2 Amendment #2 B-2 {SFY 20); and

4.2.1.3. Exhibit B-20 Amendment #3 (SFY 21)

4.2.2. Program-specific budgets per State Fiscal Year, as follows:

4.2.2.1. Exhibits B-3 through Exhibit B-19, SFY 2020 Prevention Education Budget;
.  and

4.2.2.2. Exhibits 8-21. Amendment #3. Governor's Commission Support Budget.
SFY 2021 through Exhibit B-27, Amendment #3, Cost Effectiveness
Reporting for Prevention Budget.

4.3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State no later than
the twentieth (20''^) working day of each month, which identifies and requests
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reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.3.1. The Contractor agrees that invoicing submitted more than 60 days after the last
day of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

4.4. The Contractor shall ensure invoices are completed, signed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

4.5. The Contractor agrees to keep detailed records of their activities related to
Department-funded programs and services.

4.6. The Stale shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

4.7. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
Form P-37. Block 1.7 Completion Date.

4.8. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may t>e assigned an electronic signature and emailed

to: Shannon.Quinn@dhhs.nh.aov and dhhs.dbhinvoicesbdas@dhhs.nh.aov.

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A Amendment #3, Scope of Services.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
contract.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment
limited to transfer the funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be made
by written agreement of bo\h parties and approved by the Department, and may be made
without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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Mattar AOO Continuum of Cara Systams Supports

New Hampshire Depa

Bidder Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period:

iment of Health and Human Services

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc

IMaster AOD Continuum of Care Systems Supports

SFY21 (7/1/20 -6/30/21)

Line Item -Provide detail in budget narrativ Direct Indirect Total

1. Total Salary/Wages $  •389,213.00 $ $  389.213.00
2. Emolovee Benefits $  147.903.00 $ $  147.903.00
3. Consultants $ $ $
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) $  11.677.00 $ $  11.677.00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab, Pharmacy, Medical. Office) $  27.245.00 $ $  27,245.00
6. Travel $  8.000.00 $ $  8,000.00
7. Occupancy $  38.924.00 $ $  38.924.00
0. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  31,136,00 $ $- 31.136.00
9. Software $ $ $
10. Marketing/Communications $ $ $

11. Staff Education and Training $  11.678.00 $ $  11.678.00
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $  160.000.00 $ $  160.000.00
13. Other (combined from attached program
budgets) $  -2-.750.00 $ $  2.750.00

$  34.200.00 $ $  34.200.00
$ $ $

$ $  62,274.00 $  62.274.00

TOTAL $  862.726,00 S  62.274.00 $  925.000.00

JSi Research Training institute d/b/a Community Heaith Institute
RFP-2019-60AS-03-ALCOH-01-A03

Exhibit B-20 Amendment 03

Page l of 1

UttUHtltlU

Contractor initials

Date 6 '*0 20
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Exhibit B-21 Amondment 03

Governor's Commission Support

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name: JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc

Budget Request for: Governor's Commission Support

Budget Period: SFY21 (7/1/20 > 6/30/21)

1
Line Item •Provide detail in budget narrative

Direct Indirect Total

1. Totai Saiary/Wages $ ■ 80,756.00 $ 80,756.00
2. Empioyee Benefits $ 30,688.00 S 30,688.00
3. Consultants $ -

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &

Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) $ 2,423.00 $ 2,423.00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical, Office) S 5.653.00 $ 5,653.00

6. Travel s -

7. Occupancy $ 8,076.00 $ 8,076.00

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,

Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $ 6,460.00 s 6,460.00

9. Software $ .

10. Marketing/Communications $ •

11. Staff Education and Training $ 2,423.00 s 2,423.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ •

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $

Print Gov Commission Mid Year and Annual

Reports & support the task force $ 600.00 $ 600.00

$ -

$ 12.921.00 $ 12.921.00

TOTAL s 137,079.00 S 12,921.00 $ 150,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.4%

JSI Research Training Institute d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2019-BDAS.03-ALCOH.01 -AOS

Exhibit B-21 Amendment 03

Page l of l

Contractor Initials

Date
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Exhibit B-22 Am«ndinent (73

PFS SEOW

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name; JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc

Budget Request for: PFS SEOW

Budget Period: SFY21 (7/1/20- 6/30/21)

I-
Line Item -Provide detail in budget narrative

Direct' Indirect Total

1. Total Salary/Waqes S 78.594.00 $ 78.594.00

2. Emplovee Benefits $ 29.866.00 $ 29,866.00

3. Consuitants % -

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance.-Purchase & Depreciation) $ 2,357.00 $ 2,357.00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab, Pharmacy, Medical. Office) $ 5,502.00 S 5,502.00

6. Travel s -

7. Occupancy $ 7,860.00 s 7,860.00

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) s •  6.287.00 $ 6.287.00

9. - Software $ -

10. Marketinq/Communicalions $ -

11. Staff Education and Training s 2.358.00 s 2,358.00

12. Sul>conlracls/Aqreements $ -

13. Other'(specirtc details mandatory); $ -

Printing Annual Report % 4.600.00 $ 4.600.00

$ -

$ 12,576.00 $ 12.576.00

TOTAL $ 137.424.00 $ 12,576.00 $ 150,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 8.2%

JSI Research Training institute d/b/a Community Health institute
RFP.2019-BDAS-03-ALCOH-01-A03

Exhitrii B-22 Amendment 03

Page i of 1

Contractor initials

Date 6.10.20
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Exhibit B-23 Amendment #3

PFS Program Support

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name: JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Training institute d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2019-BDAS-03-ALCOH^31-A03

Exhibit B-23 Amendment

Page 1 of 1

9.5%

75000

Budget Period: SFY21 (7/1/20 -6/30/21)

1 " " Direct Indirect Total
Line Item -Brovlde detail In. budget narrative

1. Total Salary/Wages $  67,567.00 $  67.567.00
2. Employee Benefits $  25,676.00 $  25.676.00
3. Consultants $
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &

Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) $  2.027.00 $  2.027.00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office) $  4.730.00 S  4,730.00
6. Travel $ $

7. Occupancy $  6,757.00 $  • 6,757.00
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage, Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
Insurance. Board Expenses) $  5,406.00 $  5.406.00
9. Software $

10. Marketinq/Communications $
11. Staff Education and Traininq $  2.027.00 $  2.027.00
12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $

13. Other (specific details mandatory); $

Focus Groups S

Subject Matter Experts $

$  • 10,810.00 $  10.810.00

TOTAL. $  114.190.00 $  10,810.00 $  125,000.00

Contractor Initials

Date 6.10.20
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Exhibit B-24 Amandmont 03

PFS Madia

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name: JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc

Budget Request for: PFS Media '

Budget Period: SFY21 (7/1/20 • 6/30/21]

■ • 1
Line Item -Provide detail in budget narrative

•Direct .  Indirect Total

1. Tola! SalarvA/Vaqes $ 31,621.00 $ 31.621.00
2. EmDiovee Benefits $  12.016.00 - $ 12.016.00
3. Consultants $ .

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Oepreciation) $ 949.00 $ 949.00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office) S 2,213.00 S 2.213.00
6. T ravel $ 1.500.00 $ 1.500.00
7. Occupancy $ 3.162.00 $ 3.162.00
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Exoenses) $ 2.530.00 $ 2.530.00

9. Software s .

10. Marlteting/Communications s .

11. Staff Education and Training $ 949.00 $ 949.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $

13. Other (specific details mandatory); ' s .

Mar1(eting & Marketing Travel % 15,000.00 $ 15.000.00

$ .

$ 5.060.00 $ 5.060.00

TOTAL $ 69,940.00 S 5,060.00 $ 75,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 7.2%

JSI Research Treining Institute d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP.2019-8DA$4D3-ALCOH4D 1 -AOS

Exhibit B-24 Amendment 03

Page 1 of t

Contractor Iniliats.

Dale S-IO-ZO
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.IcfTrfy A. Mryen
Coniinissioacr

Kl(J> S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OmSION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9544 I400-SS2.334S Ext. 9544

Fix: 603-27M332 TDDAcccxs: l-$00-735-2964 www.dhhs.nlt.gov

I'S /

July 2. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral
Health, to enter into a sole source amendment to an existing contract with JSI Research &
Training Institute d/b/a Community Health Institute, Vendor #161611-8001, 501 South Street.
2nd Floor Bow. NH 03304. for the coordination of services provided to the New Hampshire
Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care System, by increasing the price limitation
by $531,842 from $4,850,734 to an amount not to exceed $5,382,576 with no change to the
contract completion date of June 30. 2020. effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval. 41.41% Federal Funds, 15.09% General Funds and 43.50% Other (Governor's
Commission) Funds.

The original agreement was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
October 17. 2018 (Item #6), and amended on December 5, 2018 (Item #20).

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2020, with
authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, OPIOID STR GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Proaram Services

92052559 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Proaram Services

92052559 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $50,000 $0 $50,000

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hortorabte Council

Page 2 oi A

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Prooram Services

92058501 $599,676 $0 $599,676

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Prooram Sen/ices

92058502 $599,676 $0 $599,676

2020 102-

500731

• Contracts for

Prooram Services

92058501 $324,676 SO $324,676

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Prooram Services

92058502 $324,676 $481,842 $806,518

Subtotal $1,848,704 $481,842 $2,330,546

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class.Tltle

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92057501

$300,000 $0 $300,000

2020 102-

500731

. Contracts for

Program-Services
92057501

$300,000 $0 $300,000

'Subtotal $600,000 $0 $600,000

05-95-92-920510-33950000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, PFS2 GRANT (1007o Federal Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052407

$240,000 $0 $240,000

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052408

$75,000 $0 $75,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052407

$240,000 $25,000 $265,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052408

$75,000 $0 $75,000

Subtotal $630,000 $25,000 $655,000

05-95-92-920510-69350000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. MAT GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount
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His Exceflency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 4

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Sen/ices
92056935

$108,800 $0 $108,800

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92056935

$108,800 $25,000 $133,800

Subtotal $217,600 $25,000 $242,600

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102- ■

500731

Contracts for

Proaram Services

92057040 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Proaram Services

92057040 $400,000 $0 $400,000

Subtotal $900,000 $00 $900,000

05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY OFFICE, OFFICE OF
MEDICAlb AND BUSINESS POLICY MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT (100% General
Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Sen/ices
47000554

$162,562 $0 $162,562

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
47000554

$441,668 $0 $441,868

Subtotal $604,430 $0 $604,430

Grand

Total
$4,850,734 $531,842 $5,382,576

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the increase in funding exceeds 10% of the current
contract price limitation.

The purpose of this request is to expand the scope of services that the Contractor is
currently providing to'ensure the State has appropriate and sufficient resources to address the
implementation and monitoring of new and existing strategies, including;

•  Supporting and expanding existing public awareness and prevention education
campaigns.

•  Adding administrative support and technical assistance to the Governor's Commission
on Alcohol and Other Drugs.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununi
end the Honorable Counal

Page 4 of 4

•  Adding evaluation for the e
MAT-PDOA grant.

New Hampshire prevention,
providers and agencies across the
contractor under this agreement. Tl
(41) workshops, with a total of 1.13(

Should the Governor and E

may not have access to necessar
under this contract. The collected

resources to combat alcohol anc
consequences of substance misus
resources.

Area served; Statewide.

intervention, treatment, and recovery support services
state are supported by work that is performed by the
e training component of this agreement has held forty-one
participants.

xecutive Council not approve this request, the Department
! information that is collected through services provided
information is used to make decisions about allocating
drug misuse and the social, health, and behavioral

e. such as overdoses, lost wages and strain on public

Source of funds: 41.41% Fee

Health Sen/ices Administration. Cei t
Grant, CFDA #93.959 FAIN 111010^1
FAIN #SP020796. 15.09% Gener

Commission Fu

e

In the ev^rr that the Fede

General Funds will not be requester

The Deporlmenlof Heollh and
in prouidirtg opporluti

nhanced care coordination services offered through the

ra! Funds from the DHHS, Substance Abuse and Mental

er for Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block

35. CDFA#93.243. FAIN #TI026741, and CFDA #93.243,
Funds and 43.50% Other Funds from the Governor's

al Funds or Other Funds become no longer available,
to support this program.

pectfully submitted.

.

jy A. Meyers

Commissioner

Htiman Services' Mission is to Join commiinilies and /omi/ies'
ilies for citizens to achieve health and independence
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol ond Othor Daifl (AQO) Continuum of Caro Syetem Supporte

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health end Human Services

Amendment U2 to the Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Continuum of Care
System Supports Contract

This 2"® Amendment to the Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Continuum of Care System Supports contract
(hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Depahmeni of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
JSI Research & Training Institute d/b/a Community Health Institute, (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 501 South Street, 2nd Floor Bow NH
03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 17, 2018 (Item #6). as amended and approved on December 5. 2018 (Item #20) the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amend^ and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEf^EAS, the Slate and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms or conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to Increase the price limitation, and modify the scope of services to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #2 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limiiation. to read:

$5,382,576.

2. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A-Amendment #2
Scope of Services.

3. Delete Exhibit B Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in its entirety
and replace with Exhibit 8 Amendment #2. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

4. Delete Exhibit 8-2 Amendment #1. Budget in its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-2
Amendment #2. SFY 2020 Master AOD Continuum of Care System of Supports Budget.

5. Delete Exhibit B-6. Budget in its entirely'and replace with Exhibit B-6 Amendment #2 SFY 2020
Technical Assistance Budget.

6. Delete Exhibit 6-8. Budget In its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-8 Amendment #2. SFY 2020
Program Evaluation Budget.

7. Delete Exhibit 8-12 Budget In its entirety and replace with Exhibit B12 Amendment #2 SFY 2020
Governor's Commission Budget.

8. Delete Exhibit B-16. Budget in its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-16 Amendment #2 SFY
2020 Parlnership for Success Budget.

9. Add Exhibit B-19, SFY 2020 Prevention Education Budget.

JSI ReiearU) 4 TrAining InsUtula
tf/Ve Community Hft0hhli)sliluia AmtnOmenI f2
RFP-20I9 BOAS-03-ALCOH , qi 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Othor Drug |AOD) Continuum of Caro Systam Supporta

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, (he parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

hi
Date

State of New Hampshire
Departm^l of Health arxf Human Services

oirectbi

)unc24. 2019

Date

JSI ResearchSi Training Institute d/b/a/
Community Health Institute

Name:

Title: Rtglona
wart

ctor

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

Stale of New Hampshire county of Merrimack pp ]une 24.2019 before the
undersigned ofTtcer, personalty appeared the person identified directly-above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicate above.

7.

Signature of^^otaty -Public or Justice of the Peace
litb^Nota/yPubOe

GeptomberS, 20U

Name end Titie..of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

JSl Reiaarch & Training instliuie
d/b/s ConwnunUy Hoanh Mstllute
RFP-20t9-BOAS:03ALCOH

Araandmtnl t?

Page 2 ol 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol eiwl Othof Doia (AOD) Continuum of Cero Syatem Supports

The preceding Amer^dmeni, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

/I

Name

Title

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: • (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI R«ioercA & Training intiliuie
0/b/a Convnvnity HsAllh Inttllirta
RFP-201fl-eDAS-03-ALCOH

Amendment *2

Page 3 of 3
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Now Hompohiro Oopartment of Health and Human Sorvlcos
Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care Syatem Supports

Exhibit A Amendment 02

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
sen/ices they will provide to persons with limited English pronciency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services withiri ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to (he extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Courl or federal or slate court orders may have an impact on the

Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under (his Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. Not withstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall

continue after June 30,2019, and (he Department shall not be liable for any payments
for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these

services has been received from the slate legislature and funds encumbered for the
SFY 2020-2021 and SFY 2022-2023 biennia.

1.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has idenlined the Contractor, JSI

Research & Training Institute d/b/a (immunity Health Institute, as a Contractor. In

accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. Training

2.1.1. The Contractor shall provide trainings to address the needs of the State's

Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care service providers. The
Contractor shall ensure trainings:

2.1.1.1, Complement technical assistance (TA) provided.

2.1.1.2. Are consistent with the required professional standards for providers
and (he workforce, which Includes, but Is not limited to Partnership for
Success (PFS) grantees.

2.V1..3. Are offered, based on the availability of space, at no cost to Bureau
of Drug and Alcohol Services staff.

2.1.2. The Contractor shall provide cross-system training to ensure pfofessionai
preparation and workforce development for providers in behavioral health and
primary healthcare fields'who work with individuals and families addressing
substance misuse related issues.

TQlnlng (AiUtutt Eihmil A Ameflamonl *2 Contrvclor lAhtAls
d/tVa Conununity Hestth Instiluia
firp.201«-8OAS-03.ALCOM Pego I el 10 Pale 6^2^/19lie 6h</l

Rev.0«/24/)8 ■
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Now Hampohire Oepartmont of Health and Human Sorvlcoa
Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care System Supports

Exhibit A Amendment fi2

2.1.3. The Contractor shall identify the training needs of the workforce by;

2.1.3.1. Soliciting feedback from the Department.

2.1.3.2.. Collecting and analyzing participant evaluation feedback for
individual trainings and on an annual basis.

2.1.3.3. Meeting monthly with the Contractor's staff to seek input on training
needs based on TA provided.

2.1.3.4. Participating in workforce development education and (raining

committees to learn what other agencies are intending to offer and to
inform these agencies of the Contractor's training plans.

2.1.3.5. Attending licensing and certiftcation board meetings to identify
provider needs.

2.1.4.. The Contractor shall deliver trainings as follows, per State Fiscal Year:

2.1.4.1. A minimum of forty-nine (49) in-pcrson trainings ahd collaborative
educational events including, but not limited to:

2.1.4.1.1. Core, intermediate, and advanced level trainings which meet

licensure and certification needs of the workforce including

but not limited to confidentiality of protected health information
(PHI) arid substance use disorder (SUD) data as required by
45 CFR 160,,164 (HIPPA) and 42 CFR Pail 2, as applicable,
and all state and federal laws and regulations.

2.1.4.1.2. Trainings specific to the needs of.PFS grantees.

2.1.4.1.3. Targeted trainings and collaborative educational events, at

the direction of the Department, based on emerging issues
and technical assistance needs.

2.1.4.2. A minimum of four (4) on-demand webinars.

2.1.5. The Contractor shall create and provide "training suites," in order to offer a
systematic approach to meet credentlaling and continuing education
requirements, which must be approved by the Department. The Contractor
shall ensure training suites;

2.1.5.1. Are scheduled six (6) months to a year in advance.

2.1.5.2. Are available every three (3) to four (4) months.

2.1.5.3. Include offerings for individuals with AGO credentials requiring
credentialing and/or continuing education including, but not limited to.

2.1.5.3.1. Certified Prevention Specialists (CPS). .
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2.1.5.3.2. Certified Recovery Support Wor1<ef5 (CRSW).

2.1.5.3.3. Licensed Aicohol & Drug Counselors/Master Licensed
Alcohol & Drug Counselors (LADCfMLADC).

2.1.6. The Contractor shall manage the training program by:

2.1.6.1. Planning ar>d coordinating unique training activities that are

affordable and non-duplicative of other trainings available in New

Hampshire.

2.1.6.2. Oeiivering training by applying a spectrum of adult teaming
methodologies, in such a way as to reach audiences statewide
Including, but not limited to;

2.1.6.2.1. Providing onsite face-to-face training.

2.1.6.2.2. Providing distance learning opportunities such as

asynchronous and synchronous educational experiences.

2.1.6.3. Ensuring that any education programs delivered on-line or on a
website: i

2.1.6.3.1. r^eel NH DoIT requirements.

2.1.6.3.2. Do not allow site visitation to be tracked for analytics or

marketing.

2.1.6.3.3. Do not maintain, store, or capture and do not further disclose

any protected health information (PHI), personal information
(PI), or other confidential Information solicited either by social

media or (he website except as expressly provided in the
contract.

2.1.6.4. Recording, monitoring, and evaluating delivery of training activities.

2.1.6.5. Maintaining a Learning Management System.

2.1.6.6. Maintaining a training calendar that lists all Contractor (raining events
and has links to other related training calendars as appropriate.

2.1.7. The Contractor shall evaluate the training program by:

2.1.7.1. Evaluating each completed training, at a minimum, for:

2.1.7.1.1. Training contenl.

2.1.7.1.2. Instructor knowledge and ability.

2.1.7.1.3. Transfer of knowledge, skills and abilities to training
participants.
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2.17.1.4. Whelher the training met (he slated goals and objectives.

2.1.7.2. Providing training evaluation protocols, for Department approval
within forty-five (45) days of the contract effective date.

2.1.7.3. Demonstrating an eighty-five percent (85%) or better rating of trainee
satisfaction through training evaluations, based on aggregate
quanerty evaluation data.

2.1.7.4. Administering an annual training needs assessment, beginning within

sixty (60) days of contract award, and every twelve (12) months
thereafter, to assess, at a minimum;

2.1.7.4.1. Certification and licensure needs.

2.1.7.4.2. Training level and topic needs.

2.1.7.4.3. Preferred format and frequency.

2.1.7.4.4. Disabilities or learning preferences.

2.1.7.4.5. General recommendations for trainings.

2.1.7.5. Providing key findings of training evaluations and annual survey

results to the Department for consideration and feedback for training
planning purposes. '

2.1.7.6. Utilizing results from training evaluations and annual sun/eys to

ensure continuous quality Improvement of the training program.

2.1.8. The Contractor shall provide all materials, equipment, and physical space, as
well as, logistical and staff support for (he training and education programs
delivered.

2.1.9. The Contractor shall provide approved Continuing Education Credits,
' applicable to the training audience and certification needs, as wed as

certificates of completion to participants who complete the trainings.

2.1.10. The Contractor shall maintain a list of trainers, as approved by the Department,

for a variety of topics and shall ensure all trainers are qualified to teach

respective courses.

2.1.11. The Contractor shall promote training programs through activities that include,
but are not limited to:

2.1.11.1. Disseminating available training opportunities to professional
networks and Boards.
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2.1.11.2. Collaborating with the Department to promote opportunities with their
funded contractors including through the Contractor's Communities

of Practice (CoP's).

-2.1.11.3. Posting trainings on the Contractor's chronological listings of
professional development activities.

2.1.11.4. Sharing training information through monthly newsletters.

2.1.11.5. Providing targeted marketing with specific associations based on
training topic.

2..1.12. The Contractor may collect registration fees from training participants in an
amount limited to expenses for training that exceed the amount funded by the '

Department. The Contractor shall:

2.1.12.1. Provide a copy of the training fee schedule within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date for Department approval.

2.1.12.2. Report revenues generated by registration fees by submitting
monthly financial data that Includes, but is not limited-to the original

budget, monthly expenditures, and monthly revenue received...

2.1.12.3. Ensure that any rmancial information gathered as part of a registration

fee will be protected as required by state rules, state laws, or federal

laws.

2.1.12.4. Reinvest a minimum of eighty percent (80%) of the revenue

generated from registration fees collected to enhance the training
program as approved by the Department. The Contractor shall:

2.1.12.4.1. Contribute a minimum of $2,000 per state fiscal year toward
scholarships.

2.1.12.4.2. Provide coffee, tea. and water for training events at no cost to

participants using reinvested revenue.

2.1.12.4.3. Invest in capacity to deliver and support trainings by;

2.1.12.4.3.1. Expanding remote training attendance through the
use o( rerhote viewing software and equipment.

2.1.12.4.3.2. Allowing for enhanced training suites.

2.1.12.4.3.3.Providing targeted and skill-building training, as
approved by the Department.

,  2.1.12.5. Report revenues against reinvestment fund totals and report progress
as part of monthly financial reporting.
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2.1.13. The Contractor shall administer a process to receive artd monitor scholarship
applications. The Contractor shall;

2.1.13.1. Coordinate payment for award scholarships to the New Hampshire
AOO workforce for attendance at approved training opportunities.

2.1.13.2. Ensure a minimum often thousand dollars fStO.OOO) per state fiscal
year is reserved for scholarships.

2.1.13.3. Ensure a minimum of two thousand dollars ($2,000) per stale fiscal

year is added to scholarships from revenue reinvestment funds, as

referenced in Section 2.1.12.4.1.

2.1.13.4. Ensure ail scholarship applications are submitted to the Department
for review and final approval.

2.2. Technical Assistance

2.2.1. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance (TA) to the AOO workforce

and direct sen/ice providers that:

2.2.1.1. Complements and supports trainings identified in Subsection 2.1,
Trainings.

2.2.1.2. Increases professional service providers' knowledge, skills, and
abilities in using various outcome-supported and evidence-based or

evidence-informed programs, policies, and practices.

2.2.1.3. ' Supports effective implementation of the full spectrum of substance

miisuse prevention, intervention, treatment and recovery supports

services that are integrated with primary and behavioral health care
and align with the Department's efforts to establish whole person-

centered and comrhunity owned systems of care.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall provide TA In a variety of formats, which may include, but

are not limited to:

2.2.2.1. Face-to-face, in person meetings.

2.2.2.2. Virtual meetings inctuding, but not limited to:

2.2.2.2.1. Web-based conferencing.

2.2.2.2.2. Webinars.

2.2.2.3. Site visits.

2.2.2.4. Telephone calls and emails.

2.2.2.5. On-line and in-pcrson Communities of Practice.

JS1 Reiflarch ft Trolning lnstllut« Exhibit A Amondmoni 02 Conlrsclor Initials
ft/b/i Commonlty Heafih Initliuie
RFP.2019-BOAS.03-ALCOM Page 8 of 30 Dala o/^4/l9

Rev.04/24/i8



DociiSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
. Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care System Supports

Exhibit A Amendment 02

2.2.3. The Contractor shall provide TA to providers and ihe workforce on targeted
topics, based on emerging issues and needs, as directed by the Oeparlment.

2.2.4. The Contractor shall use a project management system, approved by the
Department, to efTrcienliy monitor, manage, and report TA requests.

2.2.5. The Contractor shall utilize online platforms, approved by the Department, to
provide discussion forums to agencies served.

2.2.6. The Contractor shall provide TA that ensures program fidelity while meeting
slate and federal grant requirements including, but not limited to;

2.2.6.1. The Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Federal Slock Grant
(SABG).

2.2.6.2. Partnership for Success (PFS) Grant.

2.2.6.3. The Medication-Assisted Treatment Prescription Drug and Opioid
Addiction (MAT-PDOA) Grant.

2.2.7. The Contractor shall participate in all relevant federal programmatic webinars
associated with the Oepartmenl's awarded grants including but not limited to
PFS. SABG. and MAT-PDOA.

2.2.8. The Contractor shall utilize subject matter experts, as approved by the
Department, to enhance the TA activities.

2.2.9. The Contractor shall provide TA to the Department through seeking and vyriling
proposals for other federal grants as directed by the Department.

2.2.10. The Contractor shall establish a process for identifying, selecting, guiding, and
supporting promising programs in becoming a NH-endorsed, evidence-
informed prevention program. At a minimum, the Contractor shall:

2.2.10.1. Establish an evidence-informed workgroup to develop and manage,
activities which result in idenlification as a NH-endorsed prevention
program.

2.2.10.2. Convene, facilitate, and maintain a panel of informed national and
local Subject matter experts to determine the efficacy of programs.

2.2.10.3. Employ NH's Service to Science process, whose guidelines are
modeled from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration's (SAMHSA's) process, which:

2.2.10.3.1. Establishes core elenients of an evidence-based practice.

2.2.10.3.2. Ensures the approach is grounded in research.

JSIR«i8»fCh&T/#lnlfVfllnjUiul» Exhi'bll A *2 Ceniracioilnlli«i>
d/V® Commufiliy Haatlh liMlllirta
RFP.2019.8DAS4)3.ALCOH . Page 7 oJ 30 Oaiai/24^

Rav.04/24/18



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

NOW Hompshiro Ooportmont ot Health and Human Sorvlcea
Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care System Supports

Exhibit A Amendment tt2

2.2.10.3.3. Ensures valid and reliable dala are collected and analyzed to

determine program effectiveness.

2.2.10.3.4. Requires implementation support including, but not limited to
materials, manuals and training to support replication.

2.2.10.4. Coordinate, convene, end facilitate the NH Expert Panel, which

represents multiple sectors, statewide and nationally in the field of
prevention end is responsible for reviewing applications submitted in

the NH Service to iScience Process.

2.2.10.5. Ensure the application process includes the review and scoring of the
application by an expert panel. The Contractor shall ensure;

2.2.10.5.1. Applicants meeting application criteria are endorsed as
Promising Practices in prevention.

2.2.10.5.2. Applicants endorsed as Promising Practices in prevention are
given the option to continue with the process to become

endorsed as an evidence-based practice In prevention.

2.2.10.6. Collaborate with the Department to improve upon the current NH

Service to Science process by establishing an evidence-informed
won^group to identify innovative NH-based programs that exhibit a

level of readiness to enter the process of becoming a-NH evidence-

infornned prevention program.

2.2.10.7. Provide consultation, technical assistance and evaluation support to

prevention organizations who are not applying lo be evidenced based

but are seeking to improve the quality of their programs or practices
which could include, but not be limited to process or protocol

improvements, evaluation methodology consultation, evaluation

development and implementation, and communication or marketing

improvements.

2.2.11. The Contractor shall facilitate and provide technical and logistical support for a
maximum of four (4) in-person Communities of Practice (CoP), which are

designed in the format, frequency and length determined by the Department
and Include, but are not limited to:

2.2.11.1.1. Prevention.

2.2.11.1.2. Treatment.

2.2.11.1 .'3. Medication-Assisted Treatment.

2.2.11.1.4. Recovery Support Services.
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2.2.12. The Contractor shall maintain the New Hampshire Center for Excellence's
current public-facing website (www.nhcenter1orexcellence.org) thai, at a minimum
provides best practice and other professional assistance information that includes
but Is not limited to;

2.2.12.1. All publications and content created through this contract.

2.2.12.2. Webpages for each CoP that includes posting all materials Including
meeting presentation slide decks, audio recordings, questions and
answers asked during meetir>gs, and other tools and resources.

2.2.12.3. A listing ot alt technical assistance and training opportunities funded
through this contract.

2.2.12.4. A clearinghouse list of other education and training events that are
available.

2.2.13. The Contractor shall maintain the website, htto://druafreenh.orQ/. a public-
'  facing website that creates and. promotes consistent statewide messages

about the problems and solutions of substance misuse in New Hampshire.
This Includes, but is not limited to, developing, updating, and uploading website
content, at the request and approval of the Department.

2.2.14. The Contractor shall develop, update, and upload website content for the NH
Treatment Locator htlp://nhlfealmenl.or9/, at the request of the Department.

2.2.15. The Contractor shall review and evaluate the New Hampshire Treatment

Locator website (httpsi/Znhtreatment.org/) in collaboration with the Department

to further refine the treatment locator by identifying additional enhancements
and features which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.2.15.1'. Improving the ease of use and management of the treatment locator
and database.

2.2.15.2. Exploring thefeasibility of real-time treatment availability and allowing

providers to access and update their treatment availability.

2.2.15.3. Implementing processes to ensure directory listings are up-to-date.

2.2.15.4. Identifying and implementing a process to improve coordination of

edits and new provider listings.

2.2.15.5. Identifying key providers and organizations through which the Center
will actively promote the treatment locator.

2.2.16. The Contractor shall collaborate wiih the Department to ensure' that all

websites within this agreemenl, including training and distance learning
activities provided via websites, are designed, created, and manajjed
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according tcall-NH Doll website requirements, and that any protected health

information (PHI), personal Information (PI), or other confidential Information

solicited, will not be stored or captured on the website and shad not be further

disclosed except as provided by contract. Unless notice is clearly provided on
the website, the Contractor agrees that website visitation will not be monitored
and recorded for website analytics or marketing.

2.3. Program Evaluation

2.3.1. The Contractor shall develop methodologies, in collaboration with the

(Department, to evaluate the overall effectiveness of the AOO Continuum of

Care System which will include, but not be limited to developing, implementing,

and administering tools, surveys, plans, program-level logic models and
conducting focus groups.

2.3.2. The Contractor shall provide a summary of evaluation results obtained in

Paragraph 2.3.1 to the Department and program stakeholders. The Contractor
shall ensure the summary includes, but is not limited to;

2.3.2.1. Demonstrated progress in meeting implementation goals.

2.3.2.2. An explanation of challenges and successes that contributed to the

outcomes.

2.3.2.3. Identification of opportunities for improvement in implerrientation to

lead to improved outcomes.

2.3.3. The Contractor shall utilize subject matter experts, as approved by the
Department, to enhance the program evaluation activities and scope of work.

2.3.4. The Contractor shall evaluate and provide support to programs funded by the
Department, as directed by the Department and required by each funding
source, to ensure program fidelity and that federal and stale evaluation

requirements and program outcomes are being achieved including, but not
limited to;

2.3,4.1. Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (SABG),
which includes a mir^imum of one (1) independent peer review per
state fiscal year to assess the quality, appropriateness, and efficacy
of treatrnent services.

2.3.4.1.1. The Independent Peer Review shall be conducted according
to SAMHSA SABG requirements as staled In 42^USC 300x-
53. Additional Requirements.

2.3.4.1.2. Timetables for this review will be included In the workplan and
submitted to the Department within 30 days of the conj
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approval date. Changes to the timetable wit) require
Department notice and approval.

2.3.4.1.3. A summary report. Including but not limited to. results and
findings related to the review shall be submlhed to the

Department within 30 days.following completion of the review.

2.3.4.2. The Partnership for Success (PFS) Grant.'

2.3.4.3. The Medicatibn'Assisted Treatment Prescription Drug and Opioid
Addiction {MAT-PDOA) Grant and the MAT-PDOA Supplemental
Grant.

2.3.4.4. The Slate Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis (STR) Grant.

2.3.4.5. Governor's Commission Programs managed by the Department.

2.3.5. The Contractor shall participate In all federal evaluation webinars associated
with the Department's awarded grants Including, but not limited to PFS. SABG.

STR. and MAT-PDOA.

2.3.6. The Contractor shall, in consultation with the Department:

2.3.6.1. Develop evaluation documents required for state and federal grants.

2.3.6.2. Provide data as requested, by the Department.

2.3.6.3. Participate in SAMHSA evaluation and programmatic webinars.

2.4. Data CollecUon, Analysis, Interpretation, Reporting, and Support

2.4.1. The Coniractor shall assist and support the Departmeni in the collection,
analysis, interpretation, and reporting of data for the purposes of improving and
Informing substance misuse policies, programs, and practices. The Contractor
shall ensure activities inciude. but are not limited to:

2.4.1 ;i. identifyhg existing data available at Ihe federal, slate, and local levels'
that can be utilized for problem identification as well as strategies and
sen/ices to effectively address these Issues.

2.4.1.2. Identifying methodologies for data collection.

2.4.1.3. Identifying reporting requirements.

2.4.1.4. Gathering and .compiling relevant drug and alcohol use disorder
information and data.

2.4.1.5. Analyzing and translating data into a variety of formats.

2.4.1.6. Facilitating the collection end reponing of data.

2.4.1.7. Collaborating with contracted providers.
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2.4.1.6. Integrating quality data assessment procedures into regular data
management practices.

2.4.1.9. Developing a summary report of aggregate data.

2.4.1.10. Developing narrative responses.

2.4.1.11. Preparing documents as determined and requested by the
Department,

2.4.2. The Contractor'shall employ software, systems, end tools approved by the

Department to analyze quantitative and qualitative data.

2.4.3. The Contractor shall support the reporting needs of the Internal Department
Data Dashboard by assisting with gathering and providing data from relevant

sources, as directed by the Department.

2.4.4. The Contractor shall utilize subject matter experts, as approved by the
Department, to enhance the data analysis, interpretation and support activities.

2.4.5. The Contractor shall design and publish compiled reports using data supplied
by the Department and through other sources, upon the request of the
Department, consistent with all state and federal rules and laws. The

Contractor shall ensure compiled reports Include, but are not limited to:

2.4.5.1. Reports related to SUO prevention, treatment, and recovery support
services provided and outcomes achieved, statewide, including but

nol limited to an annual system level status report.

2.4.5.2. Targeted reports on emerging issues.

2.4.6. The Contractor shall provide reports in user-friendly at^ accessible formats,
as directed by the Department Including, but not limited to;

2.4.6.1. Data summaries.

2.4.6.2. Issue briefs.

2.4.6.3. Slide presentations.

2.4.6.4. Written reports.

2.4.6.5. Data dashboards, charts and graphs.

2.4.6.6. Tables that visually represent data and research findings.

2.4.7. The Contractor shall maintain the privacy and confidentiality of non-deldentified
Information obtained, gathered, stored, or transmitted by actions In compliance
with applicable stale and federal laws and regulations, including, but not limited
to:
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2.4.7.1. Locking access to all electronic and print files.

2.4.7.2. Ensuring that sensitive data is never stored on users' personal
accounts with any cloud-based service; such data are only to be

stored on corporate accounts with services that are specifically

approved for the storage of sensitive data.

2.4.7.3. Ensuring all sensitive information are encrypted in transmission via

SSL. TLS, or similar mechanisms, using FlPS-compliant libraries for
cryptographic functions and that sensitive data is not transmitted over

insecure connections.

2.4.7.4. Ensuring all sensitive data are not stored on third-party servers,

unless those third-party providers have agreed, in writing, to protect

the data as required by law. regulation, and by agreement(s) with the
data owner. All agreements with third-party providers must be
approved by the ClO, COO. or President of JSI.

2.4.7.5. Ensuring that data, statistics, or information derived from the data that

directly or inferentially identifies any tndividual(s), including cases,
family members, or providers, shall not be published or released in
any form.

2.4.8. The Contractor shall maintain (he secure storage of all non-deidentified data

obtained, gathered, stored, or transmitted by any consultant or subcontractor.
The Contractor shall ensure;

2.4.8.1. All sensitive, non-deidentified data is stored on an encrypted, secure.
HIPAA-complianl drive.

2.4.6.2. Only authorized individuals listed In specific data use agreements are
permitted to access these respective data.

2.4.6.3. Ail workstations and servers utilized by staff are equipped with:

2.4.8.3.1. Up-to-date anti-virus software.

2.4.8.3.2. Up-to-date maiware detection and software firewalls.

2.4.8.4. Data on all servers are backed up nightly, and all backup media is
stored in secured locations and transmitted in locked containers.

2.4.8.5. A minimum of one copy of all data are stored in a secure site storage
location (0 assure data recovery in the event of disaster.

2.4.8.6. Backup media which is utilized to rebuild all servers and workstations

to ensure backups are being performed and are effective.
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2.4.8.7. The secure drive, containing the data is sanitized by wiping and
overwriting the data In multiple passes upon completion of any data

retention period.

2.4.8.8. All media containing non-public data are destroyed in a manner that

ensures data are not recoverable.

2.4.8.9. Etectroriic storage devices are'physically destroyed or sanitized by IT
staff before reuse.

2.4.8.10. Disposal of data storage devices that are no longer required are
authorized by an IT Manager, who certifies that all company and
personal data have been removed from them prior to disposal.

2.4.8.11. Device or media destruction is performed by a qualified data-
destruction organization, witnessed by an IT staff member, and

documented in writing in instances where devices or media are to be

destroyed prior to data cleaning.

2.5. NH Youth Risk Behavior Survey

2.5.1. The Contractor shall provide administrative assistance to the Department for
the implementation of the bi-annual Centers for Disease Control , and

Prevention (CDC) NH Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS) which includes, but
is not limited to:

2.5.1.1. Printing, delivery and distribution of approximately 45,000 paper-
based surveys to more than eighty (80+) participating public high
schools statewide,'formatted in accordance with the requirements of
the CDC (https://www.cdc.gov/healthyyoulh/data/yfbs/data.htrnj and

.  the Department, in booklet form;

2.5.1.2. Collecting and scanning completed surveys.

2.5.1.3. Developing a clean dataset of coded results.

■ 2.5.1.4. Providing the data to the Department in a clean data file in ASCII

format ensuring that any protected health information (PHI) or SLID
i  data included in the reports is disclosed in accordance with state

rules, state and federal laws, including the requirements of 42 CFR
Part 2.

2.6. Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Prevention,
Treatment, and Recovery (Commission)

2.6.1, The- Contractor shall design and publish semi-annual reports for the
Commission In accordance with RSA 12-J:4.
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2.6.2. The Contractor shall provide support and technical assistance for a(!

Commission taskforces and their respective meetings, which includes but is
r>ot limited to;

2.6.2.1. Providing administrative and logistical support including, but not
limited to:

2.6.2.1.1. Anendir>g all Taskforce meetings.

2.6.2.1.2. Taking meeting minutes for each Taskforce. including
preparing minutes for approval and posting approved minutes

on the Taskforce's web pages at
httos://nhcen(erforexceHence.oro/oovernors-commission/

2.6.2.1.3. Communicating with Taskforce Chairs and preparing

agendas.

2.6.2.1.4. Communicating with presenters, as needed.

2.6.2.1.5. Providing copies of materials; including minutes from previous
meetings.

2.6.2.2. Providing consultation and recommendations to enhance work of
respective taskforces including, but not limited to:

2.6.2.2.1. Identifying potential TA requests'.

2.6.2.2.2. Submitting identified TA requests to the Commission and/or
Taskforces for approval.

I

2.6.2.2.3. Providing guidance and support to complete approved

requests.

2.6.2.2.4. Providing summary reports of completed TA to the

Commission and/or respective Taskforces.

2.6.3. The Contractor shall provide the following additional administrative support and

technical assistance for the Data and Evaluation Taskforce (Taskforce) of the
Commission which includes, but is not limited to:

2.6.3.1. Convening Taskforce members at the direction of the Taskforce and

the Department.

2.6.3.2. Managing and facilitating a minimum of six (6) meetings per year,
which includes,-but is r>ot limited lo maintaining records of meetings
and activities related to the Taskforce.

2.6.3.3. Developing and implementing practices and processes that are
demonstrated to be elective including, but not limited to: ^
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2.6.3.3.1. Developing capacities for sustaining the State
Epidemiological Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW).

2.6.3.3.2. Developing useful products and disseminating product
information to key decision makers.

2.6.3.3.3. Continuously evaluating data and systems for effecliveness.

2.6.3.4. identifying and'retrieving data sets from a diverse group of suppliers
of relevant data and translating data into a variety of formats.

'  2.6.3.5. Participating with the Department in the collection and analysis of
data.

2.6.3.6. Identifying Key data indicators for use in moriitoring progress across

providers and program areas.

2.6.3.7. Assembling a dashboard of measures for semi-annual repotlirtg as
directed by RSA 12-J:4.

2.6.4. . The Contractor shall update membership lists for the Commission and each

TasKforce as indicated.

2.6.5. The Contractor shall update and maintain the Commission's web page and
associated Taskforce pages on https7/nhcenierforexcellence.org/governor$-
commisston.

2.6.6. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Department to ensure the
. Commission is meeting all data collection, analysis, and reporting

requirements as articulated in RSA 12-J.

2.7. Cost-Effectiveness Reporting

2.7.1. The Contractor shall create and produce a Program Inventory Report, in
accordance with Chapter 302 NH Laws of 2018 (H81626), New Hampshire
Laws of 2018, for the Commission and the Department with a proposed target
dale of December 1, 2018 for the Commission's release proposed by January
1. 2019, that includes an inventory of all alcohol and drug abuse prevention,
treatment, and recovery programs funded in whole or in, part by the
Commission.

2.7.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Program Inventory Report includes, but is not
limited (o, the following information for each program;

2.7.2.1. Program description.

2.7.2.2. Intended outcome.

2.7.2.3. Target participant population.
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2.7.2.4. Oversight agency.

2.7.2.5. Annual budget.

2.7.2.6. Average cost per participant.

2.7.2.7. An assessment of the evidence of effectiveness for intended

outcome.

2.7.2.7.1. For this report, "evidence of effectiveness' means

documented results of evaluation assessing the effect of the
program ori the intended outcome for program participants, or

program benefciaries in the case of prevention programs.

2.7.2.7.2. This liiay include results of program evaluation conducted in

New Hampshire or an evidence rating developed by matching
the program to available research using nationally recognized

clearinghouses of program evaluations, including, but not
limited to, those included in" the Pew-MacArthur Results First

Clearinghouse Database.

2.7.3. The Contractor shall submit a work plan for ihe Program Inventory Report to
the Department within 30 days of the contract effective date.

2.7.4. The Contractor shall create and produce a Cost-Effectiveness and Outcomes

Report, in accordance with .RSA 12-J;5, for the Commission and the

Department no later than December 1, 2019 and annually thereafter for the

Commission's release no later than January 1 of the following year that details
currently funded programs including, but not limited to;

2.7.4.1. Findings relative to Ihe outcomes.

2.7.4.2. Aggregate data and reports on findings relative to the outcomes as
applicable to different program goals and context which may include,.
but is not limited to:

2.7.4.2.1. Deidentlfied participant / client demographics.

2.7.4.2.2. Duration of participation or average length of stay.

. 2.7.4.2.3. Changes in knowledge, beliefs, skills and behavior.

2.7.4.2.4. Program completion by program type Including, but not limited
to:

2.7.4.2.4.1. Diagnosis.

2.7.4.2.4.2. Primary drug of use. )
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2.7.4.2.4.3. Oe-identified. aggregate ciient demographics for
treatment programs

2.7.4.2.4.4. Referrai pathways Inciuding, but not iimited to;

2.7.4.2.4.4.1. Primary core.

2.7.4.2.4.4.2. Justice System.-

2.7.4.2.4.4.3. Mental heaith system.

2.7.4.2.4.4.4. School system.

2.7.4.2.5. Treatment capacity versus utilization.

2.7.4.2.6. Progranvtevei treatment outcomes inciuding, but not limited

to:

2.7.4.2.6.1. Substance use reduction or abstinence.

2.7.4.2.6.2. Housing status.

2.7.4.2.6.3. Recidivism.

2.7.4.2.6.4. Employment.

2.7.4.2.6.5. Education program status.

2.7.4.2.6.6. Engagement with recovery supports.

2.7.4.1 Cost-effectiveness of programs and projects.

2.7.4.4. Evidence of effectiveness of programs funded in whole or in part by

the Commission.

2.7.5. The Contractor shall ensure the Cost-Effectiveness and Outcomes Reports

contain an evaluation of a minimum of four (4) programs ideritified by the

Commission, as follows:

2.7.5.1. The initial annual report will address four (4) treatment programs.

2.7.5.2. The second annual report will address four (4) prevention programs.

2.7.5.3. The following annual reports will alternate between treatment and

prevention programs.

2.7.5.4. Programs will be chosen from the ten (10) highest annual dollar value

programs, excluding law enforcement programs.

2.7.6. The Contractor shall ensure the cost-effectiveness analysis performed permits

comparisons between selected programs within a given category.
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2.7.7. The Conlrador shal] ensure the annual CosUEffectiveness and Outcomes

Reports:

2.7.7.1. Represent outcomes as program effects on the participant

population, not documentation of the delivery of the program.

2.7.7.2. Include cost-effectiveness analysis using an economic evaluation in
which the costs and consequences of alternative interventions are

expressed as cost per unit of outcome.

2.7.7.3. Identify evidence of effectiveness by assessing the effect of the
program on the intended outcome for program participants, or

program beneficiaries in the case of prevention programs.

2.7.7.3.1. This may include results of program evaluation conducted in

New Hampshire or an evidence rating developed by matching
the program to available research using nalionally recognized

clearinghouses of program evaluations Including, but not

limited to those included in the Pew-MacArlhur Results First

Clearinghouse Database.

2.7.8. The Contractor shall submit a work plan to the Department for the cost-

effectiveness analysis within thirty (30) days of the Governor's Commission
identification of the four (4) programs to be analyzed.

2.7.9. The Coniractor shall participate in any workgroups or committees established
by the Department and/or the Commission to evaluate the usefulness of the

cost-effectiveness reporting and incorporate any modifications to the process
as developed in the workgroup or committee where approved by the
Commission.

2.8. Partnership for Success

2.8.1. Partnership for Success (PFS) 2015

2.8.1.1. The Contractor shall provide TA and evaluation support for the
Department and sub-grantees funded through SAMHSA's
Partnership for Success (PFS) 2015 Grant. The Coniractor shall

ensure TA includes, but is not limited to:

2.8.1.1.1. Designing surveys.

2.6.1.1.2. Reviewing evaluation administration procedures.

2.8.1.1.3: Reviewing evaluation reporting methodologies.

2.8.1.1.4. Analyzing the administration of evaluation results.

2.8.1.1.5. Aggregating school-leve) survey and young adult data.^
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2.8.1.1.6. Participating in the Department's Partnership for Success
advisory and evaluation teams.

2.8.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure all federal reporting for the PFS 2015

grant requirements are met.

2.8.2. Student Assistance Programs

2.6.2.1. The Contractor shall provide supportive services for the Student

Assistance Program in order to increase staff and provider knowledge

and skills. The Contractor shall ensure services include, but are not

limited to;

2.8.2.1.1. Training.

2.8.2.1.2. TA.

2.8.2.1.3. Program evaluation.

2.6.2.1.4. Data analysis.

2.8.2.1.5. Inlerpretation of evaluation results.

2.8.2.1.6. Support.

2.8.2.2. The Coniracior shall review the following evaluation strategies with
the Department and advisory group for possible inclusion In the,-

evaluation plan:

2.6.2.2.1. Process data: Refers to who is receiving which Interventions
or Information and when.

2.8.2.2.2. Knowledge attitude and behavior (KAB) Information:
Typically collected utilizing surveys, but may be gathered
through direct observations or qualitative approaches

including, but not limited to focus groups or surveys with
parents or teachers, ensuring parental consent is obtained
prior to completing KAB collection from students directly.

2.8.2.2.3. School performance and disciplinary data: Considers the
change in grades, truancy, and behavioral Issues through
baseline before the student started with SAP and through
change at the end of school year, which requires having
access to individual level data for each participant as well as

an aggregate summary of all students in the same school and
time period for comparison purposes.
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2.8.2.3. The Contractor shall provide recommendations on data products

based on the evaluation findings of the PFS 2015 grant to a variety
of stakeholders which Include, but are not-limited to:

2.8.2.3.1. School administrations.
I

2.6.2.3.2. Boards.

2.8.2.3.3. Communities.

2.8.2.3.4. The Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Prevention. Treatment and Recoveiv.

2.8.3. Young Adult Strategies

2.8.3.1. The Contractor shall provide information and TA to the Regional
Public Health Ne(wori(s' (RPHNs'} Substance Misuse Prevention
Coordinators and Young Adult Coordinators related to the Young
Adult Strategies, for young adults ages eighteen (18) through twenty-

five (25) years, regarding implementing and monitoring evidence-
informed strategies.. The Contractor shall ensure TA may include,

but is not limited lo assistance with;

2.6.3.1.1. In consultation with the Department coordinate and develop
•content as needed for bi-monthly meetings.

2.8.3.1.2. Developing implementation manuals.

2.8.3.T.3. Facilitating strategic planning and training in the application of

the Strategic Prevention Frameworlc.

2.8.3.1 ;4. Providing learning opporlunities through the use of subject
matter experts.

2.6.3.1.5. Oeveloping tools to collect evaluation data that are consistent
with federal reporting requirements.

2.8.3.1.6. Securing speakers/presenters.

2.8.3.1.7. Training, developing, and posting resources on the

Contractor's website.

2.8.3.2. The Contractor shall develop and implement an evaluation plan, In
consultation with the Department, for Young Adult Strategies that is

consistent wtlh federal requirements.

2.6.3.3. The Contractor shall administer a statewide online survey for young
adults ages eighteen (18) through (hirty (30) years that shall be
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available for response for thirty (30) consecutive days and shall begin
within sixty (60) days of the initiation of the contract.

2.8.4. Media Messaging for Young Adults

2.8.4.1. The Contractor shall provide TA to the RPHN's related to the ongoing
young adult social media campaigns that specifically targets the
young adult population ages eighteen (18) through twenty-five (25)

years, in order to creale awareness of the risks of underage drinking

and high-risk alcohol use, such as binge drinking.

2.8.4.2. The Contractor shall conduct activities to ensure (he delivery of
substance misuse prevention social media messages Is appropriate
for a variety of venues.

2.6.4.3.. The Contractor shall create, update and adapt existing media
messages based on data, research, and input from young adults and
as approved by the Department.

2.8.4.4. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are not limited to:

2.8.4.4.1. Developing an evaluation plan of the young adult social media
campaigns, vinth Department approval.

2.8.4.4.2. Implementing the approved evaluation plan.

2.8.4.4.3. Providing a written report of evaluation findings including
recommendations for improvements.

'  2.8.4.5. The Contractor shall deploy campaign strategies that are culturally
sensitive based on the evaluation findings and recommendations.

2.8.4.6. The Contractor shall provide services, as approved by the
Department that Include but are not limited to: '

2.8.4.6.1. Marketing.

2.8.4.6.2. Strategy development.

2.8.4.6.3. Traditional and digital advertising.

2.8.4.6.4. Public relations.

2.8.4.6.5. Market research.

2.8.4.6.6. Formative research.

2.8.4.6.7. Creative development and production.

2.8.4.6.8. Media planning and buying.
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2.8.4.6.9. Host and maintain websites and social media platforms, as

determined in conjunction with the DHHS.

2.8.4.7. The Contractor shall implement digital media campaigns, as

approved by the Department, that include but are not limited to;

2.8.4.7.1. Binge-Free 603: What's your Reason?

2.8.4.7.2. Preppy-partier peer crowd campaign.

2.8.4.8. The Contractor shall ensure any website or media campaign
accessing or gathering user- information shall not store, retain, or
collect personal Idenlifying information of the user, including IP or

email address.

2.9. Prevention Awareness and Education

2.9.1. The'Contractor shall provide staffing, expertise and services to implement

a NH prevention marketing campaign (Campaign). The contractor will work with
the NH Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services (Bureau) to identify and review
relevant data to determine (he topic for the campaign.

2.9.2., ,At a minimum the Contractor shall:

2.9.2.1. Identify primary and secondary audiences.

2.9.2.2. Increase public awareness of approved prevention topic.

2.9.2.3. Research, create, and/or confirrh campaign Key messages that
inform the priority audiences of what they need to know and do in
order access substance misuse and health promotion information.

2.9.2.4. Engage through.focus groups or key informant interviews the primary
audience and testing of messaging with the primary audience to
ensure the content of the Campaign is relevant and culturally
competent.

2.9.2.5. Engage the State's Regional Public . Health Networks and other
community based prevention organizations and professionals In the
development, implementation and marketing of the campaign.

2.9.3. The Contractor shall;

2.9.3.1. Review the curreni prevention Campaign materials and content
and/or review current data on emerging substance use disorder,'to
inform Campaign messaging for the primary and secondary
audiences as well as any new audiences.
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2.9.3.2. Based on the formative research and audience engagement research

create Campaign key messages.

2.9.3.3.' Develop a strategic communications plan in consultation with the
Department that ensures that the frequency and reach of all paid
media is based on industry standards and reaches the intended

audience based on research and audience testing. The Contractor

shall submit the final media plan to the NH OHHS for approval prior

to implementation. /

2.9.3.4. Submit the final media messages to the NH DHHS for approval prior

to publishing and/or public release or distribution. This will include
electronic copies of the production files for all media messages.

2.9.3.5. Ensure all media messages inform the public throughout the state
using varied and culiurally competent messages, platforms, and

communications channels.

2.9.3.6. Include messaging about The Doorways. 211 -NH and other relevant

websites specific to the Campaign's key messages.

2.9.3.7. Prepare media buy plans for Department review and approval.

2.9.3.8. Negotiate media placement rates to provide added value for each
media buy.

2.9.3.9. Invoice media outlets and pay for media buys.

2:9.3.10. Foster buy-in and a shared mission with all collaborators.

2.9.3.11. Enhance the current Binge-Free 603: What's ypur Reason? Actlvilies
with this funding as directed by funder.

2.10. Building Long-Term Sustalnabillty for Workforce Development

2.10.1. The Contractor shall leverage multiple resources and partnerships to build
long-term workforce sustainability and to increase and expand workforce
development efforts that address substance misuse.

2.11. Outcomes

2.11.1. The Contractor shall provide services that result in the improvement of policies,
practices, data collection, and analysis of the ADD Continuum of Care system
to mitigate substance misuse and its consequences for individuals by:

2.11.1.1. Increasing professional service provider's knowledge, skills and
abilities in the use of various outcome-supported and evidence-based
programs, policies, and practices.
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2.11.1.2. Improving provider's overall operations as they relate to programs,
policies, and practices.

2.11.1.3. Supporting integration of AOD services within primary and behavioral
health care.- ^

2.11.1.4. Providing TA in the form of consultation and guidance on delivering
outcome-supported and evidence-based services in order to assist

providers to build internal capacity and increase knowledge and
expertise to the changing landscape of healthcare.

2.11.1.5. Providing program evaluation to measure outcomes and processes
in order to continually enhance and improve the .quality of services

delivered. .

2.11.1.6. Providing data analysis, including Interpretation and translation of
data, to inform the decision-making process.

2.11.2. The Contractor. shall collect data to monitor Implementalron of contract

activities which shall include, but not be limited to;

2.11.2.1. Participation In trainings and Communities of Practice (CoPs).

2.11.2.2. Dissemination of products and data.

2.11.2.3. fvleasurement of the outcomes among those reached by these
'  activities using;

2.11.2.3.1. TA satisfaction evaluation surveys,

2.11.2.3.2.Tralnlng satisfaction evaluation surveys including an annual
training needs assessment.

2.11.2.3.3. CoP satisfaction evaluation surveys.

2.11.3. The Contractor shall employ quality Improvement activities for each scope of
service activity area, which includes, but is not limited to:

2.11.3.1. Creating and employing a work plan for each scope of work Identified
in this Exhibit A.

2.11.3.2. Studying evaluation findings to continuously refine. Improve, and
adapt future activities as needed.

2.11.3.3. Reviewing progress towards planned activities and objectives with
the Department.

2.11.3.4. Addressing any challenges by sharing findings with the Department
and determining appropriate strategies to address the challenges.

JSI & Trtlntoo lAitilul# Exhibli A Ameftfnwnt •? CowrKiOf Inftlalj
'  Community HeoUi Iftslltuta
RFP-20tS.aOAS-03-ALCOH Psga 2» ol 30

R*v.04rt4/te

6/24^9DaiD



OocuSign Envelope ID: 7873B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

New Hampshire Oepertment of Health and Human Sorvlcea
Alcohol and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum of Care System Supports

Exhibit A-Amendment

2.11.3.5. Establishing a minimum evaluation result as applicable, with input
from the Department and ensuring; •

2.11.3.5.1. Evaluations with findings below the established minimum
standard result in the start of a quality improvement cycle.

2.11.3.5.2. Ouality improvement cycles will- be implemented based on
annual findings.

2.12. Project fManagement

2.12.1. The Contractor shall meet with.the Oepartmeni, as requested.

2.12.2. The Contractor shall establish a project management strategy, as approved by

the Department, that ensures:

- 2.12.2.1. All project tasks and activities are identified and monitored.

2.12.2.2. Potential issues impacting outcomes are identified.

2.12.2.3. Deliverables are met as identified in this Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2.12.3. The Contractor shall conduct a project kick-off meeting with the Department
and identified project staff within ten (10) business days of the contract effective

date to review proposed project management straiegy.

2.12.4. The" Contractor shall provide a work plan/timeline to the Department that

defines the milestones, activities, deliverables, due dates, and. anticipated

staffing heeds for each scope of work within ten (10) business days following

the kick-off meeting.

2.12.5. The Contractor .Shalt facilitate regular fun-team meetings to ensure all staff
remain Informed of current work plan activities, materials development

initiatives, and all overarching project issues.

2.12.6.. The Contractor shall distribute minutes from meetings, project materials, and
resources across all project staff, including the Department, using a networked,
cloud-sharing platform that facilitates collaboration.

3. Deliverables

3.1. Training

3.1.1. The Contractor shall deliver trainings as follows, per state fiscal year:

3.1.1.1. A minimum of forty-nine (49) in-person trainings including, but not
limited to:

3.1.1.1.1. Core, intermediate, and advanced level trainings which.meel

licensure and cedirication needs of the workforce, inetoding
JSI Re»e«rch < TralntftQ IntUluts ExMOll A AmtAOinini 02 CCHMrecior ifitiieli
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but not limited to conridentiality of protected health information

(PMI) and substance use disorder (SUD) data as required by

45 CFR 160, 164 (HIPPA) and 42 CFR Part 2. as applicable,
and all state and federal laws and regulations..

3.1.1.1.2. Trainings specific to the needs of PFS grantees.

3.1.1.1.3. Targeted trainings as determined by the Department.

3.1.1.2. A minimum of four (4) on-demand webinars.

. 3.1.2. The Contractor shall administer an annual training needs assessment,

beginning no later than sixty (60) days of the contract effective date, and every

twelve (12) months thereafter artd shall provide key findings to the Department

for consideration and feedback for training planning purposes and to ensure
continuous quality improvement of the training program.

3.2. Technical Assistance

3.2.1. The. Contractor shall provide a list of TA requests to the Department for
approval on a weekly basis.

3.2.2. The Contractor shall compile a list of TA provided and shall include this in the

written monthly progress reports detailed in Section 3.

3.2.3. The Contractor shall facilitate and provide technical and logistical support for a
maximum of four (4) online Communities of Practice (CoP). which are designed
in the format, frequency and length determined by the Department and include,

but are not limited to;

3.2.3.1. Prevention

3.2.3.2. Treatment

3.2.3.3. Medication-Assisted Treatment.

3.2.3.4. Recovery Support Services

3.2.4. The Contractor shall identify a minimum of one (1) NH prevention program, per
state fiscal year, to participate in the NH Service to Science process.

3.3. Program Evaluation

3.3.1. The Contractor shall develop, In consultation with the Department evaluation
documents required for stale and federal grants.

3.3.2. The Contractor shall supply the Department with all documents and findings
relative to the lr>dependenl peer review performed within each state fiscal year.
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3.4. NH YRBS

3.4.1. The Conlractor shall print, package, deliver and distribute a minimum of 45.000

surveys to a minimum of eighty (60) participating public-high schools,

statewide.

3.4.2. The Contractor shall collect arxl scan completed sun/eys and develop a clean

dataset of coded results and provide the data to the Department in a dean data
file in ASCII format.

3.5. Governor's Commission

3.5.1. The Contractor shall publish semi-annual reports, including de-idenlified or
aggregated data only, for the Commission in accordance with RSA 12-J;4.

3.5.2. The Contractor shall provide administrative support and technical assistance

for the Commission and each of its respective Taskforces as defined In Section

2.6.2.

3.6. Cost-effectiveness Evaluation

3.6.1. The Contractor shall create and produce a Program Inventory Report, in
accordance with Chapter 302 (H6i626). New Hampshire Laws of 2018, for the
Commission and the Department with a proposed target date of December 1.
2018 for the Commission's release proposed by January 1. 2019, that includes
an inventory of all alcohol and drug abuse prevention, treatment, and recovery

programs funded In whole or In part by the Commission.

3.6.2. The Contractor shall create and produce a Cost-Effectiveness and Outcomes
Report for the Commission and the Department no later than Decernber 1,

2019 and annually thereafter for (he Commission's release no later than
January 1 of the following year in accordance with Chapter 302 NH Laws'of'

2018(HB1626).

3.7. Partnership for Success

3.7.1. The Contractor shall develop an evaluation design for the Student Assistance
Program sixty (60) days from the contract effective dale.

3.7.2. The Contractor shall Implement the evaluation of the Student Assistance

Program no later than ninety (90) days from the contract effective date.

3.7.3. The Conlractor shall provide the Department and PRS Student Assistance
Program sub-recipients; with analysis of data, as referenced in Section 2.7.11.
provided to the Contractor by the end of each fiscal year.

3.7.4. The Contractor shall conduct at a minimum four (4) focus groups with
stakeholders associated with Sludent Assistance Programs per fiscal yec
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3.7.5. The Contractor shall submit the Young Adult Strategies evaluation plan no later
than thirty (30) days from the contract effective date for Department approval.

3.7.6. The Contractor shall implement the evaluation of Young Adult Strategies no
later than ninety (90) days for the contract effective date.

3.7.7. The Contractor shall provide the Department with analysis of the evaluation
data within 60 days after the end of each fiscal year.

3.7.6. The Contractor shall submit the Young Adult social media campaign evaluation

plan within sixty (60) days of the contract effective date for department

approval.-

3.7.9. The Contractor shall implement the evaluation of the Young Adult social media
campaign no later than ninety (90) days from contract effective date.

3.7.10. The Contractor shall provide a written report of the Young Adult sodai media
campaign evaluation findings, including recommendations for improvements,

no later than sixty (60) days from the close of the evaluation.

3.7.11. The Contractor shall update and launch the "Preppy-Partier* media messaging

campaign, as part of the 0lngFree6O3 Campaign, by March 1. 2020.

3.7.12. The Contractor shall submit the "Preppy-Partier" media campaign evaluation

plan within sixty (60) days of the contract effective date for department
approval.

3.7.13. The Contractor shall implement the evaluation of the "Preppy-Partier' media
campaign no later than ninety (90) days from contract effective date.

3.7.14. The Contractor shall provide a written report of. the "Preppy-Pariier* media

campaigri evaluation findings, including recommendations for improvements,
no later than sixty (60) days from the close of the evaluation.

3.6. Prevention Awareness and Education Campaign
/  ,

3.8.1. The Contractor shall submit the Prevention Awareness and Education

Campaign development and Implementation plan within sixty (60) days of the
contract effective date for department approval.

3.8;.2. The Contractor, in coordination with the DHHS, shall develop an evaluation
plan of the Campaign, which wilt include an evaluation of the process, outputs,
and intermediate outcomes.

3.8.3. All services related to (he Prevention Awareness and Education campaign
shall be completed by June 30.2020.
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3.9. Reporting and Meetings

3.9.1. The Contractor shall provide.a written monthly progress report to the
Department related to accomplishments of the contract goals end perlorrr^ance

measures, for each scope of work, which includes, but Is not limited to;

3.9.1.1. A summary of the Key work performed for each scope of work during
the monthly period.

3.9.1.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues.

3.9.1.3. Scheduled work for the upcoming period.

3.9.2. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports to the Department detailing the
. status of the Campaigns and media messaging activities, including but not

limited to Anyone/Anytime media messaging activities and a comparison of

budgeted to expended funds for these activities in the form and format
prescribed by the Department.

3.9.3. The Contractor shall meet at least quarterly with the Department to review the

status of all contract requirerhents for each scope of work including, but not

limited to:

3.9.3.1. Work plans/timelines for each scope of work for the upcoming
quarter.

3.9.3.2. Anticipated stafTing needs for each scope of work for the upcoming
quarter.

3.9.3.3. Potential risks, barriers, and issues for each scope of work, that may

impact outcomes; including a mitigation strategy for each.

3.9.3.4. Quarterly financial reports that clearly identify costs charged as they

relate to work done per scope.

3.9.4. The Contrador shall complete and submit an .end of year report no later than

sixty (60) days after the end of the state Hscal year which provides, at a
minimum:

3.9.4.1. A complete program overview.

3.9.4.2. Accomplishments towards program goals and performance

measures linked to outcomes and including return on Investment data
for each scope of work.

3.9.4.3. End of year financial report.
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Methods and Condltlona Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form p.37. Block 1.8. Price
Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A Amendment #1.
Additional Scope of Sen/ices and Exhibit A Amendment #2, Scope of Services.

2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A Amendmeni 01. Additional Scope
of Services and in Exhlbll A Amendmeni #2. Scope of Senrices in compliance with funding
requirements.

3. This contract is funded as follows:

3.1. Funding from the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention,
Intervention and Treatment.

3.2. Federal funds from the United States Department of Health and Human Services.
•  Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA):

3.2.1. Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Block Grant (SAPT) CFDA #93 959
FAIN#TI010035.

3.2.2. NH Partnership for Success Initiative (PFS2) CFDA #93 243 FAIN #
SP02079S.

3.2.3. Medication-Assisted Treatment Prescription Drug and Opioid Addiction Grant
(MAT-PDOA) CFDA #93.243 FAIN #TI026741.

3.2.4. State Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis Grant (STR) CFDA#93.768 FAIN
# TI080246.

3.2.5. State Opioid Response Grant (SOR) CFDA #93.768 FAIN H79TI081685

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in
the fulfillmeni of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
budget line Hems.

4.2. Contractor budgets Include;

4.2.1. Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1 (SFY 19) and Exhibit B-2 Amendment #2 B-2 (SFY
20) which are the total budgets p>er State Fiscal Year including all programs
within the contract.

4.2.2. Exhibits B-3 through B-19. inclusive of Exhibits 8-2 Amendment #2. B-6
Amendment #2, 8-8 Amendment #2. 8-12' Amendment #2, and 6-16
Amendment #2. all of which are budgets for the individual programs by State
Fiscal Year.

4.3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form salisfaclory to the State no later
than the twentieth {20"^) working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.4. The Contractor shall ensure Invoices arc completed, signed, daled and returned to
the Department In order to initiate payment.

4.5. The Contractor agrees to Keep detailed records of their activities related to
Department-funded programs and services.

4.6. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (ijO) days of receipt of

JSl ReioxfCh & Tfainlftg Injlflul® Eihibil B Amentfment $2 Conlfoetof InWab A
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each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

4.7. The final invoice shall be due to |the Slate no later than forty (40) days after the
contract Form P-37. Bipck 1.7 Completion Date.

4.8. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to: Michael.Roqers@dhhs.nh,Qov and Laurie.Heath@dhhs.nh.QOv

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A Amendment 01. Scope of Services. Exhibit A Amendment #2.
Scope of Services, and in this Exhibit 6.

6. • Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance
with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the sen/ices provided, or if
the said services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this contract,

7. Notwithstariding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendrrient
limited to transfer the funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be
made by written agreement of both parlies and approved by the Department, and may
be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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New Hampshire Oepartment of Health and Hufnan Services

Bidder Name: JSI Research and Traninq Institute, Inc

Budget Request for: Master AOD Continuum of Care Systems Supports

Budget Period: SFY20 (7/1/19 - 6/30/20)

Line Itcm' -Provide'deiail In budget narrative' '
.Direct •,

-

-lndir:ect ;. ■ • Total .

•1. Total Salary/Waqes % 1.053.466.02 S $ 955.628.02
2. Employee Benefits' S 400.316.87 5 $ 363,138.87
3.. Consultants $ . 5 S ,

4. Equipment (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Oepreciation) $ 31.587.41' J S 28.652.41

5. Supplies: (includes supplies (or
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office) s 73,745.29 $ i 66.696.29
6. Travel i 14.103.00. 5 $ 10.103.00
7. Occupancy i 105.346.70 5 s 95_,563.70
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) s 84.279.76 i $ 76.452,76
9. ' Software i . $ 5
10. Mari(etir>a/Communicatjons s 230,000.00 i $ 15,000.00
11. Staff Education artd Training $ 31.604.41 S S 28.669.41
12. Subcontracts/Aoreements s 467.000,00. $ $ 467.000.00
13. Other (combined from attached program
budqeis) s s S

$ 19.786.00 s $ 19.786.00
i 19.760.00 $ . $ 19.760.00
$ 47.300.00 $ .152.911.53 $ 200.211.53

TOTAL % 2,578,295.47 s 152,911.53 S 2,746,862.00
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
•

Bidder Name: JSI Research and Tranlnq Institute. Inc

Budget Request for: Technical Assistance

Budget Period: SFY20 (7/1/19 • 6/30/20)

Uine ltem ̂ rovtcte detairm budget natratlve' •
Direct -Indirect Total .•

1. lotai Saiarv/Waqes i 213.128.00 S 213.126.00
2, Emolovee Benefits 3 60.988.00 8 80.988.00
3. Consultanis $ . 8
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation)- $ 6,390.00 8 6.390.00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy, Medical, Office) i 14.920.00 8 14.920.00
6. Travel i 2,700.00 8 2.700,00
7. Occupancy i 21.313.00 8 21.313.00
6. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
insurance. Board Expenses) i 17.052.00 8 17.052.00
9. Software s . 8
10. Marttetinq/Communications i . 8 .

11. Staff Education and Traininq % 6.394.00 8 6.394.00
12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ 200,000.00 8 200.000.00
13. Other (specific details mandaiory)' i 8
Salesforce Software License I 4.614.00 8 4.614.00
Conference Calls & Trainlno 18,400.00 8 18.400.00
Subject Matter Experts 5 34.101.00 8 34.101.00

TOTAL $ 585,899.00 $ 34,101.00 8 620,000.00

S.8%
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name; JSI Research and Traninq institute, Inc

Budget Request for: Program Evaluation

Budget Period: SP/20 (7/1/19 • 6/30/20)

Line^ltem -Provide-detail in budget narrative' '
. Direct _ indirect ' Total

1. Total Salarv/Waqes 162.579.51 $ 162.579.51
2. Emplovee Benefits % 61.780.13 $ 61.780.13
3. Consultants $ . S
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Oepreciaiion) S 4.874.41 $ 4.874.41

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education.-Lab. Pharmacy. Medical, Office) $ 11.380.95 S 11.380.95
6. Travel $ 350.00 $ 350.00
7. Occupancy S 16.258.35 $ 16.258.35
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptipns, Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) $ 13.006.08 $ 13.006.08
9. Software s $
.10. Marketinq/Communications $ $ .

11. Staff Education and Training $  4;877,41 $ 4,877.41
12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ 6
13. Other fsoecific details mandatory): $ $
Satisfaction Survey Printing $  400.00 S ,400.00
Incentives for Providers Response $  500.00 $ 500.00
Subject Matter Experts S  15,000.00 $ 26.015.17 $ 41.015.17

TOTAL $ 291,006.83 $ 26,015.17 $ 317,022.00

iSI Rejt«reh Triimnj Itmituw d/h/i CommKnity Hwiih liuiiiutc
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New Hampshire Depa

Didder Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period;

rtment of Health and Human Services

JSl Research and Trantnq Institute, Inc

Governor's Commission

SFY20 (7/1/19-6/30/20)

•  -v' -. ' .. ';(• Direct . '-' - • •Indirect • '. . . Total
Line it'em •Provide'detail.ih.b'udget narrative '
1. .Total Salarv/Waqes S  161.514.00 $  161.514.00
2. Emolovee Benerits $  61.376.00 $  61.376.00
3. Consultants $
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Deoreciation) $  4.843,00 $  4.843.00

S. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Latj; Pharmacv. Medical, Office) $  11.306.00 S  11.306.00
6. Travel %
7. Occupancv $  16.152.00 S  16,152.00
6. Current Expenses (indudes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Exoenses) $  12.921.00 $  12.921.00
9. Software $
10. Marketino/Communlcations $
11. Staff Education and Training S  4.845.00 $  4.845.00
12. Subconiracts/Aqreements $
13. Other (soedfic details mandatory): $
Prim Gov Commissjon Mid Year and Annual Reports $  1.200.00 $. 1.200.00

$

$  25.843.00 $  25.843.00

TOTAL $  '274,157.00 $  25,843.00 $  300,000.00

JSl Research Training Institute d/b/a Community Health Institute
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name; JSI Research and Traning Institute, Inc

Budget Request for: Partnership for Success

Budget Period: SFY20 (7/1/19 - 6/30/20)

Line ltem,^rovide detail in budget narrative
Direct , Indirect'- Total ■ •

r' • ^

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 74.322.70 $ 74.322.70
2. CmDlovee Benefits • $ 28.243.03 $ 28.243.03
3. Consultants $ . $
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) S 2.228.08 $ 2:228.08

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office) $ 5.202.19 $ 5.202.19
6. Travel S 1.500.00 % 1.500.00
7. Occupancy % 7.432.27 % 7,432.27
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance. Board Expenses) $ 5,946.22 $ 5.946.22
9. Software $ . $
10. Marketinq/Communications $ 15,000.00 $ 15.000.00
11. Staff Education and Traininq $ 2.230.08 S 2.230.08
12. Subcontracts/Aqreements s . S
13. Other (specific details mandalorvl; $ . s .

Web-Ex SAP. Younq Adults $ 500.00 $ 500.00
Printinq PFS Evaluation Data Products $ 500.00 $ 500.00

% 20.000.00 $ 11.895.43 $ 31.895.43

TOTAL $ 163,104.56 $ 11,895.43 $ 175,000.00

JSI Researeft Tralnif>9 Institutule «MVa Commimity Health Institutute
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New Hampshire Oepa

Bidder Name:

Budget Request for:

Budget Period:

rtment of Health and Human Services

JSi Research and Traninq Institute, Inc

Prevention & Education

SFY20 (7/1/1.9-6/30/20)

•  :~i' : •*: Direct ,-.T. .Indir^^ct j • -r- ^Total-.-T^':-;.i-.
!IiheJtern\^rbyide detail.in-budget narrative. 'i..y '• .7-
1. Total Salarv/Waoes $  36.1.30.81 $  36.130.81
2. Emolovee Benefits $  13.729.71 $  13.729.71
3. Consultants $
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Deoredation) $  1.083.92 $  1.083.92

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical OfTice) S  2.529.16 $' 2.529.16
6. Travel $  5.000.00 $  5.000.00
7, .Occupancy $  3.613.08 $  3.613.08
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
Insurance. Board Expenses) S  2.890.46 $  2.890.46
9. Software $
10. Marketino/Communications $
11. Staff Education and Training $  1.083.92 $. 1.083.92
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $
13. Other(software. advertising, training,
etc)6f18/20i9 $

$  10.000.00 $  10.000.00

$

$  5.780.93 $  5.780.93

TOTAL $  76,061.07 $  5.780.93 %  81.842.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct $  81.842.00 7.6% Contractor loflia

RFP.2019-BDAS-03-ALCOH-

JSI Research Training institute d/b/a Community Health Institute Page t of i Date 6/2^/19
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ittTrtfA. Mt7<n

CennUtleatr

K«tja & F«i
Dlrtcter

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Dfy/SlOr/ FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

BUREAU OF DRUG AHD ALCOHOL SERyiCES .

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NM 03J0I
603-27l.<il0 l-<00452-334,SEit.<73S

F*i: 803^2714105 TOO Acrcu: 1400.735^2964

r.dh^».nh.gqv

November 14, ?01:8

Mis E)^cellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council > • ; • .

^tate.-Hpuse
Concord, New. Mampshice 03301..

■ REQUESTED ACTIOiN ''

'  Authorize.the Department of Health and Human Services. Bureau of. Drug and Alcohol
Services, to enter into a sole'source amendment to an existing contract with J'SI Research &
Training Institute d/b/a Community Health Institute. Vendor #161611-6001,'501 South Street!
2nd Floor Bow, NH 03304; for the coordination of services provided to the New Hampshire
Alcohol and Other Drug (AOD) Continuum of Care System.,by Iricreasjhg the price..li.mitallbn
by $1,450,000 from $3,400,734 to an arnour)t not to .exce.ed $4,850,734, effective ". upon
Governor and Executive Council approval, with no change to the conltract cornpletioh date of
June 30. 2020. 45.22% Federal Funds. 16.67®i General Funds..and 38.11% Other Fund?.- .

The original, agreement was approved by the Governor-and Executive Council on
October 17. 2018 (Item #6).

Funds are available in the foliowing'^ccbun'ts for StateEis.cal Year (SFY) 2019,- and are
anticipated to be available in SFY 2020, upon the availability and'continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from the Governor and
Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05.95.92.920510-25590000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTHrOUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. OPIOID STR GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Prooram Services

92052559 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2020 102-

500731

• Contracts for

Program Services
92052559 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $50,000 $0 $50;000
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HI# 6*ee«ef>qf. Covcmor Chrinophei T. Sununu
■ and ihe MonoraWe Cpuncfl
Psga2of9

05'95-92-$205l0-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
human SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH^ BUREAU OF DRUG AND
alcohol, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds) -

SFY
Class/

Account

Class Tide
Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

• Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Prooram Services

92958501 $324.6_7.6 $275,000 $59.9.6,76

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for
Prooram Services

92058502 $324,676 $275,000 $599,676

2020 102- ■

500731

~ Cdritracts for
Pfodram Services

92058501 $324,676 59. $324,676

2020 102-.

.500731

Contracts for

Prooram .Services

92058502 $324,676 $0 $324,676

,s
: \ Subtotal . $i-2i8jg4\. ■ f550,bop. $1,848,704

05.9^92.92051043846000 Health and SOCIAL SERVICES. DEFT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS;. HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL MEALTHI BUREAU. OF. DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Foderal.Funds i4Vo jGeneral Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Tide

Job

Number

Current

Afhourit

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount'

■ 2019 102-

50Q731

Coritracts for

Prpgram Services.
92057501

$300.0Q0 $0 $300.00P

2020 102-

500731

Cpn.tracts for
Prograrn Sen/ices

92057501
$300,000 SO $300,000

Subtotal $600,000 $0 $600,000

05.95-92-920510.339500DO HEALTH AND SOCIAL

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL
ALCOHOL. PFS2 GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND

SPY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current.

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052407

$240,000 $0 $240,000

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052408

$75,000 SO $75,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Sen/ices
92052407

$240,000 $0 $240,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
92052408

$7.5,000 $0 $75,000

Subtotal $630,000 JO $630,000
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Hit Excellency. Governor Chhstopher T. Suruinu
end the Honooibie Council

Page 3 of 5

05-95-92-920510-69350000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVliSION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. MAT GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for
Program Services

92056935
$108,800 $0 $108,800

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for
Program Services

92056935
$108,800 $0 $108,800

Subtotal $217,600 $0 $217,600

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
. Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Proaram Services

92057040 $0 $500,000 $500,000

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Proaram Services

92057040 $0 $400,000 $400,000

Sub/o/e/ $0 $900,000 $900,000

05-95-47-470010-79460000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY OFFICE. OFFICE OF
MEDICAID AND BUSINESS POLICY MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT (100% Genera!
Funds)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

Decrease

Revised

Amount

2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
47000554

$162,562 $0 $162,562

2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
47000554

$441,868 $0 $441,868

Subtotal $604,430 $0 $604,430

Grand

ToUl
$3,400,734 $1,450,000 $4,850,734
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His Excellency. Governor Chrisiopner T. Sununu
end ine Honoroble Council

Page « of 9

EXPLANATION

.. This, request .is eole.'source because the additional funding increases the price limitation
By'riibfe than ten (16)"percent of the original contract value, the purpose of this request is to
expancf the scope of services that the Contractor is currently providing td include restarting the
Anydne/Anytime public " advertising campaign. This amendment is in support of the
Department's goal to re-align the substance use disorder (SUD) service access system into a
strearhlined and standardized approach as part of the State Opioid Response (SOR) grant, as
awarded-by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA). The
Department's accepted.SOR plan Includes a significant Investment in:the expansion .and
dissemination of .a public.niessaging-campaign aroun^ the-risk of;.opi9.ids..,s,afe.;medicatipri
storage, and accessing help for those, who are affe.crted by Qup.. SP.R funds.w|l-.jbe.used.to.r,er
boot.and expand the "Anyone Anytime* campaign that the Dispartmerit launchedMn
will expand the campaign to target specific prevention messaging for children and young
adults .related to ODD risks. This re-boot will also serve to ensure public awareriess of new
access- points established with; SOR funding. ■ensunrig'":-th"at ■indiyiduSis|'^kirtg -irifbrmat^bri
abo^Jt'SUb/QUp services are'difedOd to the appropriate resources;'including
developed c;al^centfef^v^Siiling the.single'website^de^^^^^ strbamlirie infonriation

tfibi'r Regional Hub t'p access se^'ic^^^ J ■_ ■
/ .i ..iThls-.amendment also adds $150,000 In funds that the Department was directed to add
to this contract by the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and other Drugs at their October
2010 rrieeling 'The purpbse bf the additional funding provided by the Commission is to ensure
that the Contractor has s.ufficient. resources :io. support the administrative and..technical
assistance functions the Commissioarequests of them. . • .. . . . .

Notwithstanding'any plher provision ofthe Contract to'1hecohtrpr/;no seryices'Shall
continue after June-SO. 2019. arid the Departrrient'Shall nbt,^be" liabl6- for;any ■p^ymbiils''fbf.
Services provided after" June 30,'2019^, unless and until ah apprppri.atlb for ihei» sei^i^.S;rias
been received from the state legislature and funds ericurhbered'for trie SFY 262'0-2b2t
biennium.*

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department
may be unable to ensure that the general public is made aware of the new service delivery
access established under the SOR grant, and resources for public awareness campaigns
around the dangers and risks of opioids will remain limited. Further, the Department may not
be in compliance with the funding directive made by the Governor's Commission on Alcohol
and other Drugs .

Area served; Statewide.

Source of funds: 45.22% Federal Funds from the DHHS, Substance Abuse and Merital
Health Sen/ices Administration. Center for Substance Abuse Treatment, Substance Abuse
Prevention and Treatment Block Grant. CDFA#93.9.59 FAIN# TI010035. State Targeted
Response to the Opioid Crisis (SIR) Grant. CFOA #93.788 FAIN #11080246, the Medication-
Assisted Treatment (MAT) Grant CFOA #93.243 FAIN #TI026741. and the State Opioid
Response (SOR) Grant CFDA #93.788 FAIN #TI0B1685 16.67% General Funds, and 38.11%
Other Funds from the Governor Commission Funds.
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His Exeeltency. Governor Chrisiopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Pege 5 of S

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox

Director

Approved by: i

JeftJey A| Meyfers
Commissioner '

Vu Deportmtnt of Heolihand Humon Sen,ie<$'Mission is lo join eommuniiies and fomilUs
in providing opportunilUs for citixem to ocAiewc hoolih ond indtptndence.
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New Hampshire .Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol end Othor.Ocuq (AOO) Continuum of Care Syetom Supports

State Of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Alcohol and Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care
System Supports Contract

This 1" Amendment to (he Alcohol end Other Drug (ADD) Continuum of Care System Supports contract
(hereinafter referred to as 'Arnendment PI*) dated this 5^ day of November. 2018. is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Oepartment of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and JSI Research & Training institute d/b/a Community Health Institute,
(hereinafter referred to es 'ihe Contractor"), a norvproftt corporation with a place of busir^ess at SOl
South Street. 2nd Floor. Bow. NH 033O4..

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the 'Contract') approved by the Governor and EiecutivQ Council
on October 17. 2018. the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, (he Slate and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. Genera) Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon writlen agreement of (he parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council: and

WHEREAS, (he parties agree to Increase (he price limitation, and modify the scope of services to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideralion of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In Ihe Contract and set forth herein, the paitles hereto agree to amend es follows:

1. Form P-37.' C^neral Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitalion, to read:

$4,850,734. V

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for Slate Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White. Director.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10, Slate Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

4. Add Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Work. Subsection 2.7, Cost Effectiveness
Reporting, Paragraph 2.7.10. to read:

The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports to the Oepartment detailing (he status of
Anyone/Anytime media. messaging activities, including a comparison of budgeted to
expended funds for these activities In the form and format prescribed by the Oepartment.

5. Add Exhibit A Amendment P1 Additional Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in its entirety and replace with:
Exhibit B Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

7. Delete Exhibit B-1. Budget in its entirety and replace with; Exhibit B-1 Amendment PI. Budget.

6. Oeiele Exhibit B-2, Budget in its entirety and replace with: Exhibit B-2 Amendment P1. Budget.

JSI Ra*Mrch A TratiWie lAitbuU
ti/tV* Cemmunlty HuBhlrutlTuls Amandmentfl
nFP.20>»-BOA&-0>ALCOH Poee 1 cf 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Alcohol and Oth»r Dryg (AOD) Continuum of Cof» Syafm SupportB

9. Delete Exhibit B-1 ̂. SFY 2019 Governors Commisiion Budget in its entirety end replace with:

Exhibit 8-11 Amendment »1. SFY 2019 Budget, Gpvemors Commission Funding.

10. Add Exhibit 8-17. Budget. SPY 2019 SOR Campaign Funding.

11. Add ExhlbH B-18. Budget, SPY 2020 SOR Campaign Funding.

JSi RMlircn t Trvinlng tntOMt
d/Ve ComffluAtty HieRh Inttttutt
RFP.]010-BOAS-0)-AICOH Pf9«7»l4
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New Hampehire Oepartment of Health and Human Services
A*cono< and Othof Orua (AOD) Continuum of Can).System Supporta

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

I  I
Date Name:

K.
Date

JSI ResearchS Training Institute d/b/a/
Community Health Institute

Name: Jopaihfih Srcwari
Title: Regional Director

Acknowtedgement of Contractor's signature:

State of New Hampshire . County of Mcrrimack on November 12.20l6before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged.that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated aboye.

ur llo.tary Public or Justice of the Peace
•C'l^NetcryPubOo

« .^iiity OiwNofer^bykti Stpterribg 3, ICP
V.

Narhe and Title:of Notary or Justice of (he Peace

My CQtiimlssion.Expires: ^ lb I^^3

jSi ftM«ircri & TaWng insCtuta
ConxmunlTy HhAI) ln«ttv>«

RFP-20I»-BOAS-O)-AlCOH •
AmanOffliniai

Page 3 of 4
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Now Hampshire Department of HeaUh and Human Services
Alcohol or>d Othor OfVfl (AQD) Continuum of Care Syatem Supporta

The preceding Amendment, having t>een reviewed by this office. Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Dale ■ ivafM: »/• ' y y
Title: ^ /h»S^

i  •

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor end Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

JS) hnMon a Tnimng insUtuto
e/tVa ConvRurtlty H«»IA inillMo Am«nCm«m • \

■ RFP.»1«-eOASOVALCON Pago 4 el 4
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Now Hempfthiro Departmont of Heaim and Human Sorvlcea
Alcohol and Other Drug (AOO) Continuum of Care Syetom Supports

Exhibit A Amondmont 01

Additional Scopo of Services

1. Scope of Services

1.1. Expanded Media Messaging

1.1.V The Contractor shall provide stafTing. expertise and services to impfement Phase
III of the Anyone/Anytime NH~ Opiold Awareness Campaign, which includes.
tHit is not limited to:

1.1.1.1. Increasing'public ewareness of the opioid epidemic end providing
Information on relevant topics, which Include, but ere r>ot limited to:

1.1.1.1.1. Resources and services for prevention, treatment and recovery of
opioid use disorders that are available to the public.

1.1.1.1.2. Legal protections covered by the "Good Samarit^* law (RSA 316-

1.1.1.1.3. Oerinitions and descriptions of opiords end illicit opioids.

1.1.1.1.4. Identified risk factors that contribute to opioid use and identifred

protective factors that contribute to recovery and harm reduction.

1.1.1.1.5. Other emerging trends relative to (he opioid ep'tdemic as directed by
the Department.

1.1.1.2. Increasing public awareness of the availability of naloxone to prevent
overdose death (RSA 318-8:18). and other relevant legislative efforts Ihsi
support harm reduction, best practices and health promolion.

1.1.1.3. Increasing public awareness of the state's and Regional Public, Health
Network's efforts in the continuum of care scope of work to effectively

address prevention, treatment end recovery support services from
substance use disorders including opioid use disorders.

1.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure the delivery of messages which are appropriate for a
variety of venues as approved by the Deparimeni..

1.1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all med'ia messages inform the publ'rc in all regions
of the slate using varied and culturally competent messages, platforms, and
communlcdlions channels.

1.1.4. The Contractor shall review the materials and content of the Anyone Anytime

NH website fhttDs://anvoneanvtlmenh.orQA and coordinate updates to the

website with the Department's goal to trans'rtion to a single website for consumer
Information, which includes, but Is not limited to:

1.1.4.1. Ensuring that all existing Information Is accurate.

^  1.1.4.2. Conducting an envifonmental scan of all data, best practices, and
research currently available on opioids and illicit opioids. .

JSi Resex/ch & Trt'tning Inaiitirtx Exhbii A Amendment SI Conlrodor initiab^• ^rtitiab^ S
dAVe Community Heellhlnstiiulo ii/n/iA
RFP-20l9-eOAS^3-ALCOH ' PegotofJ ✓
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Now Hompthiro Ooportmont ol Hoalth ond Human Sarvlceo
Alcohol and Other Onig (AGO) Continuum of Caro Syatom Supports

Exhibit A Amondnwnt 01
f

1.1.4.3. UpdPtir^g (he website to reflect current data and information as approved
by the Department.

1.1.4.4. Ensuring that informatior) relevant to Phase III of the Anyone/Anytime
NH^ Opiotd Awareness Campaign is reaching mtended audiences
through appropriate media channels and messagmg.

1.1.4.5. Ensuring that the frequency and reach of all paid media is based on
industry standards.

1.1.5. The Contractor ahall collaborate wilh the Regional Public Health Network, health
care organlzelions, regional hubs for opioid use disorder services and community
partners as identified by the Department, to distribute media through their
networks.

1.1.6. The Contractor shall Include messaging about the 2-V1 NH as the public facing
' Phone number to call, in all new and existing media and materials for the

'Anyone/Anytime* campaign. t

1.1.7. The Contractor shall submli the final media messages to the Department for
approval prior to publishing and/or public release or distribution. This will include
electronic copies of the production files for all media messages.

1.1.8. The Contractor's funding for media messages shall be used for technology
needs, consultant services, materials publication, advertising time, and media
buys as approved by the Department

1.1.9. The services described in this Exhibit A Amendment 01. Additional Scope of
Senrices, shall be completed by September 29.2020. The media shall be
purchased during the contracted period, but may run past the date of completion.

JSl RoMarcn & TralfUng Iniiltuie EiMbil A AmenCnwnl 01 Contractor InltioD
d/b/oCommunity HosithIristituio ,
RFP.2019-BDAS-O3-ALCOH P®Q8 2oI2 Dale
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New Hampehiro Departmont of Health end Human Sorvleea
Alcohol and Other OruQ (ADD) Continuum of Care System Supports

Exhibit B Amendment 01

Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shaU pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8. Price
Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services artd Exhibit A Amendment 01, Additional Scope of Services.

2. The Contractor aprees to provide the services in Exhibit A,.Scope of Services and in Exhibit
A Amer>dment 01. Additional Scope of Services in compliance wKh funding requirements.

3. This contract Is funded as follows:

3.1. , Funding from the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention.
(ntervenlion and Treatment.

3.2. Federal funds from the United States Oepanment of Health end Human Services.
Substance Abuse and Mental Heallh Services Administration (SAMHSA):

3.2.1. Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Block Grant (SAPT) CFDA 093.959
FAIN 0 TI010035.

3.2.2. NH Partnership for Success Initiative (PFS2) CFDA 093.243 FAIN 0
SP020796.

3.2.3. Medication-Assisted Treatment Prescription Drug and Opiold Addiction .Grant
(MAT-POOA) CFDA #93.243 FAIN 0TIO2674I.

3.2.4. Slate Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis Grant (STR) CFDA#93.788 FAIN
0 TI080246.

3.2.5. State Opioid Response Grant (SCR) CFDA #93.788 FAIN H79TI0816a5

4. Payment for sald servlces shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in
the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
budget line items.

4.2. Contractor budgets include:

4.2.1. Exhibit B-1 Amendment 01 (SFY 19) and Exhibit B-2 Amendment 02 8-2 (SFY
20) which are the total budgets per State Fiscal Year Including all programs
within the contract.

4.2.2. Exhibits B*3 through B-18 which are budgets for the individual programs by
State Fiscal Year.

4.3. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice in a form sattslactory to the Slate no later
than the twentieth (20^ working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.4. The Contractor shall ensure invoices are completed, signed, dated and returned to
the Department in order to inittate payment.

4.5. The Contractor agrees to keep detailed records of their activities related to
Department-funded programs and services.

4.6. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

JS> S TivIaViq intltult EvtiM B AmwUmtnt *1 Coru/Bctaf tnlU*ti ^
dV*CommnftBy M#»©ilAitXutft , .ViX^.b
RFP-20JMDAS-03^COh Pagtlol} Diti 11/T2/IB
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Naw Hampshlra OopartmaAt of Health and Human 3«>vlce«
Alcohol end Other Drug (AOD) Continuum of Caro Syatom Supports

Exhibit B Amendment 01

4.7. The final invoice shall be due to (he State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract Form P-37, Block 1.7Complellon Date.

4.8. In lieu of hard copies, ad invoices may be assigned an electrorilc signature end
emailed to: Michaet.RoQefsradhhs.nh.Qov and Laurie.Heathftdhhs.nh.oov

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified, in Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Exhibit A Amendment 01, Scope of Services,
and in this Exhibit 6.

6. Notwithstanding enything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that fundirtg
under, this contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance
with any Slate or Federal law. rule or regutatlon applicable to the services provided, or if
the said services have not been completed in accordance with tha terms er^ conditions
of this contmcl.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P07. General Provisions, an amendment
lim'rted to transfer the hir^ds wiihln lt>e budget .and within Ihe price limitation, can be
made by wntien agreement of both parties and approved by the Department, and may
be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

JSl t TnWno tittlba B Amcntfnens •) Contrvcter miUa
Cb/a CarrvnuAlrf KatVi Inslluts 1171 0 /1 o
RFP-WIS-BDAS-OJ^LCOH Poo«2er2 II/IZ/JB
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ExMbit 6-1 Amendment 01

SFY 301dBud9et

Now Hempehire Depertmenl of Health end Human Servlcoe

Bidder Name: JSI Reeeerch and Trtnlng Inatltute. Inc

Budnet Regueet for; AOO Continuum ol Cere Syeteme Supports

Budoet Pertod; SFYie (Oeie of C«C • 6/30/19)

Line Item -Provide detoll In budpet narretlvo '.
.• Olroct'-.-. • Indirect Total _.;'

t. Total Solerv/Wooei 669 139.00 1 %. 969.139.00

2. Emoiovee Beneltls s 368.275.00 t t  368.275.00

3. Coniullanta S . S s

4. Equipment: (Inctudes Renleia. Repair A
Malnienance. Purchase A Deoreclailon) 26 OS7.00 s S  29057.00

5. SuppUes; (Indudee euppiiea lor Education.
lAb. Pharmacy. Medical. Office) $ 07.841.00 s S  67.841.00

8. Travel s 5.559.00 I $  5.559.00

7. OccuDancv 96.914.00 5 $  96.9t4.00

0. Current Eiperuas Ondudes Telephone.
Poetage.-Subacrtpttone. Audit A Logei, Insurance.
Boerd Eypenses) } n.529.C0 S $  77 529.00

6. Software } . $ )

10. Maritelrna/CommuntcaUons 515.000.00 1 $  515.000.00

11. Staff Education and Trblnino 26.077.00 6 %  . 29.077.00

12. Subcontrecta/Aareemenia 287.000.00 $ $  267.000.00

13. Other (combined from oiiached program
budoeit) i %

} 6.836.00 S 1  6.836.00

5.110.00 . 8  S.110.00

s 43 300.00 155.077.00 %  198.377.00

.TOTAL s 2.460.637.00 155,077.00 S  2.635,714.00
Indirect As A Percent ot Direct 6.3H

JSI Rmercn end Trelrrino inulMe
(Vbra Convntf^tr HMSn in»etuto
Rf>-20t»>eOA$^AI.COH

ExbibH Vnendmem f1
^•9* 1 c( 1

Conlncnr inidtb
ojk 1 rT)77i B
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EiNbil &-2 Amtndmeni

anr son Budget

New H»fflp«Mre Oepdnrmnt of Hteltn end Humen Strvlcet

Bidder Neme: 1 Reseerch end Trenlnp Inetftule, (nc

Budget Requeet fer: 00 Continuum of Cere Sveteme Suooorts

BudQit Pertod: PY30rr/1/1B-«/3V30)

Line It^ ̂'revtde deisli In Ow^t rurrelive
•Olred • ; • Indirect '

.  • ■ i ■
TotsI

1  Totol SelenrWeoee 604.416.00 * ft 694.418.00

?. Eme#««e Benefits . 230678.00 » ft 330.878.00

i ft

4. EQu<pn>eni; (Includes Rentits, Repair ft
Mnlniensnee. PurchsM ft Oeeredailen) ft 28 818.00 » ft 26.6ie.X

S. Si^ptiei: (inoudes suppUestdr EdwceOon. Leo.
ft 82812.00 1 ft 626I2.X

8. Trewet 9 103.00 1 ft 0.10J.X

7. OcorDtncv ft 69.441.00 1 ft 80.441.W

6. Ctmnt Espenses (Indudes Telephone,
Peeiege. Sudsolptiem. Audit ft legsi. tnsirenoe.
Beerd ExoenMi) 1  71 555.00 * ft 71.3SS.M

B. Senwere • ft ft

10. MirteUnoiCorrvmntciUoru 230.000.00 ft 230.000.x

11. Siaft EduceUon end Trslntno 28 833.00 ft ft 26.633X

12. SuOeeniracts/AareerTwnts 287.000,00 » ft 287.0X.X

1). Other (combined (rom silsched progrem
budoetsl ' ft

5 836.00 i ft- 5.636.00

5 110.00 ft ft 5.110.x

43.300.00 ft 143.120.00 ft 1M.420.X

.TOTAL. ' ft 2.071.000.00 ft 143.120.00 ft 2.21S.020.X

Indirect At A Percent of Direct 6.9%

Jii Rmwi M Tne«ier«AM
CM CMixu«r
nre-niMOAe-AAiCOH

Exttbft Arwttiwe •< Budget
p«ee 1 «r I

Cercnoo' M9d»

0«c' yia
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Exhibit B-11 Amendment #1
$FY 26l9Bud9et

Governor'e Commbelon Funding

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder Name: JSI Research and Traning Institute, Inc

Budaet Reauestfor: Governor's Comhfilsston

'  Budoet Period: SFY19 {Date of G&C - 6/30/19) •

■■ • •..;DirOCf
Lino Item-Provide detailinbudiaetnerratlve ;

..'•.Indirect • Total

1. Total Salarv/Waaes S 161.082.00 $ 161.082.00

2. Employee Benefits S 61.212.00 $ 61.212.00

3. Consultants s - S -

A. Equipment; (includes Rentals.
Repair & Maintenance, Purchase &
Depreciation) $ 4,828.00 $ 4.628.00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab. Pharmacy,

Medical. Office) $ 11.276.00 $ 11,276.00

6. Travel $ - $ •

7. Occuoancv $ 16.108.00 s 16.108.00

8. Current Expenses (includes
Telephone, Postage,
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) $ 12.086.00 s 12.886.00

9. Software $ - $ -

10. Marketino/Communications $ • $ -

11. Staff Education and Training s 4.834.00 $ 4.634.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements s -  , $ -

13. Other (specific details
mandatory): $

. s

Print Gov Corrvnistion Mid Yesr and Annu. $ 2.000.00 s- 2.000.00

$ - $ -

$ • $ 25.774.00 $ 25.774.00

TOTAL,. ■$ 274,226.00 $ 25,774.00 $ 300,000.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 6.4%

JSI Aeseorcn end Tnlnlng InsUtute
d/b/a Cammui^ty Heaiih Initltuta
RFP-201 e-aOAS-03-ALCO)H

Exhibit 601 Amendmanl 01 Budget
. Page 1 of 1

Conl/acior IniliaiiHa)>^g^/c
DalellZmi
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Exhibit B-17

SPY 2019 Budget

/  SOR Campaign Funding

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name: JSI Research and Tranlng Institute, Inc
Budget Roqueet for: SOR Camaplgn Funding

Budaet Period: SPY19 (Date of G&C > 6/30/19)

•  ' •••'I '' •Olrpcr .
Line Item -Provide deUil In budgiiet,narrative ... . -.f : '<

•  Indirect.. . .  Total

1. Total Saiarv/Waaes $ 215,946.00 $ 215.946.00

2. Emolovee Benefits S  82.060.00 $  82,060.00

3. Consultants $ $

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depredation) S  6.478.00 $  6,478.00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office) S  15.117.00 $  15,117.00

6. Travel S  500.00 $  500.00

7. Occupancy 5" 21.595.00 $  21.595.00

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions. Audits Legal,
Insurance. Board Expenses) 5  17.275.00 $  17.275.00

9. Software S $

10. Marketinq/Communications: S 500.000.00 $ 500,000.00

11. Staff Education and Training $  6,478.00 $  6,478.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $

13. Other fsoeciftc details mandatory): $

$

$

$34,551.00 $  34,551.00

TOTAL. V $ i6S;449-..0'6 $34,551.00 $ 900,000.00

indirect As A Percent of Direct 4.0%

JSI Reiesrch Troim'ng tn»litutD
cl/b/0 Community Hesllh IntliMe
RFP.2019-BOAS-OyALCQH '

Exhibit 6-17 Budget
Poge t of t

Contractor (niti

DAto 11/12/18
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Exhibit B-18

SPY 2020 Budget

SOR Campaign Funding

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name; JSI Research and Traning Institute, inc

Budaet Reauest (or: SOR Campaign Funding

Budget Period: SFY20 (Date of 7/1/2019 • 6/30/20)

Line item.-Provide.detail In bOdpet.hai'rative..
Direct Indirect Total : ' '

1. Total Salarv/Waoes S 97.638.00 • s 97.838.00

2. Emplovee Benefits s 37,178.00 $ 37.178.00

3. Consultants s - $ •  -.

4. Equipment; (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) s 2.935.00 s 2.935.00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacv. Medical. Office) % 6.649.00

1

$ "6.849.00

6. Travel $ 4,000.00 s 4.000.00

7. Occupancy $ 9,783.00 % 9.783.00

6. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions. Audits Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) s 7.827:00 $ 7.027.00

9. Software % . $ -

10. MarXetinQ/Communications; $ 215.000.00 $ 215.000.00

11. Staff Education and Training $ • 2.935.00 $ 2.935.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $  •

$

$ .  •

$ 15.655.00 s 15.655.00

. . . TOTAL t '384,34100 $ 15,65lOO

/■

$ 400,'000.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 4.1%

JSi ReieerchTrcining Inathute
d/b/o CoiTvnuniiy Heetib Institute
R FP-201 9-BDAS-03<ALCOH

Echibii B-IB Budgei
Page t oll

ContractOf inilla^^^
D,i»n/I2/18
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OCTOI>1B12.<uO((S {p ̂

■Uttfrt A..Mirn"
,  .CMwUtfantr

CHntw

STATE OF WEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMEM OF HEALTH AND HVMAN SERVICES
Diy/SlOf^ FOR BEHAy/Ofttil HiAlTH

BVA£AUOFORUCAr^DALCOHQLS£RilCES

109 PLCaSaXT STRCCT, CONCOSO. NH 03301
«Q3.27)4II0 I40»«»»43eil«73t

Ftt:M>2)i4l09 TOO Accco: l4aO-n5-2M4
vw*Jbhi.eN.|ov

His £xcelle'ocy..6ovemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honofsbie Councn

Slate House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

SepIemOer 19, 2018

• V • «
'•'V •

REQUESTED f^CtlON
. Authorize the Department" of Health "end Human'Services. Bumau'-of Drug and ■Alcchpl

Services lb enter into a' MroacOve ogreemeni "with JSI Rewanc^ !.& Trainirig Ihslltule
Cbmmunily.Heallh Institute (Vendbr #101811-0001).'SiOl SoiAh'Street. 2nd Floor Bow. NM.033(M.'for
the coordination ot services provided to the New Hampshire Alcohol, and Other Drug (AGO) Continuum
of'Cere System", statewide, Ih an ernouni not to exceed i3,"400,734 eHedive retroactive to October 1,iOIB upbrvGwernor-end-Eiiecittve 'Council approvai through June 30,-2020. 3fl* Federal-Funds.- ̂ ^*
GehereVFunds and^M* 6th"br Funds.'-:

'  • Funds''8re avaiJai^ iri "the fotlowirig accounis for-Slate Fiscal Year (SFY). 2019 and ere-
anticipated to bc avail8ble"'in..SFY 2020, upon the ovaiia^lity and continued epprophation of funds- In
.the future operating budgets, with authority/to.adjust arnpunta within t.he.price lim'rtalion and adjust
encumbrences between,SFYs through the'Budget Office without further epprpval-from Governor ar^
Ex^tive CouricJi. if needed and justified.
05-95-92-920510-25590000HEALTH AND' SCCrAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH ANt)-HUMAN.
SVS", HHS: OfvisiON FOR'SEHAVIpRAL HEAUH,. BURBi^U OF DRUG ..AND ALCOHOL STR-

SFY •  ClassfAccount Class Title -Job Norhbor''
,, . .-..i 1 I.-

Total Ahiount.

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92052559 550.000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92.052559 SO

Subtotal 150.000

08-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: DtVlSION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,

SFY Class/Account Class Tula Job Number To^l Amount

2019 .102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92058501- $324,676

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92056502 $324,676

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92058501 $324,676

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053502 $324,676

SuMofe/ If.29fl.704
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Hb Exccfleney. CMxophr T. SuAunj
er4 KenersM Covntfi

O&-95-B2-920510-33W0O0O HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEW.TH AND HUMAN
SVS. HHS: OIVISfON FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF ORUG AND ALCOHOL. CLINICAL

SFY Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts lor Prooram Sendees 92Q5750.1 S300.000

2020 ■ 102-500731 Contrscls (or Program Services 92057501 S300,000

Sutxotai 2600,000

0S>9S*92-920519-339S9O00 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND iUCOHOL. PF$2

SFY Claao/Aeeount Class.Title Job Number * Total Amount

2010 102-500731 Contracts for Program Seivicos . 92052407. .. $240,000

2019 ■  102-500731 ■ ■ - Contracts for Progrern Servlcesv ■. ■92052408- - ■  . -ITS,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92052407- $240,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts lor'Program Sorvices 92052408' $75,000

Subiolat- S630.000

OS>9S>B2>920510-S935000b HEALTH AND SOCIAL. SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS; DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL; MAT

SFY 'Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92056935 $108,600

2020 102-500731 Conlracis (or Program Services 92056935 $108,600

Svttota] $2(7.600

05-9M7-470010-79460000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF. HHS: MEDICAID & BUSINESS POLICY OFFICE, OFFICE OF MEDICAJO AND BUSINESS

SFY Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2019 101-500726 Contracts (or Program Services TBO S162.562

2020 101-500729 Contracts (or Program Services TBO $441,688

Subtoiel $604.4JO

Total $3,400,734
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His Ejcoeltency. Covemor CMitopTwi T. SumtfM
cnO trio Honeratto Cound

Pope 3 of 4

EXPLANATION.

TW« request is retftfective if> order to continue critical wofV. in .support of a range of j^rpgrams
relative to Now Hampshire's AImIioI and Other Onrg Continuum of Cere 'Syslcnfi.as"'dc^^d.-^jo^!
This approval also wiu allow the Contractor to ^in a time-sensitive examinatioh of the 'ccst-
effectiveness and outcomes of Oovcmor's Commission funded programs.

The purpose of Ihis request te to improve the New Hampshire Alcohol arid Other Drug (AOD)
Continuum of Care Systiem to ensure the cilteens of New Hampshire receive quality prevention,
iriterventlon. ireetmenl ar^d recovery support services.-this statewide ' system -aiigr^ -with the
Departmenrs efforts to establish a v^^person centered, .community-tased. provider system that is
Integrated wHh primary health cOre arid behavlorel heanh.

irY March of 2018. ihe'Gwcmor's Commission oh AOO Abuse Preverition. Treelmeni. and
Recovery' " (Corrwnisiion) ' issued " their ' mid-year' report
tf\ffps://www.dhHs.nh.QQv/dcbcsR)das/documents/mid-vear-commmission-201B.pdn emphasizing the
need to stabU'oe and expand .-support for. prevention, eady. identirication., treatment and ne.ccvery
services; especially for. high-n^igh-need. populstions such as youth, young adults and pregrtant
vmen to ensure accessible, integrated services meet derrtarid throughout the State. Approval of this
Agroemenf'wili'result'W the provision of• training tedinicai'assist'ance.-prog'iom*-evaluation, data
anatysb end interprelaiion.tp support the AQO Continyuraqf C8r8;Sy.sierh...8ctp8>hj.e)8»..Hafnp$W

Servtoes'within this- "Agreement will support-idehtifiad needs and-_msuU- in the^wlte
improvement- 'of • the AOD'Co'rrtmuum of Care Syslem'-ih' fni'li9aiing%8ubstwce-'misQMl "'dntf'Its
conseque.nces for the dlizcns-.of.New Hampshire by: - .. ^ . .a..; \ -v.-

•  inoeasing pfofess'ional service provider's lutowledga. skills and abilities in the use of various
outoome-s.uppprted-.apd evidence-based prpgrams. polides.-.gndprpctices;; •. . • • |

-  ■ Improving ̂ ovider's overall bpeYallbhs 88 they'relate to pr(^iams;'pblr6es.'a^ pmctices';;'
Supporting the integration of-AOD.services within primary and.bohavipra.l-healthfcafe;..' :

^  "pfovrding iecKnicarassi5tiince"-in'lhe form cf 'cori'suttalion' and'guidance'to'essist 'p'rovidbre in
■' buiJdirrg inlemal capacity and increasing knowledge and expertise in the char>gtng lertdscdpe of

heatihcere;

•  Providing program evaluaticn to measure outcomes and processes to continually enhance end
improve the quality of services delivered;

•  Providing data analysis to inform the decision-malung process for SUD services; and

• Conducting cost-effectiveness and outcome reporting activ'rties In accordance wHh H81626 and
spedfrc to the Governor's Commission fundtd programs
(hnp:/Mww.9encouri:st8te.nh.u5/biiLstatus/biHText.aspx?sy=20l86id:1SS9&txlFonT>ai=html).

The outcomes achieved for each of the measures above win be used to determine the
effectiveness of the Contractor's efforts. ^

For 2014-201S In New Hampshire, en average of 82,000 individuals aged twelve (12) or older
(7.2% of atl individuals in this age group) reported having a Substance Use.Oisorder (SUD) vrithin the
past year. The Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services has developed, end continues to improve, the
AOD Continuum of Cere System to mitigate elcohol arxf other drug misuse end to ensure effected
6lizens of New Hampshire receive quality prevention. lAtervention. treatment ar>d recovery support
services.
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EjtceOency. Go^mor Cwitiopher T. Svnunu
and the HonoTBMs^CcuncO

P®9e4of4 •

JSI RjBsearch & Training Institute <S/b/a Community Health Institute was Miected for this project
through a competitive bid process. A R^uesl fpr Proposals was posted on the Oepar^ent.cf .Health
end Human Services' website from May 6. 2018 through July.,2. 20.16. 'pie bepartmerii rece.iyed orw
(1) proposal. The proposal was reviewed and scored by a team of indrviduais with prograrn s^fW
knowledge. The Bid Summary b attached.

As referonced In the Request for Proposals ertd In the Exhibit C-1. Revisions to General
Provisions, of this contr^. the Oeparimeni reserves the option to extend cor^tract services for up]t6
two (2) addriior^al years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of senrices. available funding, egreement
of the parties end approval of the Go^m.or end Executive Council. ■ ' -

NotwIlhstandir>p any other proyiik>n of t.he Contract to the con^ory. rw service.s shall continue
pfter June .30. 2019, and the Oepartment shad no) be llabie for any ̂ ymenta for urvlces provided
after June 30. 2019, unless end until an appropriation for these senrlces has beeri received from, the
state legislature and funds erKumbered for the SFY 2020*2021 biehnla. • >

'' Should the'Govemof ahd Executive Council not eppr^e this request, the Department may not
be able to meet state and federal requirements including Chapter 302 (HB 1626), New Hampshire
Laws of 2016 and the associated federal grants. AddKlonaDy. vaiuabte opportunities will be missed to
support Integrated care, enhance provider skills end abilities; and monitor, evaluate, and improve
alcohol end other drug services. All of these elements ere..imperative to providing.effective services
end making Informed. dala*driven decisions related to the mitigatloh of alcohol ahd other drug misuse
and the social, physical end behavioral health consequences, for' New Hampshire dllzens and
commuftilies.

Area served: Statewide. i " V',. '

Source of funds: 38% Federal Funds from the OHHS. Substance Atiusa and Mental Health
Services Administration. Center for Substance Abuse Treatment:-Su.bstence Abuse Prevention and
Treatment Block Grant. CDFA093.959 FAIN8 TI01003S. State targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis
(STR) Grant. CFDA- 993.768 FAiN 0TIO8O246, end the Medicatlon-Asslsted Treatment (MAT) Grant
CFOA 993.243 FAIN 9TI026741. 38% Other Funds from the Governor Commission Funds end 24%
General Funds.

I

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds vriil not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox

Approved by
Meyers

Commissioner

'Tha thptrunanl of ffulth ond Hutotn Sorriett'MiuJon it tojoui eonnouaitia ond fsmiliet
in pn<^'ding eppertun/tics for dlittfa to tcfiiovo health end indapondo/KO.
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FOf^M NVM8ER P-37 (vmtoD S/flS)

Subject: Alcflhol and Qihw Pn,^ fAQP^Coniinimm of Sriltm SVgWfU fftf

. Wet let: Tbi)i|r«tmeM led ftneriuaitachmmutfail bt^e publieupontu^iuion ioCovcrnof end
Exeeutivt Council for tppnvtl. Any infornitlion ihai b phvttc, conridciiiti Of propfleiery musi
' be clesfly idcniincd to the aiency end eirced to in vniiini prior to si|nlA| the eoniract.

ACREEMENT

TKe SiMc or New Htmpshirc and ihe Contneur hereby muigally a|ree u follow):

CENCAaL PROVISIONS

I. IPEWTtriCATION.

1.1 State A|eoer Name
NK Ocportmciti of Health and Human Service)

I.) Contractor Name

iSI Reicarch A Training Institute d/b/a Cormnuniiy Health
(nttiiuie

1.2 State Agenor Addmi
.120 Pleaaant Strm
Concord, NH0i30'l-3IS7

1.4 Corunetor Addrus

JO I South Street. floor
Sow. NH 02)04

I.S Comracigr Phone

Number '

bO}-J7)-3300

1.6 AMOuni Number

See P>}7 Attachment IT

I.) Completion Date

June30.2020 " • "

1.1 Price Limitation

S3.400.714 • V

1.9 Conlracilng OfTieer for State Agency •;
£: Mar.iaReinjt»lann,-Eid. ,
Oirecto'r''of Co'ntiaai arid Proeuitfh'crii'" ' '

I.IO State Agency Tclcphone.Numbet.
«).27l-9330.

1.12 Name and Title of Coitveoor Signatory

.  fpnithm SwvM. Rrgloni) Olrteier

1.13 AdtnowlC^d^nl- 'Sveof-New HimpaWir, Coiiruy of MtfdeiKh ~ ;• ^ .
Oa-JepuRibn i.]. Vii." . befoK the uridenign^ oHiocr.'penpnally ippcarcd ihe'peraen identified inbtoch Ml.oriatitfDCtorily
proven to be the per ton whose nameb ligncd in block KM. and acknowledged that a/hecxecut^ this doctimeni in ihecapeeiiy
Indicsted in Nock 1.12.

I.tl.l Signiti^ Public Of.Jvtlicc of the Peace.

f.i};2 Nume Peace
■  l!i)r.C9T8RiHfonEi9tmiOctt0ifoSI6

Kt4 .StateAgency.Signaiurc

ival by the A.H. 0<

Date

1.13 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

|^wV\ re. ̂  r'y <•
1.16 Approval by the A.H. OcpartrrKrti of Adminiatraiion. Oiviiionaf Pctaonnel O/opp^lcobU)

By: Director, Ort:

1.17 Approval ̂  the Attorney Ceitcrai (Form, Substance and Exccuion) 0/,epplieobli)

8y:' On

Kia Approvel by (he Governor and Execp^c Council

By: / / ^ On:

ppJko

iii lt

Pege I of 6
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1. CMfLOVMEHTOfCOffrRACTOJWERVICeSTO
fiE^ERTORMEO. Tlte Suu ofNcw HsmpsMit. aetini
(hfm|h itc eiency idcmincd in bloch I.I ("Suvc"). enfiiei
conirector Memir<c« in blect l.) (Xomneier") lo perrorm,
tnd the Cgmmtor thcdl pcrfonn. the mqtIi or ukef |o«di. or
boih. idCAiincd tnd mort poAlcultrly daenbed In tbe itiMhed
Exhibit a wtucn li incofponied hmin by rtrocncc
(-Scnr^ca").

y trrEcrivc oate/compuction or services.
J.i NMwlihitAftdlni tfly protAildo'orihiiAjFttment ihe
c^mry. iMbjeu lo ilw ip^wal of i>i«_Co»ot»or o^
Enciviivc Cbwadil erOtc Sum o'rNsw Htmponirv, if
opplkobli. ilil( Agrcimcnil tnO >11 ebll|MlOAl of >N ponies
hmui^r. snail bcceW sfTciet'i^ on iM dve th« Cowrmer
and Caccw>l«e Ce'urkil appj^vc iMs Agrccrwm u Indicticd in
block l.ll.ualcsi notuchapprovtl iVrr^lrtd. in whicbcosc
the'Agreement shall become VfTcctivt on (he date the
Agrcemcni •$ tigwd by Ihc SUU AgCAcy ai shewn in blodi
i .1« ("EfTcaive OnJe").'

ifihcConnciorcommcncoihc Scrvica priortoihe

ErTcciivc bate, all Services performed by (he Cohu^or prfor
(0 (he EfTcetive Due shall be pcrformcid at the solc'risk of the
Cofl(rac(er,'ond in the event itut-(hl) Agreement does net
become eflceiive. the State shall have no liability to the
Conirocior, inclining'wilhovt limliaiiOA, any obli'ption to pey
the CoflUactor for any eons incumd or Services performed.
Comrecior must cornpleie sll Scrvico by Ihe Corhplction Date
ipcciricd in block 1.7.

4. CpHOITIONAt NATURE or ACREEMEKT. •
Nou^iKsianding any provision of (kit Agrtcmeris to'the '
corursry. ill obiigatibns'or-'thc Stue herevnder.-iiKltrdirtg.
without lirriiiatioh.'ihe'eoiTiinuBAcebr^yrncntj hereundei. arc
cc'nirngehi open the availability a^ cbntln'ued appropriation
difnindsi'snd in-'no event'shall thc'Stai'e bc'llablefor'any '
psyrhenis hertundtr in csceji of iwch available appropriued
furtdt. In (he event ofa reduction or lemiination of
appraprietcd fttrtds, the Siatc shall have the right 10 withhold
payment until ̂ pch funds become available, Ifevcr.and shall
have the right'to terminaic (his Agreuneni immcdistely upon
giving (he Contrac(ar no(<e of such lerntirtation. The Siaie
thill not .be required le (rsnsfer funds fromeny other account
to the Account idcntincd in block i .6 In the event fottds In (hat
Account are reduced or urtsvailable.

5. contract price/price limitation/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The cofltraci price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc Ideniiricd andrrtore patUculariy described in
EXHIBIT 8 which it ineorpomed herein by reference.
5.2 The peymeni by (he State of the comroct price shall be Ihc
only end the complete reimbursement to the Cortiracier for all
expcnKS, of.whitcver nature Incurred by the Coitiracter in the
pcrfomtancc hcreor, and shall be (he only ond the complete
compcTtiaiion to the Conincior for the Scrvlees. The Slsie
shall ho«c no liability to the Contncior other than the eonirtct
pncc.

Page 2

5.} The State reserves the right to ofTset from any amownu
cihcrwise payable to the Contio^'undcr'this Agmmimi
those liduidaied amounts rcgui'rcd or permllt^ by N.H. ftSA
I0-.7 through RSA tO:1< or any wherpmviilononaw. ''
S.4 Notwithstanding isny provision itt this Agreement to the
eontrsry, and noiwiihst^ing uhripected drcumtianiees. (rt
no event shall the total of all paym'enu wihorlzed. 6r ictially
made bcrcuod0.ueeed the Price Lim'nation set-forth in block

1.1.

d. COMPLIANCE BY'CONTSUCTOR WITH LAWS
AND RECULATi.ONS/.tOUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTONITV:

C.I In cofinection with the pc/femanee of the Sci^lces. the
CcniTKior ehall comply with ail natuies, la^ rc'gulatieru,
and orden of federal, cjic; county or municipal authariikS'.
^leh Imposc any obligation or dirry upon the (foniractor.
including, but not lirhited lo. ovd righu'crtd eoual opponuniiy
lavri. This may include (he rtduiromenl to uliirie'au.<iiliary' ■
aids and services to ensure'that pcTiens'wiih''comrnuni<ation \
disabilities, including visiort, hearing artd speech, con '
eornmu'ntca'ie with, receive Infermal'ion fiom, and eonvey
uiformition-td'ihe Cehthfetbr. ■ln''eMiU^;i)uCbnihbor
shall ebmply wiih'sllo^pi^cab'k'cop'jTri jfu'lawi.'
b.} OuVlng ihc'ierht'of ihi's''A'gfve'nWnC.the*Cdwocibr'Shs
not discrimia'ete sgainsi cr^loy^s or-'api^lwts for'*'
cmplo'ymchi brauN bfrim'.color.-'relition; ertcd;' ege,-scs'.'-
hand'tfip, icjcuti orieniMlen. or tiitiona) origin and will take'
afTiNnativt aoion to prcyeni luch'dikriihlnaiibn:. -
6.) If thii Agreement is funM in any'part by monies o'f the
United StBiet,'thr'Cbntrtctor'thall'cbinpl}"wiiK kll the
provitidra'orE.^Kutlvc Order-No'. I l246'(''€()uol' ■'
Employment O'ppohutiiiy"),'OS jup^emcrited by Ihe
regulations' of-the United -Sut'es'.Oeparimerii of Labor (41
C.F.R-. Pirt'60), a^-vrilh a'tiy rvlei,''rcgulationi ̂ d guidelines
as the State of New Hatnpthlix dr ihe'United States Issue to
implement these rcgulaiions. The Contncior further agrees to

-permit the State or United Suta access to any of (he
Contractor's books, records and ■ceounli for the pyrposc of
asceitaiflini compiibnce with all rule, rtfulai'«nj and orders,
and the covenants, terms and condUioai of thi'i Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL
7.1 The Contractor thai) at its own expense provide ell
personnel necessary to perform (he Services. The Contnoor
warrants that all personnel engaged In the Scririco shall be
gualir>ed to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licmscd and otherwise avthorieed to do so under ell applicable
laws.
7 J Unless otherwise amhorited in writing, during the Irrm of
this Agrtemenil and for e period of six (6) months aRcr the
Compltiion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall net hire,
and shall not permit any tubcomractprorothcrpcrton, firm or
corporation tviih wrhom ii is engaged in a combined cfTort to
paform the Scrvicci to hire, any peraon who Is a State
employer oc oflicUl, who It maierially in«ol«^ ir> the
procurement, admlnlitrttton or performsnet of this
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Asret^enu ■crminuionoftMt
Agrtcmem.
7.3 The Ccwanini OfTiccr ipecifkd In block 1.9, or bit or
heruacuor. thcllbc(^cSui€'lreprac<Mlliv«. In ihc event
of any dispute concerning the inierpivtetion of this Agmmeni,
the Coni/Kiing OfTKcr'i decliion ihall be Anel for the Suic.

t. CVCATOF OCFAUtTACMeOlES.
1.1 Any one or tnert of lAe feUewiAg ocu or omiitiens oFibe
Coniroctor ehoH connhute an event of deftuli Hmwnder
("Event of Defhult'O:
1.1.1 feilurc to perfomt'ihe Service* uiilfaetorlly or on
tehedtik',
1.1.3 fiilure to evbinll eny report redtiirtd hcrtundcr, andTor
8.1.3 ibilure to perform anjr other covcnim, term or oonOUlon
of this Agrtemcnt.
1.2 Upon the occurrence of eny Event of Default, the State
may uke'any onc.or tnere.or ajl.ofthc foUo^viAg actions:
1.3.1 give'the C6n|mibr e-wrTiiten aoitCT'^^C'^FihgiliF
of-Oefauii and requiring it to be rcmcdied-'wiihin.-in the
abkncc of a gnedur or'kutf tpccir<csiion^r litrie. ihiny ()(>)
day* from the date of the aoiiec:.ond |f the Event of Ocfiwh ii
not'iirncly remedied; lerTninote ihi> Agree'tneht. efTceiive t'ivo
(3) deyi adcr giving the Gomrador itotice of icrminaiton:
1.2.3 live thc'Corttrecior'a written notice cpcelfying the Event
of Default and twspcnding all payments to be n«de under this
Agrtcmetu and ofderlnt ihst the portion of t2te oomrtct price
which wpuld otherwise accrue to the Corttrtcior during the'
period from the date of such rtotioe'uniil iikh time ts the State
daemlncs that the Contmtor has curtd ihc Event of Ocfsuli
shsll newr be paid (o the Ceniraeior;
I.-3.-3 ui off agoinsi any otha obligetions the State may owe to
the Cohirooor ohy dsmagci (he State ruflert by reason of any
Event of Default; eitd/or'
8.3.4 treat the Agreement as brcKhed'end purtue any of iu
remediei at law or in equity, or both,

♦. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDCHTIALITY/
preservation.
9.1 As used in this Agreemeni. (he «vord "data" ihatl meinall
informiiion and ihinp developed or ebuincd durirtg the
perfomancc of. or acquired or developed by reason of. (his
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all tiudie*, reports,
(lies, formulae, lurvcyt, maps, charta, sound recordings, video
itcordingt, prctorial reproductions, draw4np. artalyso,
graphic representations, eompuia programs, computer
pn'rttouu, notes, letters, memoranda,-papers, and documents,
all whcihn finished or unHnished.
9.3 All dau and any property which has been reccii^ from
the State or pttrUia^ with funds provided for iKat purpose
under this Agreement, ihtJI be the property of the State, and
shall be rclurnicd to the State upon demand or upon
termlnaiionoflhii Agreement for any rcaaon.
9.3 Confidcniialiiy of dau shall be gevemcd by N.H. R$A
chapier9i>A or other exirting law. Ditclosure efdata
requiro prior written approval of the State.

Page.'

10. TERMINATION.-In tM event of an early lemtinailen of
(his Agretment for any reason other than ihe.compleiion of the
Services; the Contractor shell deliver to die Cbniractlfig
Omcar, not Itier than APecn (15) days after the date of
termination, e report (Tennination Repon") describing in
deuil all Services performed, and (he oontraei prioc earned, (O
and including the dilc 'ofterminatibrv. -Thc fonrt. ivb>cct
maiiCT.' Gonieni, and number of copia of the Tcrminatibn '
Report shall be idcniial to il^ of any Final Rcpon
described in the eriached EXHIBfT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RCUATION TOTHCrTATC. In
the pcrrerma'ncaofthis Agreement the Cemrieter li In all
rtipecta an tndependcni nntneiof. wto is'neither anageni nor
an employee of (he State. Neither'iha Controcter nor any of its
officers, c'mpleyeei, agents or mcmbets shall have authority to
bind the Sutc or rccciim eny bencriu, workers' oompcniaiion
or other cmelumcnis provi^ by ihe Stau to its employees.

12. ASSlCNMENTfDELECATION/SUBCOhrrRACTl
The Cohiracttr-thiirnoi 'assign,'err ot}icr\wtc tronsfcr any
Interest in this Agrctrncnt without'^ prior wfinen notice and
conserit'ofthe State'. Noneofihe'Sfcrvicei-iliali'bc
subcontracted by ihc Coniracior without the prior written
notice andcortseniof the State.-■ •=* '-'i ■■■'•»••

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Conlnetortih'ili-dc'rc^.
Indcmriiiy and hold harmleti the State, iii ofAccrs and
tmpioyea. from and eiainsi-iiny artd all loises sufTcHed by the
State; its ofTtccn-and employees, and anyend all elalnis,
liabii'itio or penalties ssscrtcd-agiinfl the State, in ofTicas' •
and cmploycts; by or on behalf-of enyperaon.'on ac^.nt of,
based or resulting from, irising.bu'i bf for'whlch moy'bc '
clalmol lo'ijlic'eut-'oO'the oc'ls or priiiulo'ns of the
Co'nvoctorl Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contain^ than be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

.sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby '*
reserved to the State. This eovenani in paragraph I ] shall
survive the lerntinoiion of this Agraemeru.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and thaU require any tubcontracior or
Bsiignec 10 obtain artd maintain in force, the following
insurance:
14. I.I comprehensive general liability Insinancc sgainn all
claims of bodily Injury, death or property damage, in amounvi
ofrtoi less than Sl.OOO.OOOpcroccurrerKC and S2.000.OW
aggregate; and
14.1 J special csuK of lots coverage form CDvenng all
property subject 10 lubpa/egreph 9.3 herein, in an amount not
lets than lOH of the whole rcplaccmaii v«lue of the prgpeny.
14.3 The politics dcieribcd in tubpa/agmph 14.1 herein shall
be OA policy forms and cndorKments approved for use in the
Sutc of New Hempthire by the N.H. Depanment of
Insurance, and iuucd by inturers liceited In the Suie ofNew
Hampshire.
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M.3 Tht CoAlictor ihsirfumiih to ihc Conraciin| OTice'
id^iiried.ln block 1.9. or bi» pr hcr'iucceiM', i ceniricAt<(i)
of iniUfinct for oil intvrtncr retired wntfcr Ott* Ag/ccmcni.
Coftirocior sKtll olio Kiraith to lb( Coouocting OfTtCCr
idemiricd In Woek (.9. or hifor Ker iwcccisor, c<Ainc«ie(l)or
iiuuroneit for ell rmewolfi)of insurvwc rcquirtd under (hii
A jretmcnt no Uwr ih'en ihinjr (JO) deji prte* to the wpireiion
dMCorcachofOteinsurentcpi^kke. The <uiir>ciU(l)of
inturtMc •nd eny rmonis thereof thftit be eluched end ere
ineerporawd herein b]r rcfecnce. Cichcmjrfek>c<i)or
trriurtnee thell cenuin • citute reqwlHn| the Inturer u>
previdt the Corttreciins Officer ideniir«ed in block 1.9, or hii
or l«r' tucceiior. no Icu than ihlny (JO) d'syi prior wrllicn
Mike of eeneclletion or medirieiiten of policy.

IS. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.
IVI By tlgnlng ihii igrcrmertl. (he Contrecter egrrce,
cM'ifics end'wreirenis thai the Controctor ii in' cp'mpliencc with
O^eaempi froni, iMc'rc^uirementaorN.K. RSa ehipier 2I1«A
/■■iJ'eVAirrr''Conrpemor'on "V-
7J.J-to-ihk esienitlie Coo'ifb'cipr ri-cu^tei to the-
I^Cd'ulremcriu df-N:W. RSA; chapter JSIi'A; Contreaof ihall
rnVnioih\'end'requiri-'eny iubeoAtroctor'breijiilrke'toire'wie
o^'Malntain-paVnt'^lef-Wdrlieit'Cdmpchnilo/i'in '*
tbnrieciibh Wth activilid which the pc/ion propotca to
undcnohe purtuiru to thii A|rccmcm. Control tholi
rurni'iK ikc-Gontiectiht OfTicer-idviinod in 1:9,'or hii
orhcr'ttkccstor.proororWofkeri' Cdmpenaiiion in Uk
mvincr described in N-.HrRSA'chspcerlSI-A'arid'anx
tppticobib'rciievrel(s) thereof, >iC)ich shall be aoachcd arid are
-incorponied herein by rrfeTencc. The Stax ihall net be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
prcihiumi of"fef any other elaim-or'bcncfii for Conirdcior.or
any luboomreoor or empbyre of-Conirocior; whkh migN
a.risc trnder-opplicable State of Ncv* Hampshire workers'
Compensation laws Inconhcetion with the ^rform'ance of the
Servk'ei under this Agreement! ' •

t6. waiver or BREACH. No failure by the Stau to
enforce any proviskms hereof aAo any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Crenl of
Ocfautt, or any subsequent Event of Oefivh. No express
failure to cnforec eny Event of Ocfiuli shall be deemed a
wtWer of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
previsions hereof upon any further or other Cvcriiof Ocftuli
on the port of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any noike by a perry hereto to the other pany
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certify mail, potugc prepa'id, in a United
,Sutcs Post OfTicc addressed to the part'rcs as the addresses
given in bloeks 1.2 end 1.4, herein.

I& AMENDMENT. This Agretment may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an inftntmcni In vwiiing signed
by the parties hereto and only sRer apprevai of such
amerrdmeni, w«iv& or ditcharge by the Governor and
Excevtlvc Covncilefihc State of New Hampshire unlcuno

fueh approval is roquired under the eircumstinces purevtnt to
State tow. rvic or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OP AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed In'accardance with the
laws of ihe State of New Htmpshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the pardea airid their rrspeciive -
svecessora and asigns. The warding used >0 (hiy AgrtcmcnV
ti the wording chosen by the panies'to c.xpros iKeir mutual
intent, and no rule ofoonsirucsion shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PAR'neS. The parties hereto do not inlend to \
bcncfM thy third'parties and ihii Agretment ahairnot bar'
construed to confer any swch'bcntlU. /

21. NEAOINCS. The hcsdingsihrewghout the Agrccmeni
■re (or refcrtTKc purpesa only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way. be he'd to explain, modify, amplify o*
• id in the interprdaiien, consifuciron or meaning of the
previskmi of this Agreement.

21. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions ki
(brth in the auachcd EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

2J. SEVERaBILITY. Inihc event any ofiheprovlsiortsof
this A greemeni are held by a court of compacm Jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
piovisiortsef ihii Afreemeni will remain in full fotte and
cfTeet,

24. ENTIRE agreement. Th'is Agreement, udtkh may
be c.vccuicd in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an ori^nal, eonsiiitttes the entire Agreement and
undoatanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agretmemj and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of4
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New Hftmpehlre Dtpaftmenl'of HoBlth tnd Kumm Service*
Alcohgt eM Oiher Drug (AOO) ConUnuum of Care Sj^etem Suppo^

P-37 Attachment 0 f

Bdx.1.6 Aaowni Nvmbert

0S-4S-.92-2SS9-S00731

0S-9S-92-3387-S00731

0S-9S-92-)]ai'-^0073t

«S-95-92-3]9S-M»7)l

.0S-9S-92-693S-S0073i

OS-9S-47-794r-S0O729

> a>}?MiKk(MAi t i UfirKWMidM

<VV>Ca>«rM(Tf H««kH
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New Hemptrure OepertinonI of Health end Human Strvkoa
Alcohol and Othof 0«V9 (AOD) Condnuum of Core ayetam Supporta

CinibitA

Scope of Sflfvices

1. Provj.sLone ApplicBbte to All Services

1.1. The Contmctor shall submit a detailed description of (he tan^usge esslstance
services they win provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meenlngful eccess to their programs endfor services within ten (10) deya of the
contrect ertective date.

1.2. Tho Contrector egrees that, to the extent future leglalaitvo octton by the New
Hampshire General Court or federol or atalei court orde'ro moy heve an impact on
the Services described herein, the State ̂ ency;haa.'jhe. right to mod.tfy .Service
priorttles and expenditure ^uirementa, under this .^reemeni so .es. td, achieve
compliance therewith. <

1.3. Nofwllhstandlng any other provjsipn.ofthe Contract to.the,<^tr^, no.aeryrce's.sheo
continue efter June 30. 2019. end the. Oepertmenl shall not be iiabte for any
payments fcv services provided after June . 30. 2019, unless and until en
-approphatlon'-'for these'se^icea'h'as be^n recefved ir^-the aiaie leglsJature end
fundS'ehcurnbered'for the SFY 2020-2021'ar^ SFV 2022-202^ bienni'd.-'

2. Scopeof yVLork-. ..

2.1.'Training ■ ■

2.1.1. the Contractor shall provide trainings to address the .needs of the'State's
Alcohot and Other Oryg (AOO) Continuum-.of Cer.e service pmvtdprs.. The
Contractor.Shall ensure trslntngs: • - . - r:>'.

2.1.1.1. Complement technical essisiance (TA) provided.

2.1.1.2. Are oonsisteni with the required profess'tonal elandards for- proyUers
- and the worldorce which Includes, but is not llmhed to Partnership (or
Success (PFS) granteei.

2.1.1.3. Are ofTefed. based on (he availabllify of space, at no cost to Bureau

of Drug and Alcohof Services staff.

2.1.2. The Contrector' shall provide ao&s-system (raining to ensure professional
preparation and woddorce developmeni for providers (n behavlorarheallh and
primary healthcare fields who vrarli with individuals and families addressing
substertce misuse related issues.

2.1.3. The Contractor shall identify the training needs of the wodtforce by:

2.1.3.1. Soliciting feedback fromthe Oepanment.

2.1.3.2. Collecling end enafyzlng pari'icipani eveluation feedback for

individual trainings ar>d on en annual basis. '
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2.1.3.3. Meeting monthry with iho Coniradof's 81^10 wek inpjt eh UDlnlng
needs besed oh TA ̂ovided.

2.1.3.4. Pehiopating in workforce development education and t/sinlng
committees (o team whet other agendas ere Intending to.ofler end to
inform these agencies of the ContractoFs training piahs.

2.1.3.3- Atiertding Ccensino and cefllTicatcon Ooard rrteelings to Identify
provider r>e«ds.

2.1.4. The ContfBCtor shall deliver, (reirvngs as rollows.- per Slate-Fiscal Year:

2.1.4.1. A minimum of'forty-nine (40) inrporoon -troinlngs or^'collaPoralive
educational events Including, bgt not-timiied to: , ^. '.. ,

2.1.4'.1-;V. Core, Intermediaie.. and advanced Isyel-trainings which meft
licensure and certification needs.of the wortdorca;

2.1.4.1.2. Trainings spodfictolheneedsof PFSgrontees; and

2.1.4.1.3. Targeted trainings and .cpllabora1iv<e,,aduutipnd evem^^
- ■ the direction", of the be^nment!j||^8e<^^^^^

and technical essislarice'ne^s'.

2.1.4.2. A'mmirhum'"olfour(4)onHjerhafMwet>in"3r6.'

2.1.5. the Contracts ehaJf 'create and pFovfcle 'tr^Wng ;8uit«
sysiematiV .a^pfdai^ to rrie'st credentta'iihV and ' 'oohifhuri^' ̂ ucdtioh
requirements.""which must be approved by the Oapartmeni. The Contractor
shall ensure training suites:

2.1.5.1. Are scheduled sU (6) months to e year in advance.

• 'r:.'-.'2-'.T.5;"2. Are avaitoble every'three (3)to four (4) monlhs." "'

2.1.5.3. Include offerings for individuals with AOO credeniiais requiring
credentialino and/or continuing education inctuding. but not (imiled to.

2.1.5.3.1. Certified Prevention Specialists (CPS).

2.1.5.3.2. Certified Recovery Support Worttere (CRSW).

2.1.5.3.3. Licensed Alcohol & Drug' Counselorshi4aster Licensed
Alcohol & Drug Counselors (LADC/MLAOC).

2.1.6. The.Contrador shall manege ihe training program by:

2.1.6.1. Planning end coordlrxailng un'ique training activities that are
affordable and non-dupiicalive of other trainings available in New
Hampshire. •

jSmtMtfcAiTraMnQtfuiBvt* (tftUA C«nv*carmna
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2.1.6.2. Delivering training by appiyinQ-e spectrum ol 'adutt le'amln'g
meiriodoiogies, in sucri a way as to-reach audiertces statewide
including, but not Drnited to;

2.1.6.2.1. Providing onsiia Isee^to-foce training.

2.1.6.2.2. Providing diatence learning ■ opportunities such as
asynchronous end synchrooous educalional experiences.

2.1.6.3.. Ensuring that any education programs deitvered on-line or on a
wet>5ite;

2.1.6.3.1. Meet NH DolT requiremenis.

2.1.6.3.2. Do not attow trie visitation to be tracked for analytics or'
mariteling.

2.1.6.3.3. -Do'not maintain, i^ore. or capture ̂  ddrtol luriher disclose
any protected rieehh information (PHI), personal information

'■ (PI);-or other, confidential- info<met'cn;> 6olicrted-either by
. social media or (he wepsite,except .es exprj^ssiy. proyided.in
.thecontrad;. . /.

2.1.6.4. Recording, monitoring, end eyatyating delivery pftralning.actrvfiiet.,,.
2.1.8.5. Maintaining a LearningManegement System. . ■■■}■.. :x-n-

2.1.6.6. Maintaining a training calendar that lists ell Contractor training events
and has Gnks to other related (raining calenders as-epprppriate. -

2.1.7. The Contractor sh^l evaluate the training program by:

2.1.7.1. Evaluating each compteled training, at a minimum, for.
•2.1.7.1.1. Training content.

2.1.7.1.2. Instructor knowledge and ability.

2.1.7.V3. Transfer of tmowtedge. sliiils end ebillties to training
participants.

2.1.7.1.4. Wheiher the training met the staled goals and objectives.

2.1.7.2. Providir>g training eveluelion protocols, for Department approval
within forty-five (45) doys of the contract effective date.

2.1.7.3. Domonstraling an elghv-Ove percent (65%) or belter rating of trainee
satisfaction through training evaluations, based on aggregate,
quarterty evaluation dale

2.1.7.4. Admintsiering en annual training needs assessment, beglnnlrrg within
sixty (60) days of contract award, or>d every twelve (12) months
iheroafler. to essess, at a minimum:
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2..1.7.4.1. Cenificatfon and llcensurs needs;.

2.1.7.4.2. Training level and topic needs;

2.1.7.4.3. Preferrtd formal and frequency;

2.1.7.4.4'. Diubililies or learning preferences, ar^

2.1.7.4.5. General raoommcndatior^s for trainings

2.1.7.9. Providirtg key findings of training evaluations end annual survey
results lo tne Oeportmeni for consWeretlon end feedback for training
pl3nnir>g purposes.

2.1.7.6. tJiDizlng'resuns from training evatustions and anntial surveys to
ensure-cootinuous qualify Improvement of the tratnino program;

2.1.6. The Conlr^or'^aO-provide all msterlais. equiprnent, end'physipai space, as
waii as. logistical arid support for the training and education programs
delivered. •

2.1.6. the Contractor 'shell provide approved Continuing Education Credits,
eppiicatiie"'td the' training audience''end-'ceftificalibn'-'needs.' as vNiil as
certificates of completion to partidpants who cornpiete the. Minings. • .•■

^.1.10.T^e Contractor -shaD rr^intain a list of trainers, as approved by the
• Oepartment. for a variety of topics and shall ervsura all irairiers are qyalHled io

teach respective courses. . v.-.: .i ,. .-.v ;■>.

2.1.11. The Contractor shall promote training programs through activit'ies that include.
but ere not (irnitcd to: .1. . •. ;i..- v i<-. ;

r.t.tt.t.Olsseminatihg available' training 'opportunities to professional
nehvoflcs and Boards;'

'2.1.11.2. Coliatxvoting with lha Oopartmenl to pronrale opportunities'with their
fuTKfed contractors including through the Contractor's Communities
of Practice (Cop's);

2.1.11.3. Posting ualnings on the Contractors chronological listings of
profes^naldevelopmenl ectivilies;

2.1.11.4. Sharing training Information through monthly newsletters: and
I

2.1.11.5. Providing largeted marketing with specific associations based on
I  training topic.

2.Vl2.The Contractor may collect registration fees from training participanis in an
amount I'tmiied to expenses for training that exceed (he amount fur>ded by the
Oepartment. The Contractor shall:

2.1.12.1. Provide a copy of the training fee schedule within ten (10) days of the
contract affective date lor Department approval. ^
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2.1.12.2. Report revenues generated by regisiretioti fees by; submltiirtg
monthfy fmertdat dets thet Includes, but b not limited to the original
budget monthfy oxpertdituree. end monthly revenue received.

2.1.12.3.£nMre that eny financial informaUon gathered os part of e
registration fee wiD be protected es required by state rules, state
taws, or federei laws.

2.1.12.4. Reinvest a minimum of eighty percent (801^} of the revenue
generated from registration fees collected to enhonqs the. trainIrtg
program es .epproved by the 6epartrr>eht. The Ccntr'ector iihell:

2.1.12.4.1.Contribute a minimum of $2,000 per elate fisctf year toward

■  schotarsNps. . 1

2.1.12.4.2. Provide coffee, lea. end «^ter/w Irei.nirtg eyenb at no oosi
to partidpants using reinvesi^ l^enue: ■

2.1.12.4.3. Invest in capacity to deliver end support trainings by:

-2.l.12..4.3.l.ExpaAd.lng..rernptc tralnl.ng ehendonce.through the
.  .. use of .rpmote viewing software erul equipment.

•  . .....2;i..12.4.3.2. Allowing for enhanced irainings.uites. ••

'-2:1^12.4.3.3. Providing' targeted and skiii^buitding training.'as

.. .... approved by the Dopartmenl.

2.i..i2.$..Repp.rt .-revenues.-egfiinsi. reinvesttnent . fund, totals .end-, report

•  -.progress as part-of-nx^thly financial reporting.

2.1.13. The Contrector shall admlnisier e process to receive ar>d monitor s^otarship
applications, the Contracior-ehsD;

2.V.13.1. Coordinate payrttent for award scholarships to the New-'HempshUe
AOD workforce for ettervdance at approved training opportunities.

2.1.13.2. Ensure a minimum of len thousand dollars ($10,000) per state fiscal
year Is reserved lor scholarships.

2.1.13.3. Ensure a minimum of two thousand dollars ($2,000) per state fiscal
year is added to schotsrshlps from revenue reinvestment funds, as
referenced in Section 2.1.14.4.1.

2.1.13.4. Ensure all scholarship applications are submitted to the Oepartmeni

for review and final epprovat.

2.2. Technleel Aeslelance

2.2.1. The Contrector shall provide technical assistance (TA) to the AOD workforqe
end direct service providers that:
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2.2.1.1. Complements end supports Usinln'ss Identified In Subseetioo 2.1.
Trelningsi ftbovo.

2.2.1.2. Increases professionel service providers' knovrledge. skills, end
aMities <n uelr^g voriout outcome-supported end evidence-Oased or
evidence-lnrormed prosrams. poTcies. and pract'ces.-

2.2.1.3. Supports effective implementation of the fulf spectrum of substance
misuse' prevention, inlervenlton. treetment end recovery supports
e'ervfces that are Intepmted with prtmery and benavtorai heaitn care
and oDgn with the Oepartment'a efforts to eetablisn .wHote person-
cantered and community owned ayatems of cans.

2.2.2. The Conlrector shall provide TA in a variety of formats, vmich.rn^ indudo^
are r>ot limiied to:

2.2.2.t. Pece-tO'fece. inporsonmeetlngs, . ,

2.2;2.2. Virtual meetings fnciudlnfl, but not limited to:- •;./

*• '2.2.2.-2.1.-Web-besed.cortferendno:

2.2:2.2.2. Webinsrs.

2.2.2.3. Site visits.

2.2.2.4.' jaiepriona caDs and emails.'

2.2.2.5. On-line and in-personCornmynitles of Prectlce.

2.2.3. -The Contractor, shall pmvide TA to providers and tfte worfcforce on targeted
iopic8,-.basC|d on:emerging Issues and needs, as directed by the Oepartment.

. 2.2.4. The.Contractor shad use e prqect management system, approved'by. the
- OelMrlment, to efTidantly monitor, manage, and report TA requests.

2.2.5. The Ccnlrector shaD utilize online platforms, approved by. the Oepartment, to
provide discussion forums to agencies served.

2.2.6. The Contractor shell provide TA that ensures program fldaGty whQe meeting
state and federal grant requirements including, but not limited to;

2.2.6.1. The Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Federal Block Grant

(SA8G).

2:2.6.2. Partnership for Success <PFS) Grant.

2.2.6.3. The MedicatiorvAasisted Treatment Prescription Drug end Opioid
Addiction (MAT-POOA) Gram.

2.2.7. The Contractor shall partldpaie in ell ratovani fodoral programmatic webtnam

associated with the Oepartmanrs awarded granla including but not limited to
PFS. SABG. and MAT-PDOA
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2.2.6. The Contrecfor shell utilize subject mener experts, es epproved by the
Oepsrimeni, \o erthence the TA actMties.

2.2.9. The Contrector shell provide TA to the Department through seeking end
writing proposals for other federel grants as directed by the Department.

2.2.10. The Cont/actor shall establish e process for ideniifythg. selecting, guldirtg. end
supporting promising progfems in becoming a NH;«ndorsed, evWenoe-
informed preverttion-program. Ai o mtnimum. the Contractor shall:

2.2.10.1. EotabUsh' an evidence-Informed wotkgroup lo deyetop and .martage
ectivilies which rosutt in idemification-es.e NH-endorsed prevention
program. •

2.2.10.2. Convene. fadlilBte/'and maintain a panel of informed natioitai and

,  . local subject matter experts to deterrrdne.lhe.efflcacy of programs.

2.2.10.3. Eifiptoy NH's Service to Science prode'sS; whose'guidetinea ere
modeled from tfte Substance AbuM .and. Mental , Heaiih. I^rvices
Adminislretion's (SAMHSA's) prt^ss, which:

2.2.10.3.1.. Establishes core elements pf-an.eyidenra^based.prBcflce;-:^.;-

2.2.10.3.2. Ensures tfw approach Is grounded in reseiarcfi; ' '

2.2.10.3.3. Ensures valid end reCeble data are coOected end analyzed to
delermino program cffecirvenessl and ' ■

2.2.10.3.4. Requires Irr^lenientetlon supporl Induding. but.r^ lirnited to
^  ' meteriats, manuals er^ training tpsy'ppch.replica^

2.2.10.4. Coordinate, convene, end facilitate the NH Expert Panel, which
.  .. represents muttipla sectors, statewide and nationally tn the Tipld of

.  prevent'cn and b respcnsrble for reviewing eppl'icdlions subrrtiRed th
'  - ' ' ' the NH Servica to Scbrtca Process.

2.2.10.5. Ensure the epplicatlon process includes the review and scoring of
the applieatiort by an expert panel. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.2.iO.S.i.^piicants meetlrig application criteria are endorsed as
Promising Prodlras in prevention.

2.2.ip.S.2.App(icants endorsed as Promising Precllces in prevenlion
are giver^ the option to continue vrith tha process to become
endorsed as en evidence-based practice in prevention.

2.2.10.6. Collaborate wfth the Deportment to improve upon the current NH

Service lo Science process by estsbllshlng an evidence-informed
workgroup to Identify tnnovelive NH-besed programs that exhibit a
level of readirvess to enter the process of becoming a NH evider>ce-

informed prevention program.
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2.2.n. The Conimctof fthtfi faciiitaie end provide technical end logteticai support (or a
r^iimum of seven (7) online Communitiae ol Practice (CoP). which are
designed in (he formet. frequency and leftgth detemiined by the Depedmoni
end include, but ere not timited to:

2.2.1 Substance Misuse PreveniioA (SMP)' : \

2.2.11.1.2. Student Assistance Programs (SAP)

2.2.11.1.3. Young Adult Stretogies

3.2.11.1.4. Continuum of Carp

2.2.11.1.5. TrcetmonI

2.2.11.1.6. Medicetion-Astisted Tmetment.

■2:2:11.V.7. Recovery Sup^ Servioos' -

-i.2.i2.' ' ' the'(3f6ntfect6r ihad meintein'the N^hiempihire Center (or ExceDencd'e
current -'pu'b(i^f8ci^'v^bsli'e (w^i^rnhcenierforexceitence.org)' that'.^'et 'e
minimum' proMdes hesl pr^lce and-'other 'pr6(e$'sional''es:slsl8n'ce information
theilnciUidslHrtlsnot'lim^ed-io: • ••

2.2.12. i. Air publlc^'ions arid ccniehi creeirt through this'cb'n'iract.
2.2.12.2. Webpages (or each C«P that (ndudes posting en materials Irtcludlng

meeting presentetidn ilide decks; audlo -rec6rdtng$;''que^ion's en'd
onsWers asked dufir>g meetings,' and'other'ibotVehd rcsb'ufMs!"

l2.i2.3.A (isling'''of ^ lechnicdassi'stenbe'end-trairtlhg oppodtlnllieshindad
through thjs contract.

. 2.2,12.4. A clearinghouse list of other education and trainir>g,6vents (hel are
available.

2.2.13. The Contractor shall develop, update, and upload website content (or the NH
Treatment Locator httpy/nhtreslneni.org/, at the request of the Oepartment.

2.2.14. The Contrector shall review end evaluate the New Hampshire Treatment
Locator website (hnpsV/nhtrcetmenl.ore/) in coilaboralion wkh the Department
to further refine the treatrrkeni tocelor by identifying additional anhancements
end features which shall include, but not be limited to: >

2.2.14.1. Improving the ease of use and managemeni of the treatment locator
and database.

2.2.14.2. Exploring the feasibOty of reeMima treatment availability and
allowing providers to access and^updaio their treatment availability.

2.2.14.3. Imptamentihg processes to ensure directory listings are up-to-deta.
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2.2.14.4.iddntrfying end implsmenling e process to improve coordination ot
edits and new provider Ostings.

2.2.14.5. Identifying, key providen and organizations through which the CerUer
win actively promote the treatment tocstor.

2.2.15. The Contrector shatl coltaborate with the Department to ensure that the
website In Pa.ragraph 2.2.13 b designed, created, and managed acoording to
oD NH DoiT ̂ bsite requtrenftents. and that any protected health information
(PHI)., personal information (PI), or other confidential inronnst.ion •elicited, will
not tM stored or captured on tho wob.slte ar^ shall not be further disclosed
OKcapl OS provided by contracf. Unless notice b cloerfy provided on the
website, the Contractor agrees that website vbitation will not' be monitored
aryj reoorded'for'website analytics or marketing.

2.3i Program Evaluation

2.3.1. The Contractor shall develop methodologies, in collaboration with the
Department, to evaluate ihe overall en^n^eness of the-AOD Continuum of
Gara •System--which "will include. • but'- riot - ''be' lirrttbd'';lo'''d^topin8.
implementing.'end administertng toois; surtmys. jsrahs. end'progmnvlavel logic
models.'

2.3.2. The Contractor shall provide a summary ol evaluation results obtained In
Paragmph '2.3vl to the Department arid program'stakeholders'. The
Conlractor shall ensure the summary includes, but is riist limrted-lo: ■

2.3.2.1. bemonsl^ed progress In meeting tmplemenlalion goals.

213.2.2. An eKpiar\8tion of challenges and successes thai contributed to the
outcomes. .

2.3.2.3. IdenUficatton'ot opportunHies for improvement in Implementalion to
lead to improvod outcomes.

2.3.3. The Contractor Shan utilUe subject maner experts, as approved by the
Department, to enhance the program evaluation activities and scope of work.

2.3.4. The Contractor shall evaluate and provide support to programs funded by Ihe
Department, es directed by the Department and required by each funding

- source, to ensure program fidelity and that federal and sWe evaluation
requirements arid program outcomes are being achieved incfuding. but not
limiied.to:

2.3.4.1. SABG, wftich Includes a minimum of one (1)- independent peer
review per state f'scal year to assess the quality, epproprteteness.
and efficacy of treatment services.

2.3.4.2. The Partnership for S'uooaes (PFS) Grsnl.
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2.3.4.3. The Medicetlorv-Asslsiod Tresuneni Preecrfptton Orvg end Oploid
AddJctbn (MAT.PDOA) Greme.

2.3.4.4. The State Targeted Response to the Opiold Crisis (STR) Grant.

2.3.4.5. Governor's Commission Programs martaged by the Oeparlmenl.

2.3.5. The Conirector ahalt panldAtite In «II (ederal evaluatiort v^binera essoclaled
with the Depsrlmenrs ewarded graiMa inctuding. but nol limited to PPS,
SABG. STR. and MAT-POOA. '

2.3.6. The Contractor shall. In consuHetion with the Oopartmont;

2.3.6.1. Devotop ovf^Qllon documonts required tor stolo'snd federal grants.

2.3.6.2. Provide data es requested, by the DepanmeiM.

2.3.6.3. Participate in SAMHSA evetualion and programmatic wobinars.

2.4.'OBtA Collecdort, Anolyeto, titterpreUUon. Repcrllrig, and Support

2.4.1. The Contractor shall assisl end support the Department Ihq cqilMlon.
onaVeis. Ihterpreiatioh. and reporting of data tor' the pulses of mprovlng
and informing'^ substenoe mbuse policies, programs, end practices. The
Contractor shall ensure ectivhles include, but are nol llmlled to:

2.4.1.1-. Identifying exbtlng dsia evailabia, at the federal, etaie. and local
levels thai cart be utilized for prbttom idenUfuten aa well as
etr^'^ies end servicesto effeci'veiy address Ihe^ b^es.

2.4J.2. Idenilfytngmethodolog'es.fordaiacpnaciion. ,

2.4.1-.3. • Idenlftyingreporting reculremenis>.

-2.4:1.4. Gathering and compiling relevant drug and >atooho> 'use-disorder

'' • Information end date.

2.4.1.5. Anafyzing and translating data Into a vartely of formats.

2.4.1.6. Feciiiialirtg the ooBection end repohing of data.

2.4.1.7. Coilaborallng with contracted providers.

2.4.1.6. Integrating quality dels assessment pro^dures into regular data
managemeni prect'ices.

2.4.1.9. Developing a summary report of aggregale data.

2.4.1.10. Developing narrative responses.

2.4.1.11. Preparing documents as determined end requested by the

Department.

2.4:2. The Contiector shall employ seftwere. systems, and tools approved by the
Department to analyze quentiteiVe end qualitative date.

jSiftakMitnarrakilngkMaiM , • ExtiM* CanmiarMUt)
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2.4.3. The Contractor Shell support the repoftmg needs of .the Inlemal Oeparlmerti
Data OashOoard by.essisiino with oaihertng and provtdir>9 data from relevant
sources, as directed by the Oepirlment.

2.4.4. The Conirector shall uliiae subject maner experts, as approved by the
Oeparimont. to enhance the data analysis, interpretslicn and support
acuvtiios.

' 2.4.b. The Contrector shall doslgn and publish compiled reports using data supplied
by (he Dep^rnent end through other sources, upon the request of the
Deportment; consistent wtth oil' state end fede'roi ruiee ond lows. ' Tho
Conir^or^oll ortture compiled reports include, but ore oot Hmhed to:

2.4.S.v -Reports related to SUD prevention.-lreatmeni. end recovery support

services provided and oulcomes achieved, stelewida. inciuding but
not limited to en ennualsystem teyp( status report.

2.4.5.2. Tafgeled reports on ernc^gir^ts.sues..^. , v.

2.4.6. The Contrector-shail provide repori&'in' user-frtendiy-'end'accessibtet'fortnets;
es directed by-the'Oepartmeni lrcludiftg^ but-not'iim)ied.to';!K<: -I'-.t

,  2.4.6,1. dalesumma/ios. ■ • -

2.4.6!2. Issuebricfs. T !

2.4.6.3. Slide presentations. . r. : .-.i- ■

2.4.6.4. Written

2.4.6:5. Daia'dtohboards. ci^rts'end^phs" •• • •' • •• •

2.4.6.6. Tables thai visually represent data ertd research findings.

' 'The Contrector shall r^intain the prrvecy and confldentlellly of hon-
" daidenliftad information obtained, gathered, stored, or trartsmitt^'by' ections

^  ' inciuding. but not limited to:

2.4.7.1. Locking access to en eieclroruc and print Ttles;

2.4.7.2. Ensuring (hat sensitive data is never stored on users' personal

accounts with any citwd-bdsed service; such data are only to be

stored on corporate accounts wiih services that are speclf'caify
approved for the storage of sensitive da.ta;

2.4.7.3. Ensuring all senslthre informatjon are encrypted m transmission via
SSL. TLS. or similar rrechanlsms. usir>g FIPS<oomprtant Gbrerles for

cryptographic fundioni ond that sansiUve data Is not transmitted

over insecure connections: and

2.4.7.4. Ensuring ail oehiitrvo data ere riot stored on third^party servers,

unless those third-partir providers have agreed, in wrfiir^g. to pmtecl

JSi nttMfcn A irrtntiQ msuw CiwyiA Ca>tr>QBiMaa
COBVTMltr HMSt IA«UM» Z
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the data as required by law, regulation, and by agreementfa) wflh the

data owner.-'AJ) agreomenta with Ihifd-party providers must be
approved by the CIO, COO, or President ol JSI.

2.4.7.9. EnsurioQ that data, atalistlci, or information .derived from the data
that directly or inferentially identifies any tndividuat(s). Irtcluding
cases, family membere. or providers, shall not be published or
released in any form.

2.4.8. The Contractor shai.) maintain the secure siorago of eu notvoeidentKted dato
obtolned, gathered, stored, or trgnsmitt'od by'ony oonsuhorit or eubcontroetbr.
The ContVoctor eholl ensure:

2.4.8.1. All sensitive, non-deidentified data is stored on en encrypied, secure,
HIPAA-oompliani drive.

2.4.8.2. .Only authortKcd Individuals listed in ̂ peCiTc date use agreements ere
perrriiiied to eceeu these re^ective data.'

.2.4.8.3. Ml woritstBtions and sarvers .utilized by staff ere equipped with:

2.4.6.3.-1-. .Up-lo-date anb-virus soffware

2.4.6.3.-2. - Up-to^ate n^aVrare detection and software fbewalls.;

2.4.8.4. Data on arsenrtrs on) backed up r^lghtiyVerid'an-teckup'rhedla' is
stored in secured locabons and irartsmilied in'tocked cdnt^iners.

2.4.8.9. A minimum of or>e of ell data aire.ctor'ed in' a sbcure'biie'stdra^e
localionio assure d^a recovery in the everito'f'diu^ef!

2.4.6.8. Backup mpdia wfvch is utilized (o rebuild all aervers and wortistatlons
10 ensure backups are being performed and are.etfective. ■

2.4.8.7. The secure drive •containing the data is sanitized by wiping bnd
overwriting the data In multiple passes upon completion of eny data
retcnlioft period.

2.4.6.8. Ail media conleinlng nsn-pubiic dale are destroyed in a manner that
ensures date are not reooverebie.

2.4.6.9. Electronic storage devices ere physic^ly destroyed or sanitized by IT
staff before reuse.

2.4.8.10. Disposal of data storage devices that are no tongor required are
eulhortzed by an IT Manager, who certifies that aD company end

personal data hove been removed from them p^r to disposal.

2.4.8.11. Device or media destruction is performed by o qualifted dato-
destruction organtzeUon. witnessed by on tT staff member, end

documented In wrfting in instances where devices or media are to be
destroyed prior to data cteening.

JSI AoMreh 4 TfiMng InitUX* tjiMMA CantrKtar liVM,
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2.5. NH Youth Risk Behavior Survey

2.5.V The Conirsctor shall provide edminlsirative assfstanca to the Oepart/neni for
the implementation ■ of the b^nual Centers for OlMasa Control and
Prevention fCDC) NH Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS) which Includes, but
is not limited to:

2.5.1.1. PrintinQ. dellveiy end dlstribuiion-of eppronmalely 45,000 paper-
based surveys 10 more than eighty (eO«) panictpeting public high
schoots statowldo. formattod-In oceordance with the requtremenis of
(he COC (hnps://www.cdc.govrheeiihyyou(h/daiel^ro'Vdate:titm) end
tho Oeponment. In booklet fomt;

2.5.1.2. Collectlrig end scanning completed surveys;-

2.5.1.3. Developing a clean daiaset of coded results: and

2.5.1.4. Providing' the. date to (he Oeparimeni in .a clean deia file in ASCII
format.ensuring thial any pfolMed..he8lth ̂ formation (PHI) or SUO
data induded In ihio rvports is disclosad In ooconlance wllh slots
mla's, state and federal taws. irKludtng the requirerrtent's of 42' CFR
Pan2.. ■■

2.6. Covemor's -Commission on Alcohol and Oth'er Drug Abuse Prevention.
Treotmenl. and Recoveiy lCerhmlsslen) i.

2.6.1. The Contractor shaD design and publish semi-annual reporls for"lhe
Commission in ecCord8r>ce wHh RSA'l2-j:4. '

2.6.2. The Contractor shairpro^de adminlat'railve'suppbh-end technltar'aisiblahbe
for tho Data end Evaluation Tasktorco (Taskforce) of (ha Commlsslpn-'whlch-

Includes. but Is not limited to: - ' • • •:-. •••-•
• . • • /

2:6.2.1. Convening Teskforce nternbers at (ha direction of the Taskforce and
the Oepartmeni.

2.6.2.2. Managing end fecilileling e minimum of Six (6) meetings per year,
which includes, but is nol limited to mainieining records of meetings
and ectiviiies related to the Taskforce.

2.6.2.3. Devebping and imptsmenting practices end processes that ere
demonstrated to be effedtve including, but not iimSed to:

2.6.2.3.1. Devebping capac'rties for sustaining the Slate
Epidembiogicsi Outcomes Workgroup (SEOW).

2.6.2.3.2. Developing useful products and disseminating produd
information to liey dedsbn matrers.

2.6.2.3.3. Cbntinuousty evaluating data and systems for effectiveness.

Cwmwrey Hum uiuho t/il/il
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2.6.2.4. identifyinB and retrieving deta uts from a dtversd group of suppilera
of relevant data and translating data into a variety of fdrrnate.

2.6.2.5. Participating with the Depaitment in the oollecttoft and enaiysie of
data.

2.6.2.6. idenUfyir>9 key data tndicaiore for usa In monttoring progreea aoosa
provtdare and program areas.

2.6.2.7. A&sembilng o dashboard of meesures for seml-ennuai reportirtg as
directed by RSA .12>J;4.

2.6.3. The Coriirsctor ahoD coordlrute with the Doperiment lo onture the

Commission Is meettng ell data collection, analysis, end repoding
r^utremants as articulaled ir^ RSA 12'J.

2.7. Ccat'Cfroctlveness Reporting

2.7.1. The Contractor ehal) create end produce a Prog^rn jr^ntory Report,, m
accordance;W(th Chapter 302 (H81626). New.Har^psKi're\ewa'df 2016,Tdir
the Commission and the Department with a proposed target date trf December
1. 20l6.'(or:the COmrhission's reieaie proposad^'by sJ8nuary>.'-1-«.('20l0;>':that
irtciudes en inventory of atl'Blcohol.and''drug'-at>usapfavanilp.n;:ireatmant.i8nd
recovery programs-furided in whola or in>part by iha.Cbmmlsslon';.

2.7.2. The Contractor shell ̂ svre the Pfb^ram InWht^'Roport Inctudds, but lis'not
limited to, thPfoBowIng information foreach progrem:- •

2.7.2.1. Programdo^rlpllpb.' '
■  2.7.2.2. Intended outcome. •••

2.7.2-.3. Target participant poputalion. ,

2.7.2.4. Ovorsighlagency. .

2.7.2.5. Annual budget.

2.7 .2.6. Average cost per partidpeni.

2.7.2.7. An essessmeni of the evidence of effectiveness for lnier>ded

outcome.

2.7.2.7.1. For this report, 'evidence of effeciiveness* means

documented resufls of evaluation assessing the effect of the
program on (he Intended outcome for program participanis,

or program benefldarias In the case of prevention programs.

2.7.2.7.2. This may include results of program evaluation conducted In
New Hempshire or on evidence rebng dovoloped by
matching the program to available research using neUonalty

recognised clearinghouses of program evaluations,

rSl RvMV<m * TfiMne IfUBMa EiNMA Contrvclw bV3«l»
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inchtding, but not limited to. triose included In the Pew-
MacArthuf Results Fbet Cteeringhouse Database.

2.7.3. The Contrector shall submit e wort-plan for the Progrsm Inventory Report to
the Oepartmeni within 30 days ol the contrsci elective date.

3.7.4. The Contractor shall create arnl produce a Cosi-Effedlveness end Outcomes
Report, in eccordanoe with RSA 12-J:5. (or the Commission and the
Oepartmeni no later ther> Oecemoer i. 2019 end ennuaoy thereaner for the
Commlsslon'8 releeoo no loter trtor> January 1- ol the following yoor thai daiolis
currently funded programs Inctudlng. but rwt limited to:

2.7.4.1. Findings relative 10 the outcomes.

2.7.4.2. Aggregate data end reports on findings relative to the outcomes as
eppliceble to different progrern goals and context which may include,
but not bie limited to:

2.7.4.2.1. Deldentifted participant / client demographics.

2.7.4.2.2. Durolton of partlcipaUon or average length of slay.

2.7.4.2.3. Changes in knowledge, betiofs. Uihs end behavior.
2.T.4.2.4. .Program completton by progrerh type inking.'but 'not

lirnited to:

2.7.4.2.5. Diagnosis.

2.7.4.2.6.. Primary drug oi use.

2.7.4.2.7. be-identiried. aggregate client demographics for treatment
• progrerris ' '

•  •2.7.4.2.8. Referral pathways ir>ciudtng. bui not limited to:

2.7.4.2.0.1. Primarycare.

2.7.4.2.0.2. Justice system.

2.7.4.2.8.3. Mental health system.

2.7.4.2.8.4. School system.

2.7.4.2.9. Treatment capscify versus utilization.

2.7.4.2.10.Progrerrvieveit/estmeni outcomes Including, but not limited

to:

2.7.4.2.10.1. Subsisnca use reduction or abstinence.

2.7.4.2.10.2. Housing status.

"  . 2.7.4.2.10.3. Recidivism.

i  . 2.7.4.2.10.4. Employment.
JSiRuMitn4T/mMietr«imft* EtfAOX CmnaerlnEittS
AW* Ci*i*iM''Oy Ktim maA
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27.4.2.10.S. Education program status.

2.7.4.2.10.6. Engagement with recovery supports.

2.7.4.3. Cosi-effecliveness of progrems and projects.

2.7.4.4. Evid'efKO ot effecUveneta of programs furtded <n «mote or in part Py
Ifio Commission.

2.7.5. The Coniroctor ahaii ensure me Cosi-Effocilveness and Outcomes Reports
contain on oveiuation of a rr\lntmum of four (4) programs identlflad by the
Commission, as follows:

2.7.5.1. Tbe'lnRlai annual report will address four (4) treatment programs.

2.7.5.2. The second annual report will addr^ four (4) provention programs.

2.7.5.3. The foOowtng annual .leiMrta will ellemate between tre'atmeni'and
prevention programs.

2.7.5.4.- Programs'wiD be chosen from the -ten '(10) highest'annual dollar
value pr^fams.'-excluding lawenforcerneht-programs. -' * ' ' '

.  . --.t-.--:..!-;-

2.7.6. The Contractor shall ensure the cost-«fTect)vengss.Br^lysis.p^om^d.perTpH^^
comparisons betw^n selected programs n^hin a.given catego^., , . .

2.7.7. The Contractor shall ensure the annual Cost-Effectiveness end Outcomes

Reports: .-.-i , ■

2.7.7.1. Represent outcomes as program effects ■ on"th'o--participant

'  ' population', not docuryientetlon of the delivery of the program.

2.7.7.2. I/Kiude cost-effectiveness eneiysis using en econom'c evatuatibn In
wttich the costs and conseguences of eltemative interventions are
expressed as cost per unit of outcome.

2.7.7.3. Identify evidence of effectiveness by assessing' (he effect of the
program on the intended outcome for program participants, or
program beneOciaries in the case of prevention programs.

2.7.7.3.1. This may Include results of program evaluation conducted in
New HempsNre or an evidence rating developed by
matching the program to available research using nationally
recognized dearinghouses of program evaluations including,
but not limited to (hose included in the Pew-MacArlhur

Resu&s First Clearinghouse Oaiabate.

2.7.6. The Contractor shell submit a vmrti plan to the Department for the cost-
effectiveness anatysis within thirty (30) days of the Governor's Commission
IdentKication of the four (4) programs to be analyzed.
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2.7.9. The ContfBCiPf stvai) panldpaio in eny wortgroups of comminecs established
by the pepartment and/or the Convnission to evaluate tlw usefulness of the
cost'Cffecttveness reporting and incorporaie eny modifications to the process
ds developed in the vrorlioroup or committee where approved by the
Commission.
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2.6. PortnorsMpfor Succeoa

2.6.1. PArtfler8h)pforSucco8ft(PPS)201S

2.6.1.1. The Conlre.do'' shell provide TA end eveluetion support for (he
OepsrtiTtenl end suh-grentees fur>ded through SAMHSA's
PahrterBhlp for Success (PFS) 2015 Greni. The ContfiKtor.ehen
ensure TA includes, but is r^ollimited to;

2.6.1.1.1. Designing surveys.

2.6.1.1.2. Reviewing eveiuetlon edmlnisiretton procedures.

2.6.1.1.3. Reviewing evaluetion reporting meihodoiogies.'

2.6.1.1.4. Ar\aiy2ing the odministrailon of evaluation resuhs.

2.6.1.1.5. Aggregating school-level survey er>d young adult detfi..

2.6.1.1.6. Pahidpeling in the OeperlnnenCs Partnership for Success
advisory and evaluation teams.

•  2.8.1.2. The Contractor shell ensure ell.federal reporting for;the.PF$-20i5

grant requirements ere met.

2.6.2. Project Success Studertt Asslitance Programs

2.8.2.1. The Contractor shall provide services for the Student Assistance
Program in order to increase.staff end provider knowledge and'slulls.
The Contractor sneii.ensure services include, but.-are-rwt-ilmited to:

2.8.2.1.1. Training.

2.8.2.1.2. TA.

2.8.2.1.3. Program evaluslion.

2.8.2.1.4. Data analyeis.

2.6.2.1.5. Interpretation olovetuation results.

2.6.2.1.6. Support.

2.8.2.2. The Contractor shall review the following evaluslion sirategies with

the Department and sdvisoiy group for possible Ir^usbn in the
evaluation plan;

\

2.6.2.2.1. Process data; Refers to vrho Is receiving which
interventions or information and when.

2.8.2.2.2. Knowledge eiUtude end behevlor (KAB) Informotlon:
Typfcaity collected utilizing eurveye. bul may be -gathered
through direct observations or qualitative epproaches
Including, bul not limiled to focus groups or surveys with

JSInmtrcA« Trtinlnc CammOMWUto
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parents or teecAers. ensuring parental oonseni a obtained
,  prior to compteting KA8 coOection from students directly.

2.8.2.2.3. School perfofmance and dlsclbdnary dete: Considers the
change in grades, truancy, end behaviorsi issues through
baseline betora tne student started with SAP end through
change el the end of school yeer. wtiich reouires having
ecpess to individuat level data for each-pahidpani es wet! as
an aggregete summary of eii students (n the same school
and time period for comparison purposes.

2.8.2.3. The Contractor shell provide recomme'ndotioni» on date products

based on the evoluetion findings of the Pf S 2015 grant to a variety
of stake'hbiders which include, but are not limited to:

.2.6.2.3.1. Schooladminbtralibn's.■■ — ■
2.8.2.3.2. Boards. '

2.8.2.3.3. "CommunWIds. ■ ■ ■ ■ ^ i\ \ -^yv
2.8.2.3.4. The Governor's Commission on Alcohol end Drug Abuse

Pravenlton; Treatment and Recoi^'ry.

2.8.3. Young Adult Stratoglee

2.6.3.V The Contractor shell provide information and TA lb the Regional
Public Health Networiis' (RPHNs') Substanoe Misuse ProvenUon

- -Coordinators end Ydutg' Adult Cbordtriators related .to the Young
>  ̂ Aduit-Sirategies. for.young adults ages eighteen (18) through twenty-

frve (25) years, rageming tmptemantJng end mcnttorttg evidertce-
•  informed stratagies. eswefl es planning and facdiiating a Community

of Prectico. The Contractor snail ensur© TA may Include, but Is not
limited to assistance wiih: -

2.8.3.1.1. Coordinating and developing content for orientalions.

2.8.3.1.2. Developing Impiementatjon manuals.

2.8.3.1.3. FaclCteting strategic planning and training in the .application
of the Strategic Prevention Fremeworlt.

2.6.3.1.4. Providing learning opportunities through the use of su^ecl
matter experis.

2.8.3.1.5. Developing tools to collect evaluation dale that meets federal
reporting nKiuiremonts.

2.6.3.1.6. Consulling wilh the Department on agendas.

2.8.3.1.7. Securing speaters/presenters.

JSl Rmwtt 4 TraMne bvOtvti CtfiWA Cflntrvciw wa«f>
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2.8.3.1.8. Training, tfevttoping. and gosling resources on- -the
Contredor'swebsile.

2.8.3.2. The Contrector shell develop and implement en evaluetion pien. In
consuR'eiion wUh the Oeparrment. for Young Aduti Strategies Ovn is
consistent with federel requirements.

2.8.3.3. The Contractor sheO administor a statewide online survey for young
eduRs ages eighteer> (IB) tnrough thirty (30) yeera thai ahall be
ovotiabte for responsa for thiity (30) consecutive days arxi shaO
begirt within sixty (60) days of lha initiation of the conlrDCt.

2.6.4. Media Meeaeging for Young Adults

2.8.ii.T. The Contractor shell provide TA lo the RPHhTs related to the
ongoing young adull sociel nSedts cempaigh that'specifc^ targets
tl>e young adult popuiation/eges eighteen.(18) through, (wenty-ffve
K2S) years, in orxler to creete awareness :.o.1 the rtslis of underege

...drtnkcr^ and high-rtsli stoohot use,-such as binge dnnlting.

2.6.4.2. The Contrector shall .conduct edMiies to ensure the delivery of
substance misuse proveniidn'social media rttessages Is eppropriate
for Bvarfatyof^nues. •

2.6.4.3. The Contractor shsD ensure activities include, but are not linruted to:

2.6.4.3.1. Developing en evaluation plan of the young aduR social
medla.campaign Oepertment approve!.

2.6.4.3.2. trnpte.mentlr^.lhe epprovpd.evelyalion plan.

.2.6.4.3.3. Providing.a written report of evaluati.on findings tnduding
• • . .V --'.iv-. » recommendations for bn'pfovements. • • -

2.6.4.4. The Contrector shall deploy campaign strategies thai era culturaPy

sensitive based on the evaluation findings er>d recommendaliorts.

2.6.4.5. The Contractor shell provide services, es approved by the
Department ihet inciudi but ere not limited to;

2.8.4.5.1. Martetlng:

2.6.4.5.2. Strategy development.

2.6.4.5.3. TradRlonel enc digital advertising.

2.8.4.5.4. Public reialionr.

2.8.4.5.5. Madiet research.

2.6.4.5.6. Formative research.

' 2.6.4.5.7. Creative developmenl and production.

JSiflvMarehS Tnitino imlivia CiMM* CetVKwmuei
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2.0.4.5.6. Media planning and buying.

2.6.4.5.9. FuDweb Mrvicea.

2.6.4.5.10. Augmented reality.

2.6.4.5. n. GeP^iargeting.

2.6.4.5.12. User-experience design.

2.6.4.6. The Contractor shall implement digitet media campaigns, as
approved by tho Ooportmcnt. that Include bul ere noi limited to:

2.8.4.6.1. einge-Free603: What's your Reason?.

2.6.4.6.'?. Preppy-partier peer crowd campaign

2.6.4.7. The Contractor shafi ensure, any website or madia campaign
accessing or gathering user Information shall not store, retain, or

'  'coiled personal idenltfying information of the'user.' Including'IP or
email address.'

2.6. Building Longrlerm Sustalnablllty for Workforce Dovstopment

2.9.1. The. Cor\tractor leverage multiple resources end partnerships to build
long-tem woritfdroe sustaihebKiy end to Increase end expand Wortforte
developmenieffons thai address substance misuse. " ' ''

2.10. Outcomes , •

2.10.1. The. Contract,or. shall priovidc serviQCS that jpsyfl. irt imprpvetnent of
policies, practices, dau coiiaction. end ana.ly.sis of the AOO. Corjitinuym ,of
Cere system to mrtigato substertce misuse end Its consequences for
individuals by:

2.10.1.1. increasing professions) service provider's hrwwiedge, sktDs ertd
ebiiiiies in the use oi various ouicome-supponed end evidence-
based programs, poiiciss. end practices;

2.10.1.2. improving provider's OvoraU operations as Ihey relate to programs,
policies, and pradices:

2.10.1.3. Supporting integrallon oi AOD services within primary end behavioral
health care;

2.10.1.4. Providing TA in the form of consultation end guidance on doiivenng
outoorne-supported end evidence-based services in order to esshR

provWers to build Intimsl capadry and increase knowtedge end
expertise to me changing lendscape of hecithcsre;

.  2.10.1.S. Providing program ayetuallon to measure outcomes end processes
in order to c^tlnuaiiy enhance end improve the quelily of services
delivered; and ^ ̂

tAWA C«m«nw istwi
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2.10.1.6. Providing data enefyab. Ir^cluding InierpretBlbn end translation of
data, to inform the decbion-making process.

2.10.2. The Contractor shell collect dale to monSor Implementation of contract
activities which sheU include, tut r)Ot to limited to:

2.10.2.1. Padidpaiion in trainings and CoPs..

2.10.2.2. DISMmJnatlon of products ond dale.

2.10.2.0. Measurerrwnl of the outcomes 8mor>g those reached by those
activities using;

2.10.2.3.1. TA setisfecUon evetuation surveys.

2.10.2.3.2. Training seiisfaclion evaluation surveys including en annual
Iraining rteeds assessment.

2.10.2.3.3. CoP satisfadion evaluation sunreys

2.10.3. The Contractor shall employ quality improvement activities for each scope of
service activity area. which includes, but is niot limited to;

.  -^:-l0..3,1. jCrealingtand employing a work plan for each scope of work identifted
in this Exhibit A.

2.10.3.2. Studying evaluation findings to continuously refirte. improve, end
adept future activities as needed.' "

2.10.3.3. Reviewing progress (owerds planned .ectfvllles end obj^ives with
"  ' ' 'the departmenl.

2.10.3.4. Addressing any challenges by sharing fincRngi iwlh ihe Departmenl
end determining appropriate strategies to address the chaDenges;

2.10.3.5.Establishing a minimum evaluation result as eppficabie. with;inpui
from the Department end ensuring; •

-2.10.3.5.1.Evaluations with findings below (he-established minimum

• standard result in the start of a quairTy improvemenl cyde.

2.10.3.5.2. Quality improvement cycles will be implemented based on

annual findings

2.11. Project fManegement

2.11.1. The Contractor shall meet with the Departmenl, es requested.

2.11.2. The Contractor shall establish a project management strategy, as approved by
(he Depoitrhenl. (ha( ensures:

2.11.2.1. All project (asks and ectrvitles era identified end monitored.

2.11.2.2. Potential Issues impacting oulcomes are Idonlifled.

eiMMA ConncKr UIW*
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2.11.2.3. Deliverables are met es Wenlifteb in this Exhibit A, Scope of

Services.

2.11.3. The Conlrectof shall conduct a projed kick-cff meeting with the Department

and identlTted project staff within ten (10) business days of (he contract
effective date to review proposed project managemeni strategy.

2.11.4. The Contractor shan provide a work plan/timeline to the Department that
Oeflnes the mtiesioncs.. oaivliles. dettverebles. due dates, and enticipeted

ataffing needs for each ecope of wont wHhin ten (10) Puslnesa deye roDowtnp
the kick<011 meeilr>g.

2.11.9. The Ccrilractor ihaD fediitate regular futMeam meetings' to erasure all staff
remain Informed of current vont plan actMlies. materials.-teyetopment

initiatives. Emd ail overarching project issues.

2.11.6. The Conirador Shall distribute minutes from meetings, prpjed.mater^is. ̂end
re^rces across all project.'slpff. trKludih^.. tVe.'.Oef^'rtmen^^
neNwrVeid. ctood7Sh'arir»g'pl8liohri that facliiteteVc^fe.borelto^ '

3. Deliverables ■■ ■ ■ i .;■■■

It.Trelnlng

3..1.1. The Contractor shall deliver trelnlngs as (ollows. per slate Hscai year:

3.i-1v1... A.minirhum of. tpity-r\mo (49) in-person trainings Including, but nol
.iimilcd to; . . . ^ .

.  <"• - 3.-1 .A. ■ Core, intermediaie. end. advanced level trainings which meet
licensure and eertifcalion n^ds of the workforce;

•  :.'3.1.1.1.2. TrainingsspecifictotheneedsofPPSQfenteesiand "
3.1.1.1.3. Targeted trsininga as determined by the Departmenl

3.1.1.2. A minimum of four (4) orvdemandwcblnars.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall, edministsr an annual training needs e^ssment,
beginning no later than sixty (60) days of the contract effective dale, and every
twe^e (12) months thereafter end shall provide key findings to the Department
for consideration and. feedback for lralnlr>g planning purposes er>d to ensure
continuous quality tmprovemsnl of (he training program.

3.2. Technical Assistance.

3.2.1. The Contredor shall provide a list of TA requesis to the Department for
approval on 8 weekly basis.

3.2.2. The Contractor shall compile a list of TA provided end shall include this in the
written monthly progress reports detailed in Section 3.

JS> Rtm/Ok S Tnwro Cantr»ao> tatori
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3.2.3. The Conlrsctor shall fadfitate and-pfovica technlcaJand logistical supppn.fof a
maiimum of seven (7) online Communities of Practice (CoP). which are
designed in the format, frequency and length determined by (he Oeparlmeni
atyf include, but are not limited to:

3.2.3.1. Substance Misuse Prevention (SMP)

3.2.3.2. Student Assistance Programs (SAP)

3.2.3.3. Vourtg Adult Strategies

3.2.3.4. Continuum of Cere

3.2.3.5. Treatment

3.2.3.6. Medication'-Asststed Treatment

.3.2.3.7. Recjovety Support Services

3.2.4. The Contractor shall identify a minimum of one (1) NH prevention program,
per stale-fiscal, year, to participals in the NH Service to Sclertce process.

3.3. Program Evaluation , u -- !/.-J'-.-rW y.-.?-'

3.3.1. The Cohlractor .shall'develop, in consultaiiOh with the Department evaluetlon
documants required fcK state and.federal.grants, . •• •, .. .. ..

3.3.2. The Cbr^tractor shell supply the Departnvent wlth ell dodj'rrients-bnd'-findings
relative .to the inctopendent peer review performed within each state fiscal
year. • . . . .

3.4.NHrRBS. .' ■■ i. . '

3.4.1. the-Contractor shaD''print, petkage,-deliver end 'drstribiAe a Vniriimum of
"  '45,opO surveys to a minimum of eighty (80) pahlclpaling public high schools,

y  'statevnde.

3.4.2. The Contractor shall collect and scan completed surveys ervd devplop a clean
daiaset of coded results and provide the data to (he Department In e cteah.
dale file in ASCII format.

3.5. Oovernor'e Commlselon

3.5.1. The Contractor shall publish (emi-anrmsl reporls for the Commission in
accordance with RSA 12.J:4.

3.5.2. The Contractor shall manage and facilitate a minimum of six (6) meetings per
state fiscal year of the Governor's Commission Data end Evaluation Teslcforoe

3.6: CoBt<«ffect]vonose EvBluotJon

3.6.1. The Contractor shall aeaie and produce a Program Inventory Report, in
acoordence with Chapter 302 (H81626), New Harnpshire Laws of-20l8, for
the Commission end the Department with a proposed target date of December

JS»R«#«rtft*Tr»lnhflbN»{t!vl» ErfOUA ConVlOOfl
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1, 2018 for (he Cofnmbsion'e release proposed Py January t, 2019, thai
includes en inventory of at) elcohoi ortd drug ahuse prevertilon, treetmens. end
recovery programs fur>ded In whole or tn pan try the Commission.

3.6.2. The Contractor shaO create end produce a Cost-Effectiveness end Outcomes
Repon for the Commission end the Depanmertt no later than Oecember i,
2019 end ennually thereefter for the Commisslon'o release no later than
Jenuory 1 of the foflowino year that delaib currently furkded pfogroma.

3.7. Pertnerehip for Suecees

3.7.1. The Contreaor ahaD develop on eveiuetion design for the Student A&ststence
Program sbrty (60) deys from the oontred effective date.

3.7.2. The Contractor shall Implement the evatuottor> of the Student Assistance
Program' no later than ninety (90) days from the oonlract ̂ ective dale.

' 3.7.3. The "Conirector shall provide the Oepartmeni end PFS Student A&sistence
krogrem'sub^edplenis with analysis of data provided tb.-the Contractor by the
end of each fiscal year.

3.7-.d.- the ContmitOf ShaU'donduct TBi e cnmimum 'rdur (4)-focus groups- wllh
stakeholders associated with Student Asslstende'Pr^^'s fiscaryeer.'

3.7.5. The Contmctor shen submit the Young Adult Strategies evalMtion plan no
later than thirty (30) days from the' cbntract effective da'te for •6ep^'ftmeni
epproval.-

3.7.6. The Cohtr^or shall implemeni (he evaluation of Young Adun Strategies no
laterlhan'nine^(90)dayBforlheoo^tredef1ec(^e dat^.- f . > . -

3.7.7. The Contractor shall provide iha bapadment vnih ehaf^'of the'evaluation
■ data wilhin 60 days after (he end of eech fiscal year.

3.7.8. The Coniractor shall submit the Young AduR social rnedia campeign
evaluation plan within siify (60) days of the contract effedrve date for
department approval.

3.7.9. The Contractor shall implement ihe evaluation of the Young AduR social media
campaign no later then nir\ety (90) deye from contract effective date.

3.7.10. The Contractor shell provide a written ropod of the Yoyng AduR sodat media
campaign evaluation Ondings. including reoommendellons for Improvemenis.
no later then sixty (80) days from the dose of ihe evaluation.

3.7.11. The Coniractor shaO launch the 'Prappy-Padief' media messaging campaign

by September 30.2019.

3.8. Reporting and Meetings

3.8.1. The Conirector shall provide a wrinen monthly progress repod to the
Oepadment related to acconnpiiahmenis of the contract g^ end

jSi Amvcn S Tnbuio imttwu EifOiA Cbrmoanngm*^^...
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perlormanoe measures, for each scope of worlt. which IncJudes. bui is hoi
limiieO to;

3.8.1.1. A summary of (he key woht performed for each scope of wort durlrrg
(he monthly period.

3.8.1.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues.

3.6.1.3. Scheduled work for the upcomng period, w

3.6.2. The Contractor shall meet ot laatl quenorty vrttn the Ooportment to review the
otolua of ell contract roquiremerMs for each scope of wort Including.-but not
llmiled to:

3.8.2.1. Work planshimeiines for each scope of work (or the upcoming

Quader

3.6.2.2. Anticipated stafTmg needs for each scope of woik for the upcoming
quarter;

3.8.2.3. Potential risks, barriers, end issues for each scope of work, that may

Impact outcomes; Inctuiling e miiigatioh strategy for each;'and

3.6.2.4. Quarterty nnenciai reports (hat dearty identify costs charged as (hey

relate to work done per scope.

3.6.3. The Contractor shaD complato end submit en end of year report no later than
alxfy (60) days efler the end of (he staia Tocal year which provides, at a

minimum:

3.8.3.1. A complete program overview;

3.6.3.2. Accomplishments lowards program goals arnf performance

measures linked to outcomes end Including'r'eturfi di^ 'thveslihent
data for each scope of work: end

3.6.3.3. End of year finandai report. ,

JSi kmwtn i TrsMne imtivi* EaNwa C«nMcX9> ran
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1. The Stele ehao poy the Contractor en amount not to eiceaO the Form P-37. Block 1.6. Price
Limjiatior^ for the eervtces provioeO by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit a; Scope of
Services. %

2. The Contrador-agrees lo provide the lervlcei tr> Exhibit A. Scope of Service in comptiance
with funding reoi/lrements.

3. THs contract Is funded 86 follows:

3.1. Fundtr>o from (he Governor's Commisston on Alcohol ertd Drug Abuse Prevention,
intervention end Treetment.

3.2. Federal furuts from tho Untied Slates Department of Hestih and Human Servloes.
Substance Abuse arrd Mental Health Services Adminislration (SAMHSA);

3.2.1. Substance Abuse Preveniton A Treatment Block Grant fSAPT) CFDA 093.930
FAINOTIOt0035.

3.2.2.- NH, Parlnefship for Success Inhialtve (PFS2). CfOA 093.243. FAIN' '0
. SP02'079e.

3.2.3. . Madicalion>Ass'eted Treetmeni PrescripUon Drug end Opiold Addiction Graot
. (MAT>OpA)CFbA#93.243FAW0TlO2B741.

'  3.2.4. State Targeted Response to the Opioid Crisis Grant (SIR) CFDA093.788 FAIN
0Tip8O248.. ' ■ "*■"

4. Payment for.said.serv^s^shan be made monmfy as foDo^:
4.1. Paymeni shoIl^bO on e cost reimbursement basis for ectuei:eKpendilures irwurred In

the .futfiDment ot this ogreement. and shall be in Bccordarrce with the approved
budget line Items. ,

4.2. Contractor budBeis.rnctude;-

4.2.1. Exhibit B*1 (SFY 19) and 6-2 (SPY 20) which are the total budgets per Slate
Fiscal Year ir^ding eO progremi wlihin the contract. ; ,

4.2.2. Exhibits B-3 through B-lS which ere budgets for (he individual prograrhs by
Stale Fcscal Year.

4.3. The Contractor shall submit en invoice In a form satisiactory lo the Slate no later
than the twentieth (20th) working dey of each month, which tdeniifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

4.4. The Contractor shall ensure invoices sre completed, signed, dated and returned to
the Department in order to inirtaia payment. '

4.5. The Contractor agrees to keep detailed records of their ecbvities related to
Oepartment-lunded programs and services.

4.6. TfM State thaO make payment to the Conlrador within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each trrvoloo, subsequent to approval of ihe submitted Invoice end if sufftdenl funds
ere evoilabie.

4.7. The final invoice shall be duo lo (ho State r>o later than forty (40) days after the
cohtraci Form P'37. Block 1.7 Compieilon Dale.

til Rswth 4 inlr*g irettixe CAMS C««/*aar rfttaa ,31.
ComnuOr hmOi kviUuu qTv,*
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4 8. In lieu of herd copies. aJJ invoices may be'eseigned.en eledronic signature end
emdiled to: Mlchaef.RQqef^<adhhs.nh.aQv ertd

■5. Payments rr^ be withheld pending receipt of required reporia or docufTwntetion ea
ideniified in Eihlbit A. Scope of Servicei. and in this Exhibit 6.

6. Notwithstanding eAylNng to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that fusing
under this contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance
with any State or Faddral law. rule or regulation applicable to the aervlcefi provided, or If
the eaid aervlcoe heve not baert completed in eccordance with the terms and conditions
of this oortlract.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of ii>e Porm P-37. Gerteroi Proviaiona. en amendment
limiled to transfer the funds within the budget and wtthin the price limitation, can be
made by wrinen agreement of both parties and epproved by (he Department, and may
be made without obtaining approval ol the Governor and Executive Council.

jSlRe»««h4 TriWfo'n»nv» EinWS Cwueoor tideU
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Bidder Nemo: JSI Reeeerch end Tranlnq Ineirtuto, lr>c .

Budget Request for: AOP Centifiuum of Care Syeteme Supporte

Budget Period: SFY19 (Pete of G&C - 6/30/19)

-• piroct;-.:.-.. Indirect .

Llrie Item •P/ovI'deideteH ln:bUdge'l narred^e" • ♦  . ' »

1. .Total Selary/Wa^s 8  672.652.00 1 8 872.652.00

2. Emolovee Bar^efiis S  255.609.00; 8  • . 8 255.609.00

3. Cdnsuiianta ^ $ 8 8 ii.l 10A*; •

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase' A.Deoreciation) )  ■. 20.165.60 8

u'

% •.'l'^20:i65.b()'
S. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education.
Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, oiffice) 5  47.086.00 8

S'.

8 47,086.00
8. Travel S  5.059.00 8 } 5.059.00
7. Occupancy 8  67.265.00 8 8 67.265.00
6. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal. Insurance.
Board Expenses) 8  53.611.00 8 8 53.811.00
9. Software 8 8 8 .

10. Marlteting/Communications 8  15.000:00 8 8 15.000.00
11. Staff Educaiidn'end Tralrilru) 8  20.182.00 8 8 20.162.00
12. Subcontrocts/AareemontB- 8  207.000.00 8 8 267.000.00
13. Other (combined from aRached program
budoeis) 8 8

8  5.836.00 8 8 5.636.00
8  5.110.00 8 . 8 5.110.00
8  43.300.00 8 107.639.00 8 150.939.00

TOTAL 8  1.478.075:0Q 8 107.636.00 8 1.585.714.00
Indlroct Ae A Percer\t of Direct

RFP20ie-BDA$-03AlC0H

ConUsdor InhiaU

Data



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B738355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

Exhibit B-2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name: JSl Research end Tranlng inetltute. lnc

Budpet Request for: ADD Continuum of Cere Systems Supports

Budget Period: SFVao (t/1/19 ■ BiiQIlO) -

.  .. . - 1 •• ..•-..Direct- .• indlrdp.t , ToiaJ.dfeV.:
CVnVltem 'Provldod^talMrilj'udgetriortativet^ "-...i/-'"'
1.. Total Seiarv/Wadcs S  796.576.00 S $  796.578.00

2.. Emolovee Benents S  302.700.00 s $  302.700.00

3. ConsullantB s

A. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) %  23.88V00 S  ■ 23.881.00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical.. Office) ■ y  55.763.00 ..s ■ .. .v:

6. Travel' $  5.103.00 $ $  S.103.00

7. Occupancy $  79.658.00 s S  79.658.00

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephorte.
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
Insurance. Board Expenses) $  63.728.00 $ %  63.728.00

9. Software S s

10. MarketinQ/Communications $  15.000.00 $ $  15.000.00

11. Staff Educalion-ar»d Traininfl S  23.698.00 s . $ 23.898:00

12. Subcontracts/Aareements S  267.000.00 s S  267.000.00

13. Other (combined from attached program
budoets) 5 %

S  5.836.00 % %  .5.836.00

$  5.110.00 5 S  5.110.00

%  43.300.00 S  127.465.00 S  170.765.00

TOTAL S  1.687.555.00- $  127.465.00 $  1,815.020.00

Indirect As A Percent Of Direct 7.6%

Contreeto/ inUiala
RFP-]OIS-BDAS43ALCOH Oatejwi



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

Exhibit B-3

Naw Hampahtre Department of Heetth and Human Services

Bidder Name: JSl Research and Tranino Inatltute. Inc

Budget Request for: Training '

Budget Period: SFY19 (Oate of G&C - 6/30/19)

■•• •■ . . • ' . /V' -r •

Llne1t'em:*Prov)de/(jetall.ln budget ndrretlve . .
DJf«.ct Iridlrecl \ .. . -Total

1. IbtaiSalBcv/Waoes S 2.135.00 $ 2.135.00
2. Employee Benefits % 811.00 .% 811.00
3. Consultants $ •

4. Equipmeni: (includes Rentals. Repair S
Maintenance. PurchaM.'&.Oepreciation) i .  '64.00- S ■  64.00

■ ■ . 'T'f-'.v r .

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office) $ tso.oo $ 150:00
6. Travel s .•

7. Occupancy s 214.00 s 214.00
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) s 170.00 s .  170.00

9. Software- s •

10. Marketinq/Communications s •

11. Staff Education and Tralnino s 64.00 64.00
12. Subcontracts/Aqfeements s 227.000.00 $ 227.000.00
13. Other (specific details mandatory): ' $ ..

$
$ -

y 342.00 $ 342.00

TOTAL % 230.608.00 % 342.00 t 230.950,00
Indirect Ab A Percent of Direct 0.1%

Contractor tnlia

ftPP-]fiiS-BDAS-03AtCOH Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

Exhibit B-4

I  •

New Hampshirv Oepertment of Hoolth end Human Services

Bidder Name: JSI Reoearch end Tfonlng irwtitute, Inc

BudQOt Requoat lor: Tralnlna

Budeet Period: SFY20 (7i1/19 ♦ 6/30/20)

■ • 1. "... - . •;.'DlrectX-,v; 'v -Indirect/.: . c • Jbta!.-"^;.,
LiVe ItW^rovld'e dietall In budget narrative. ■ ■j' v"- ' ' ' 1. T.-, ..■■r' ;.:?-'-- "
V Toiai SaiarvrWeaes $  2,135.00 .$ 2.135.00
2. Emoiovee Benefits $  611.00 $  611.00
3. Consultante S

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase B Oepreciatibh) S  64,00

!• . .......... .'. ■.Vl 'i' ^&4.o6'

S....Supplies:^(includes'supplies.for ... .
E'ducjaG'on.'l'&b.'PhirfTiacvVM'e^^^ Office) S  . 150.00

V  •".■r.A'i-

S  150.00

6. Travel s
7. Occupancy S  213.00 $  213.00

6. Current Expenses (includes Tetephone,
Postage, Subschpiions, Audit & Legal,
insurance. Board Exoenses) %  171.00 S  .. 171.00

9. Software $• •• . ^ .

10. Martietino/Communications $
11. Staff Education end Trainina S  64.00 $• -64.00

12. Subcontracts/Aoreements %  227.000.00 $  227.000.00

13. Other (soecific details mendaiorv): S
s
I

$  342.00 I  342.00

%  230,960.00TOTAL $  230.60d.00 $  342.00

indirect Ab A Percent of Direct 0A%

Conlroctor tniUsb

'RFP-]0)9-BDAS^>-AtCOH Date t'll/il



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

Exhibit e-5

Nqw Hampehire Department of Hoalth and Human Servicea

Bidder Nemo: JSI Research and treninfl Inetrtute. Inc

Budget Request for: Technical Assistance

Budget Period: SPY19(0ateofC&C >6/30/19)

r' v/'-v'- • ^'''rtdlfe'ct:. , Toiall'g'-:..*..
hnej'te'rti £i?>ovldedetaiijfn;bUbaefn>^ ^
^. Total SalarvA/Veaes S  195.506.00 S  195;506.00

2. - EfrtDlovee Benefits . S  74.293.00 '9 ■■ "74.293.00

y Consultants

4. Equipment; (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) $  5.661.00 9" 5.86i;00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies lor .
Education. Lab. Pharmacy; Medical. Office) $  13.686.00 9  13,688.00

6  Travoi .$ 2.700.00 9  2.700.00

7. Occupancy 9  .19.551.00 9  19.551.00

6. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriplions. Audit & legal.
Insurance. Board Exoenses) 9  15.640.00

r

9  15.640.00

9. Software 9 •9- .

to. Marketfoq/Communications 9 9  •

11. Staff Education and Traininq 9  5.666.00 9 ■ 5.866.00

12. .Subcontracts/Aqreements S

13. Other (specific details mandatory); 9

Seiesforca Software License S' 864.00 $  864.00

Conference Cells & Traininq 9  3.750.00 9  3.75O.D0

Subject Matter Experts 9  16.000.00 9  ■ 31.283.00 9  47.263.00

tOTAL 9  353,717'09 $  31,283.00 9  389.000.0p

indirect As A Percent of Direct e.e%

RFP}0i9'BDAS-03-AtCOH

Contrsctor



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

E*hlbltB-6

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlceo

Bidder Name: JSi ftesaarch and Tronlnfl Inatltute. Ino

Budaet Reoueetfor: Technlcsl Aaalatance

Budaat Period: SFY20'(7ri/19 -6/30/20)

: . ,,' :■ / ^..'.Indirect ■ \j. ■... Totdl- g-V'.

1. Total Salarv/Wa'aes. . S  187:398.00 $  187.398.00

2. ••• Emclovee.Benefits S  71.211'.00 $  71.21.1.00

3. .Consultants • •  / 5

4. Equipment: (incudes Reniels. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) S  5.618.00 -- --•••• V A.- . ' s.eiBioo"

S. Supplies: (includes supplies fo.r..
Education. Lab. Pharmacv. Medical. Office) S  13.119.00 $  13.119.00.

6. Travel S  2.700.00 $  2.700.00

7. Occupartcv $  18.740.00 S  18.740.00
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
PostaoB. Subecriptions. Audit & Leoal.
insurance Board Expenses) $  '14,993.00 S  14.993.00

9. Software 1

10. MarketinQ/Communications S

11. Staff Education and Treintna $  5.622.00 S  5.622.00

12. Subcontracts/AQreemenis $
13 Other Isoeciric details mandatorv): $

Salesforce Software License S  864.00 S  864.00

Conference Calls 8 Traininq S  3.750.00 $  3J50.00
' Subject Matter Experts S  16.000.00 S  29.985.00 :% 45.985.00

TOTAL S  340,016.00 $  29.985.00 S  370.000.00

RFPOOI9-80AS-0)AtCOH

Contractor InliiBi

Dele



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

Exhibit 8.7

Nftw Hxmpehire Department of Health and Human Servlcea

Bidder Name: JSI Reeaafch and Tranlnp Inetltute, Inc

Budget Request for: Pregram Eyaluatlon

Budget Period: SFY19 (Oete of Q&C . 6/30/19)

Une ltW-Provide detail In budget nafTOtlve-.
•••Direct-;'-'-

•  w •

Iridlroct- • •

■■ .' • r. . •

Total ■

■  V - > ri.

1- Total Selarv/Waaes -./' $ 150^832.00 S 150.832.00

2^:-Emb)ovee Benerits.i*-<.t % 57,316.00 $ 57.316.00

3'/:tConsultants-•.iVj.-: . :  ■ . ■■ }
4.{;.Equlprrient:. (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & bepredation} $ ■ 4.'5'22.b0' $ 4.522.00

5. Supplies: (includes'supplies for..
Education,'Leb.'Ph'arma'cv. Medical. Office) 1 10558.00

t

s 10.558.00

6. Travel $ 350.00 $ 350.00

7. Occupancy $ 15.083.00 s 15,083.00

8. Current Expenses (Includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance. Board Expenses) I 12.087.00 s 12.067.00

9. Sofhvare

10. Mefketinq/Communicalions $ •

11. Staff Education and Traininq 3 4.525.00 5 4,525.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ • •

13. Other (specific details mendetory): $ ..

Satisfaction Survey Printinq $ 400.00 $ 400.00

Incentives for Providers Response $ 500.00 I 500.00

Subject Matter Experts ' S 15.000.00 S 24.135.00 ? 39.135.00

TOTAL S 771,153.00 S 24,135.00 $ 298,288.00

Indirect Ae A Percent of Direct 6.9%

eFP.20l».BDAS^Al,COH

Contractof

Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6^270-BC63-82FE39F98949

N«w Hompehlrv Oopartmonl of Hoolth ond Human Servlcos

Btddor Name: JSI Research and Tranino Institute. Ir>c

Budaat Reoueat for: Proflram Evaluation

Budaol Period: SFY20 (7/1/19 - 6/30/30)

'  I .. ■ |. 'ij. Direct,.' , •Indirect;•
iriid Item-Provide datalhln-budaof narrative-

:T6tal.

1. Total Satsrv/Wagea $  149,066.00 •9 149.066.00

2. Employee Benafiia ■ S  56.645.00 $*• 56.645.00

3. Consultants • .*»• •• ' $

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) V  " ■ 4.469.00 $  ■ 4.46^.00

S. Supplies:. (ifKludes'supplies for ■ ..
FduMtlon'-Uab. PHiafmB"cv.''Medical. Office) S  ■ 10.435.00 9  10.435.00

6. Travel $  350.00 1  350.00

7. Occupancy S  14.907.00 9  14.907.00

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Uegat.
Insurance. Board Expenses) %  11.925.00 9  11.925.00

9. Software 9

10. Maritetino/Communications $

11. Staff Educabon and Training S  4.472.00 9  4,472.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements 9

13. Other (specific details mandatorvl: 9

Satisfaction Survey Printing S  400.00 9  400.00

Incentives for Providers Resoonse S  500.00 9  500.00

Subiect Matter Experets S  15.000.00 S  23.853.00 9  38.853.00

TOTAL $  268,169.00 8  23,853.00 9  292,022.00

RfF-iOD-BDAS-Oi-ALCOK

CcntTQCtor lnIU«l>

Dele



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

^  EKhlbUB-9

New HBinpehlfe Oepoftmenl ef Hestth entf Human Beryleee

Bidder Neme: jSi Reaeercn and TranlnB ineUtuto. liK
Dete Collection, Analyels. Interpretation, Reporting, end

Budgot Roquoet for. Support

Budget Porlo<l: SFY19 (Date of GftC - 6/30/16)

:■ . r. v. - -■ •..piro;ct- •• i; .-.1 •Indlfbct ;;- ••
A'.*

Llhoftem'^rovlde detail In budget nartatlyb.: D  ■ « *. • 1

S  ' 65 503 001. Tote! Saianr/Waqei-
2. Emptovee Bonefttt $ 32.491.00

1. ■

9 32.491.00

3. Consultants • 9

4. Equipment: (Indudos Reritals. Repair ft Maintenance.
Purchase ft Oeprecialion)' 9 2.S63.00

*  . • y

9 2.563.00

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Educetion. Lab.
pnartnacv. Medical, OfTicel $ S.9S5.00 9 5.985.00

6. Travel 9 . •

7. Occueancv I 6.550.00 } 6 550.00

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone. Postage.
Subscriptions. Audit ft Local. Insurance. Board Expenses) .$ 6.840.00 9 6.840.00

9. Software 9 •

to. Maritetino/Communicationa 9 •

11. Staff Education and Training 1 2.565.00 9 2,565.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreemanits. . t 40.000.00 9 40.000.00

13. Other (soectnc details mandaiorv): 9 •

Survey Gitmo [9400) ft Tableau (W72) $ t.072.00 9 1.072.00

Suiv^ Monkey S 380.00 9 380.00

YRBS Supplies (17.300 A YRBS Postage ($5,000) $ 12.300.00 $ 13.685.00 9 25.685.00

TOTAL 1 ■ 199.229.00 $ 13,965.00 9 211.614:00

Indirect Ae A Percent of Direct

AFf-]Ott-eOASO>ALCOH ■

CentndDT IntlitU^4
0»t»

lr-



DocuSign Envelope ID; 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

Exhibit 8-10 '

New Hampehlre Oeoartment of Health and Human Services

Bidder Nome: JSI Reeearch and Tranino Institute, Inc

Data Colloctlen. Analysis, Intefpretatlcn, RoportlnQ &

Budaot Reouest for; Support

Budaet Period: SFY20 (7/1/19 • 6/30/20)

Llhe ltom.-^rbvlde'detsli In budget Harfatiyo .
I' DI/oct... ■

"• • •' *,
,V

Indlrod Total ■

*s;-.

1.- Tolal SetarvAiVaoes...- $ 66.350.00 .$ .- 68.350.00

2.•."Employee.Benefits. •" S 25,973.00 $  25.973.00

3.- Consultants $

A. Equipment; (includes Rentals; Repair
Maintenance. Purchase & Deprectationy $ 2.049.00 ■$■ ' ■' ■2.049.00''

5. Supplies; (includes supplies for
iEducation. Ldb. Pharmacv-. Medical. Office) $

*  .t . .

4.785.00

". I.,.-.; •*.=

$  4.785.00
6. Travel s
7. Occupancy $ 6.635.00 $  6.635.00

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance. Board Expenses) $ 5.468.00 $  ' £.488.00
9. Software 1
10. MametinQ/Communlcations
11. Staff Education and Tralninq $ 2.050.C0 $  2.050.00
12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ 40.000.00 S  40,000.00

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $
Survey Gizmo (S400) & Tableau (S672) s 1.072,00 S  . 1.072.00

Survey Monkey 1 360.00 $  360.00
YRBS Supplies ($7,300 & YRBS Postage ($5. $ 12.300.00 $ 10,938.00 S  23.236.00

TOTAL ' $ 169,242.00 S 10,938.00 S  180,180.00
Indirect As A PorcQnt of Direct e.s%

RFP-20l9-BOAS-0)AtCOH

Conboctor inlUeb

Oflte i/imi



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

Exhibit B-11

New HamiaehW Department of Health and Human Sorvicea

BIddof Name: JSI Roaearch and Tranina inatUuta. inc

Budget Roqueat for: Governor'a Commiaaiort •

Budget Period: SFY19(0ata ofG&C '6/30/1B)

Cine Item -Provide detail In li'uidget na'rrative

■.•VDiroct Indirect
i' ' ' *

,  J *

•.."Total..
•  . .. .. f,

1. Tote! Satarv/Waaea $ 60,541.00 S 80.541.00

2. Employee Benerita-. • $ 30.606.00 $ . 30.608.00
3. Consoitanis s -

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
i^lritenance! Purchase & Depredation) $ 2.414;00 $ 2.414.00'

5... Supplies:- (includes^i'upplies for. .
Education.'Lab. PharrhacY. Medical. Office) S S.638.00 $ S.638.00
6. Travel s -

7. Occupancy S 8,054.00 s 8.054.00
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) % 6.443.00

•

$ 6.443.00
9. Software % .  .

to. Mantetinq/Communications % .

11. Staff Education and Trainino % 2.417.00 $ 2.417.00
12. Subcdntracts/AQreemants s .

13. Other (soecific details mandatorv): s
Print Gov Commbilon Mid Yesr ond Annuo) Reports % 1.000.00 $ 1.000.00

$ •

I 12.867.00 s 12.687.00

. .tOTAL. s 137.113.00, $ 11667.00 1 160,000.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 9.4%

RrMOI9eDAS-03At.COH

Contractor tntuad

Date >/i»in



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

£xhmitB*12
\

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
/

Bidder Name; JSI Roseorch end Troninp Institute. Inc

Budoet Reauest for: Governor's Commission

Budoet Period: SFY20 (7M/ig • 6/30/20)

i-'ihb ftilm^Provjde detall In budhe^harfitN^ :'-' f ".•••'.i -y/ i." • :«

''."iJdtal, i'"-.-. '

1  Total SalarvA/Vaoes S  60.641.00 1  60.541.00

2. Emolovee BeneHts %  30,606.00 I  30.608.00

3. Consullants
$  ■

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) i  2.414.00

. . . .

S  2.4'14.00

6- Supplies: (includes'supplies.for
Educ'^tibn'.'L'eb'.'PhafTnacv. Medlcal. Office) $  5.636.00 $  5.638.00

6. Travel $

7. Occupancy S  8.054.00 $  8.054.00

6. Current Expenses (irKtudes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions. Audit 6 Legal,
Insurance: Board Expenses) S  6.443.00 %  , 6.443.00

9. Software $  .

to. Marttetino/Communicalions $

11. Staff Education and Trainino S  2.416.00 1  2.416.00

12. Subconiracts/Aareements S

13. Other (SDecific details mandelory): $

Print Gov CcmmitiJon Mid Yes/ and Annud Report* S  1.000.00 $  1.odd: 00

$

S  12.688.00 S  12;888.00
•  >

TOTAL %  137.112.00 S  12,888.00 $  150,000.00

RFP-20)9-BPAS4}-A UCOH

Con(roctorlnlijali

Oote
«/l2/ll



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

Exhibit B-n

New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Servlcea

Bidder Name: JSI Research and Tranlng tnatltute, Inc

Budget Request for: PfOflrem Inventory B Cost Effectlveneee

•  Budflet Period: SFY19 (Date of GBC • 6/30/19) .

I' • 1 .1 ''* • Olrect-.j;, "• Indirect v-- ..-. Tp.tal :
Uneiterh-Provide detail In'biidgat ncfVatlve..!/ • •
1. Total Salarv/Waaes $  . 86.515.00 $  88.515.00
2. .Emolovee Benefits.-- ■ $  32.876.00 3  32.876.00

3. Consultanis 3

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repeir &
Maintenance. Purchase & Oepreciation) - S  2.594.00

1. -
•.'/1-..'

$"■ "■"■2.5^;bb'

5. Supplies: (inclydee supplies for •
Education; Lab. Pharmacy.'Medical. Office) 3  6.056.00

.: : .1 '•« •

3  6.056.00
6. Travel S  509.00 3  509.00
7. Occupancy $  8.651.00 5  8.651.00
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) »  6.921.00 3  6,921.00
9. Software 3
10. MarXetinq/Communications 3
11. Staff Education and Tralnino S  2.598.00 3" 2.596.00
12. Subcontracts/Aflreements
13. Otherfspeciflc details mendatory): 3

Conferertce Calls & Traininq S  2.000.00 S  2.000.00
3

S  13.844.00 3  13.644.00

TOTAL (  148,718.00 3  13;844.00 S  162,562.00
Indirect Aa A Percent of Direct 0.3%

RFP.20I9-BDAS-03ALCOH

Contractor initlaUj

Dfllo f/uru



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

EKhibltB-14

Nttw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name; JSI Research and Traning Institute, IftC

Budget Request for: Proflram Inventory ft Cost Effectlvenese:

Budget Period: SFY20 (7/1/19 • 6/30Q0)

1 1'na imrn •^Provide detdil in budget harrdtlvb..

'■.Direct, ••Indirect 'v.* .'
•• . . ' 1

: Tptdl

1. Total SalarvA/VaQes.-. $ 237.466.00 $ 237.460.00

2. • Emolovee Benefits.:.' $ 90.236.00 s 90,238.00

3. Consultants % •

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
$ Mio.oo

** *• *•

i" ■■ ■7:120.00

5. Supplies; (Includes'supplies (or
Fducfltlon Lab. Phaimacv.'Medical. Office) $ 16.623.00

t

$ 16.623.00

6. Travel $ ■  553.00 $ 553.00

7. Occuoancv % 23.747.00 $ 23.747.00

6. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage, Sut>script)ons. Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) S 18.998.00 S  18,998.00

9. Software $• '

10. MerketlnQ/Communications
11. Staff Education and Traininq S 7.125.00 $  7 J 25.00

12. Subconlracts/Aflreements $

13. Other (specific details mandatory):
Conference Cells & Traininq s 2.GOO.OO S  2.000.00

S  37.996.00 * 37.996.00

TOTAL s 403,872.00 S  37,998.00' $ 441,868.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

RFP-]01fBDAS-03ALCOH

Contrector Initials

OotB »/n/ii
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Exhibit B'19 .

N«w HampAhIre Dapartmant of Health and Human Servleoa

Bidder Name: J8t Reeoerch artd Trentna tnatltute. Inc

Budget Requeat for: Partnerehlp for Succeae

Budget Period: SFY19(0ate ofG&C ♦6/30/19)

Liiieiltem ■■Provide detalHn budgat narrati^e.;
■■'Dirbct... ■ ; ..:|ndjrect:^- -V

. AT ' * *' * .*

•Total
■  ■

1. Total Solarv/Wanei % 71.620.00 S 71.620.00

2. ..6mi>Jovee'6enefit8 \ • % 27.216.00 % 27.216.00

3. Consultants:,'..'.....r. s •  •

4. Equipment; (Includes Rentals. Repair &
^^int'ena'nce. Pur^ase & bepreciation) $ 2.147.00 $ 2.147.0<0

S. . Supplies:'(include supplies-foi: - '
Educatibh; Lob. Pha^rhacv;'Medical. Office) I •  5,013.00

•1 s 5.013.00

6. Treve! $ 1.500,00 6 1.500.00
7. OccuDencv % 7.162.00 $ 7.162.00

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses) S 5.730.00

t

$ 5.730.00
9. SofNvare s .

10. Marketinn/Communications . Blnfle.Frce ( $ 15.000.00 % 15.000.00

11. SteH Education and Trainino S 2.149.00 $ 2.149.00

12 SubcontrBcts/Aoreemenis % -

13. Other [specific details mendetory): I .

Web-Ex SAP. Young Adults s 50000 % 500.00

Printino PFS Evaluation Data Products s 500.00 % soo.oo
S 11.46300 $ 11.463.00

TOTAL s 138,637.00 $ 11,463.00 1 ' 150.000.00
6Indirect Ae A Percent of Direct .3%

RFP-20lfBDAS-03-ALCOH

ConlTBCtor Inrliais.
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ExNlbitB'16

Now HampoMro Ooportmont of Hoatth and Human Servlcoo

Biddor Namo: JSI Roaaafch and Tranlnq instltuta. Inc

Budget Request for; Partnership for Success

Budget Period: SFY20 t»1M9 -6/30/20)

T^-' ■ : r\
Lfne item -Provide detail in budget negative ■

.•'.Oireft. .V,*;-'
.' ■ V ..."

Indirect. ■ Totar..

1  Total SalarvWVafiea 1 71.62000 9 71.620.00

2. Employee Benefils ■ 9 27.218.00 9 27.216.00

3. Consultants .••• $

4. Equiprnent; (irtdudes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Oepreciatlon) % 2.147.00 9 2.147.00

5. •;Supp!ies:-([ndudey-8yp^es--for-. • ■
Educaiibn;'LTabV PHamiecv.''Medicoi. Office) S

•  • *.

5.013.00 9 S.013.00'
6. Travel I 1.500.00 9 1.500.00

7. Occupsncv t 7;162.00 9 7.182.00

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.

Postage. Subschptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance. Board Exoenses) $ 5.730.00 9 5.730.00

9. Software -

10. Martrebnp/Communications % 15.000.00 9 15,000.00

11. Staff Education and Training % 2.149.00 9 2,149.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements 9 •

13. Other (speciric details mandatory): 9 -

Web-Ex SAP, Youna Adults $ 500.00 9 - 500.00

Printing PFS Evaluation Data Products s 500.00 9 500.00

9  11.463.00 9 11.463.00

TOTAL s 138.637.00 9  11,463.00 9 160,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct e.3%

RFP-20I>-SOAS-0)-ALCOH

Cent/0ctor Initial

Dale f/>m»
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N»w Hsmnhiro Oopartment of HeiiW and Human SenricM
EihlbUC

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contraeton Obi^aiions: The Co/>tractof coyenenu end ogree» thai ell fundi reeelved by (he Contnictor
undar the Conlnct fheil be uied only a> paymeni lo th« Cont/ecfor for oarvkn provldad to eligible
Individuoli end. In ine furthefonce of Ihe afofeoaW covenenu. the CoAlroctw hereby covenant* end
ogrees at toiiowe:

1. Compliance with FBdanl and Stato Lews: II the Contractor ie perrnined to determine U>e elglbiSty
of indlvlduait euch eSgiWlity determination iheil be mide In eccorderwe with applicable federal end
•tote tawt. foguletlont. orderv, guldeHnet. poldet ond proeaduret.

2. Time end Manner of OetarminaOon: EOglbliiry determirutiene melt be mede en formi ofovlded by
the Oepertmeni for thai purpoto and eheii be mede end remade et euch tirnea oi ore pretcrlbed by
Ihe OepartmenL

3. OocumentBdon: In addition lo the determlnalion form* retprirad by Ihe Oepaivnent. the Contractor
•hall maintain a dale file ort each recipient of aervicei hereunder. which file shon include oD
information rwcesiary to lupport en eBgibility delerminalion and tucft other information at the
Oepartment raquetle. The Contractor thaO tumiih the Oepartmeni whh all form* and documentation
regarding eligibility determir>a^9 (hat Ihe Depanneni may reoueit or require.-

4. feir Hoa^e: The Contractor undervtends that OD oppneamt for aervlcea hereunder.'Bi wdO o»'-''
indMduale declared meUglbie nave a righi to o fair hearing regarding that determihatioh. The-
Contractor hereby eovenoAta end agreee that on applicant* for lervicea ihan ba penrBtted to fUi'out
oh application form ortd thai each applicani or re^oppliceni thafl be Informed of ha/her ri^ht to o fair
hatrlng in occordance wilh Departrherd reguUHona

5. Oratultiea or KkkbacAa:- the Contractor agreei ihat lt.lt'a breach Of Ihii-Contiact to-occepl or
make a payment, gratuily or offer of employment on behalf of the Controcior, any Sub^^enbactor of
the Slate in order Co inriu'dnca (he perfbrmance of the Scope of Work detaOed In Eihiblt A of (hk.
Cororact The Stote moy terminate inlt Contract ond ony oub-eontrect or eub-o^ement H ii l*
detarmfnedihoi'poymente.-'grahiiUei or offen of employment of ohy'kJnd were ofTored or recehred by
any officials, officere. erhpldyeei or-ageni* of (he Controcior or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Paynsents: Notwilhstanding anything to (ha contrary contalrtad in the Convod or in eny
Other document, corttrad or understartdlng. It li azpreuly understood oi«5 ogreed by the parties
herclo. thai rro payments will be made her.eunder to relmburae the Contractor for costs incurred for
ony purpose or tor any aer^cei provided to any Individual prtor to Ihe Eflecttva Date of the Contract
ond no payments ahaii be made far cipenMi ineuired by the Contractor for ony servtees provided- .
prtor to the dote on which the indMduai appiiet for leivices or (eacept as oiherwise provided by the
faderal regulations) prtor to a determlnalion that the IndMduol Is diglblo for such lerviceB.

7. Condltfone of Purthsae: No(wltfutar>dlng anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained tf^oll be deemed to obligBle or requite Ihe Department to purchoie services
hereunder at a rate which relmbunes the Conlracior In eicess of the Controctort costs, ot a rote
which excaedi thd omounts rcasorxabie one neeetiory to assure the quoDty of such.eervlce. or at a
rale which exceeds ihe rote charged by the Controctor to Ineligible individuals or other third parTy
funders for such service. If ot any time during the i<rm of this Contract or ofler recelpl of the Final

■ Expenditure Report hereunder. Ihe Department shili determine thai the ConirDdor has used
paymanit hereunder (e reimburse items of expensi other than such costs, or has received payment
in excees of such costs or In excess of such reies charged by Ihe ConirKtor to ineHgibto itxdMduais
or other third party funden. the Deportmeni may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereur>dei. In which everM new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to Ihe Contractor the omouni of ony prior reimbursement m

excess of costs:

EmfcOC-Sptrtinnwbtoni CofUBClw InlUtfiN.^
evpm P»e*i«r5 o»'» >/im«
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New Kempehlro Department of Hoetth artd Human Services
EKNbttC -

7.3. Demand rcpeyment of the esceta payment by the Controctor in wMeh event failure to make
fuch repayment abai) conitltute on Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor la
permlned to oetermlne ina etigibiilty of indivlduaia for lervicei. the Contractor egraea to
reimourae toe Oepartmeni tor on funda pato by toe Department to the Contractor for aervfeea
provided to any Irtoividuai who la found by the Departmem to be toeligibfe for luch aervtcaa at
any time durtng the period of relentiori of record! eatobfiahed herein.

«€COROS: MAINTGNANCE. RETENTION. AUOlT. OtSCLOSURE AND CONFlOENTlALlTY:

6. Melntanence of Rocorde: in sddiUen la toe etiglbliry reeerde apecified ebevp. the Cemreeier ,
covertanta and agreee to maintain the foflowtng recoroa duiir>o the Contract Pcrtod:
0.1. FlacalReeordt; boeha. recorda. docvmenti end other, dote evidendnp erto.rejecting eo coaia

and etoar eipanaea Wwuned by the Ceniroeior to the aerrermenca of the Contract, and au
income received or coliecled by the Corttracvr during the Corttraet Period, aeid recorda to be
molntoined In accordance with eceounilng procedure! and praellcea which lufflciently and
property reflect all auch coata end eipenaaa, and which are acceptable to the Departmerd. end
to include, without Bmltatton. all ladgera. twoU. recorda. arto ortglnsl evidence of coata auch aa
purehaie reouiaitioni and ordera, ̂ uchere. requlaUiona for maiahaia. inventortea. valuation! of
irvktod contrlDuUona. tabor time catda. payrooa. and otoar recorda requeated or required by toe
Department.'

0.2. iiatiatlcet Recorda; Stttiatieal. enrollment, aiendanee-or viait record! for each-redpiDnl of.
aervicea during the Conlrecl Period, which record! ahaii Include ell recorda of eppltoation and
eflgioiiity fnciudlng ail forma required to determine eiiglbiary for each auch recipient)..record!
regarding the provltlon of aervicea and all Invgicaa iubmitied to ihe'Oapftrime'ht to'ebl^ln'"-
payment for auch aarvicea.- . ■

8.3. Medical Recorda: Whe>e appropriate and aa p/ctcribcd by-toe Oepartmeni ri^ulationa],-the
Contrector-ahaiiretainmedlcalrccordaoneschpaiianvrecipient'bfaefvicea.'-.- ' ■'

9. Audit: Contractor ahoD aubmli ah'annual audit to the Oepartmeni within eO'dayi-afler tha'doee df the
agency flicei year. It la recommended that the repcrt be prepared in ecedrdance'wilh the proviabn of
Office of ManagemenI ar^ Budget-Circular A-t 3l 'Audita of Staiea, local Gbvemmenta.'ond'Nori'
Profit Organtxati6na* and the provtilpna of Siondards for Audfl of Governmental Org'dnlzationi.''
Progrema; Activitlei and Functions, Isaued by toe US General Aocouniir^ Oflke (GAO atandarda) aa
they pertain to flnanciDl compfiance audita.
9.1. Audit arto Review; During toe term of ihia Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, toe United Siotea Department of Heaflh artd Human Senrte«s;and ortyoftoelr
dosignatad repreae.ntatlvea ihall have occeat to all reporta and recorda maintained purauani to
the Contrect for purpoapa of eudh. aiamtoatlcn. eicerpla and tmnacripta.

9.2. Audit liabilities; m addition to and not in any way In Umltalion of obUgationa of the Contract. >1 (a
understood end agreed by the Conirector thet toe Contractor a^fl be held jlebie for any aiate
or federal audit exceptioni and ahaU return to the Department^'aD payments mode urtoer the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been diaatlowed because of auch on
exception. ,

10. ConltdontJsllty of Records: Ail Information, report), and records molntatoed h.ereunder or collected
in connection with' the perTonmance of the tarvicaa and the Contract shall be confidential end ahatl not
be diactaaed by toe Controctor,-provided however, that puraueni to alste laws end the reguieliona of
toe Department regarding the ute and diactoaure ot auch Intormalton, diacloture may be mode to
public offlciali requiring such information in connection with their official dutlea and for purpoaea
direcOy conrtected to the edminiatrsiion of (ha aervieaa end the Contract; and provided further, that
the uae or diadoaure by eny party of ony Information concerning a recipient for eny putpoae not
directly corviecied wflh the odmlnilrsiion of (he Department or toe Contrsctont reaponaibilfliea iMth
respect to purchased aervicea herevrxler Is prohibilad except on wrlRen consent of (he recipient. hli
attorney or guardian. '

CaNal) C - Speotii PivWilent CwwtCU'lnn«b*
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H»w MeinpfNfo D«p#ftm«nt of Ho#lth and Human Sefvleoa
CihlpllC

NoNvfthstanding anything lo the contrary cor>ta(ned hatein the covenaitla and condilioni containod in
the Paragraph ihaH aurvive the termination of the Contract lor any reaaon w^isoever.

11. Reports: Fiacat and Stailaticat: The Cortuactor agrvea to lubmti the foOowtng reports at (he lollowing
(Imea if requeatetf Oy the'Department.
11.1. Interim Pinanelal Reporta: Writtan inierlm ftuncial reporti containing e detailed deacrtptlon of

aD coals and norvollowable eipenaea incurred by the Conuacto* to the date of the report and'
containing such other information ea than be oeemeo •otislactory by the Department to •
justify the'roie of payment hereunder. Swch Flnonclel Reports ehoD be ewbmlliod on the form
deilgnt^ed by the Oepertment or deemed letiafoctory by the Depertmerd. '

11 2 Final Repetl: A anel report ihaD be submitted wtthin thirry (30) deya after the end of the term
gf thie CortbacL Tr^ Flnsi Report ehe'tl be in e form sattefeetofv to the Depertment end eheU
contact a summary statement of progreaa toward goels end ob}ectlvea iteied In the Proposal
artd other Information required by the Deportment.

12. Completion of Servlcee; Disallowance of Coats: Upon the purchase by the Oepar^ni of the
maslmum number of units provided tor In the Contract artd upon payment of the price Umiloiion
hereunder. the Contract and eh (he'obltgatrons of the perttes hereunder (eicept such ebUgaUons as.
by the terrns-'of the' Contrect are to be performed after the end of the term of'this Conbacl. end/or
survive Iho temtlnsfion of the Controct) shnti terminate, provided hdweve/. lhai If. upon review of the
Final Espenditure-Reporl the Department than diadlow any-expcnsee elalmed by-the Contractor as
eo'strhereun'dcir the-Oepbrtment shall retain the rigni at ds'discretion.io daduci the amqimto! such
eipehses as'Sre diiaOowed'orto-recover such suras from tha Coniradof; ••

13. Credita'i-'An-docuniemSi notices, presi releases, research re^s and other maie^ais'prepared
during br resuRing from the' performpnce of the services of the Contract ihad-indude the folov^rvg
staterheht: ■ ' ■' ' • •• - • -1-:^. : • ••. . •• • m
13.1. ■ -The prepiratioo of this (tepon, document e1c.) was firvonced-'onde'r a Contract iMth'the'State:-

of New Harhpshlre. Oepenment'of H'eaRh'irrd Kufflan''Serv1c'esVr^'fifnds'provlded In'part'-'
-  by the Stetc of New Hampshire and/or such Other Mdlng sources as were avoliabte or

required, e.g., the United Slates Department of HesHh and Human ServlMs.

14. Prior Approval and CopyrfghtOwnerehip: All mtiehaisfwrineh: video; audio}'produced or'
purchased under Ihe'contrecl shaH have prior approval from OHHS tiefbre'prtnllrrg. production.'*
distribution or use. The OHHS wilt retain copyrfghl,ownership for any and aO original molerials
produced, including, but not itmtied to. brochures, resource directories, pretocois-w guidelines.,
posters, or reports. Controclor shall not reproduce my materleis produced ur>der the contract <^out
prior wTlrten approval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Cempllanca with lewa ind Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor thoU comply with oJ) laws, orders and rsgutalions of fadersl.
state, county and mu^dpai authorities ond vAh eny directton'ot any Public Officer or officers
pursuant lo laws which shaO impose an order or dUy upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facib'ty or the (vovision of the servkes at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the saH facHliy or the ̂ tformance of (he laid aervicea.
(he Contractor wOl procure taid license or permH. and will at all times comply wtlh the terms e'rtd
conditions of each such license or permit, in connection vrith the; forego'tng requirements, the
Corvtractor hereby covenants and egrets that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shon
comply with an rules, orders, regulations, and requl^raents of (he State Office of the Fire Marshal and
tt>e local fire protection agency, and shall be in corformance with local buiidirvg and c^lng codes, by
laws ond regulatJons.

/

16. 'Equal Emptoymon! Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Conbactor wil) provide an Equal Employment
Oppoflunhy Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Crvi) Riglils, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if K has
received a singie award of SSOO.OOO or more. If ihrrecipienl receives S2S.OOO or more ond has 50 or

£jht6KC-Sp*cWPre«t|leni Contractor (nOlfb

3 *1 s osii
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M«w Hsmpthtra Oopertfnent of Hteitfi «nd Human 5frvlc<«
EiMbll C

mofo employcti » maWain o currart EEOP on We and aubmil an EEOP CartmcaUon Fomi lo the
OCA. ceitlVng thai ita EEOP b on file, fot redpbnta recoMng l«»» than S2S,000, or pvbHc grantee*
wfth fewor than W emptoyec*. rogardtoai of the omeuni ̂  tho awatd. the reo'plent wfD pfovlde an
EEOP Certftation Form to the OCR ceitifyti>g It b not requrred to tubmit or mainialn on EEOP. Non
profit orpaniiaiton*. Indian Tribe*, and medical and educational InaUUrtlona are exempt from the
EEOP roquiremenl. but ere reoulred to tubrrrfl a certificatJon form to the OCR to claim the ocempllon.
EEOP CertlflcAiion Forms are avellable at: http://www.oip.u9doi/obcut/oc/fpdfi/eert.pdl.

17 Limited Engtleh ProfletetKy (LEP): A* cttrlftodb* Executive Order t31M. Improving Acceu lO
Service* for pomon* *«h Ltmliod Er^giiih Proftcbncy. »r»d retuWng agency g«id*nce..n»Uon*l ongir*
di«cr(mlnaUon Intiude* dlsertminattoo on trw betl* or Umtted EnQtleh profBtency (LEP). To ensure
eompllanee with the Omniou* Crime Control end Sife Street* Act of 1«8 end TIO* VI of the CiviJ
Rights Act of 1904. Contrectore mu»l tea* reaionatte step* to ensure thai lEP persons rtave

, meaningful access.10 ttsprogrems. *■

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee WMsdeblowor ProtocUone: The
foDovvtftg shall apply to sD contracts that exceed (he Simpfifted Acquisiiion Thrttttold es defmed in 48
CFR J.lOt (currently. 8150.000)

■  CbtrrtucTOR Eia^LbreE WKisuECiovrER Rcxis awo ReouiRSMfwt to nform e'uhotees of
WMlSTVE^OVVeR RCKTS (SEP 201»

239}

(b) The Cgrrtrocior shall inform Its employee* in *wfing. In the predominant languege of lhe,.wi!orxforce.
of emptoyee v^tle.NovnVrtgma ond protections under 4i u.S.C. 47(2. as descrtbod In section
3.908 of.Che Federal AequlsJbdn Regulation.

(c) The COAtroctor shall inseri the substance of t>«s clause, including this paragraph (c). in aO
subcontracts over the simplified ecquisition threshdd.

t9. Subcontrectors: OHHS recognizes thai the Contrictor may choose to use subcontractors wtlh
greater expertiie lo.perform certain health care services or lur>ctlons for efitciency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the retpontlbUIiy and accountability (or the functjon(s). Prior to
Subcontracting, the Contractor thai) evaluate the subcontractor's abifity to perfonn the delegated
funetlon(s>. This is accompQshed through a vmtten agreement that specifies octlvIUes and reporting
responsibilities ol the subcontractor end providei Iv revoking the delegatien or Imposing sanctions If
the subcontrector's performarKO b not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractuel
coi^idons OS the Contrisctor and the Contractor b responsible lo ensure subcontractor comptlanco
with Ihoso conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor. Iho Contractor shail do the following:
19.1. Evaluito the prospective subcontractor's e^rty to perform the activities, before deiegstb>g

the function
19.2. Have a written ogreement with the subcant/octor (hat specifies activities and reporting

responsibiiilles and how lenclions/revocadon win be managed U the'iubcontroctofi
performance is ncX adequate

19.3. Monitor (he lubcontr^or's performer>ce on en or>going basis

CirSeti C - SpsObi Prevalent Cereww ir<iUU^^_
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual aehedute idertUlylng all avAcontroctora. ddeQata^ funcilona end
reaponaiblGiiea. end vihen the lubcorxrector'i performance vAi be rtvkwvd

19.5. OHHS ahoil. at Ridiacrelloo.feview end approve all iwbcontracta.

If the Cooi/acW IdenUflei deflelenclei or areai tor Impfovement are Iderulftod. Che Cor«recior ahao
take corrective action.

OEPlNlTiONS

A* u«e4 irt me CorMreet. the toOowtne terms ihoO have the foOevrfng maanlngi:

COSTS' Shell mean those direct-end intflreei items o' eioer^ee determined bjr the Oeportmer^t to be
oOowable and retmburseble in aceordance vitm cost and oecounUng prtndptes.otlobnshed in accordanca
with stale end federal laws, regulations, rules end orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Oeparfmint of HeaRh and Human Servicet.

FINANCML MANACSMENT GUIOELtNES: Shall mean that section of (he Conuector Manual which is
en1itled''Fmanciai Manogemeni Gvidelihea* end which contains the regutolMns gdvefniing the rihandal
acbvtties of eentieclor egertdesvrftich have eontrocted with the State el NH to receive funds.

"PROPOSAL: If epphcsWe. shoB mesn the documenl submitted by the Contrecior on a form or forms
required by (he Oepartmcnt end cohtaireng a description of the Services lo be provided to eGgitie
individusti by the Cont/oeior in occordance wtth the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost srtd sources of revenue for each service to be prpvidtd under the Contract.

-UNIT: For each eervice that the Contrador is to provide to eUglbla individuals hereundet, shao mean thai
perM of time or that epeciried octivily determined by the Oepartmeni and specified in Eihlblt B of the
ContrbCL

FEDERAL/STATE IJ^W: Wherever federal or state laws, regulatiorts, rules, orders, ond policies, etc. ort
referred lo in the Controci, the said relereiice shall be deemed lo meen all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be omended or revised from the timo to lime.

contractor MANUAL: ShoD mear^ that document prepared by the NH Department sf-Admlnist/Btive
Sewicei containing e compilation of aO regulations promuigoied pursuant to the New Hampshire
AdminlsireUve Proceduiei Act. NH RSa Oh Sai-A.'foi the ̂ rpose of ImpiemenUng Stale of NH end
federal regulations prpmulgoted thereunder.

SUPPLAf^ING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contrsclor guarantees thai funds provided under this
Conboct wlD not suppionl ony existing federal funds ViDabie for these services.

EiMbiiC-S»«d«P«e«bio>u ConmtwmBUa

Pits
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ReVfSlONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS '

Subparograph 4 of (ha Genarai Provtileni of this eont/oct. Conditional Nature of Agreemant. Ij
replaced a> foOowa:

4. CONDITIONAL nature OF AGfiGEMEKr.
NoMtMianding ony provlaion el iMa Agrremcni to l7>a contrary, all ebdgetiona-.ol Pw State
hereonder. Indudlng wUnout Umttatlon. the coniinuanca of paymenie, Iri •<t»o»a or lr» part,
under this Agreemani ere contingeni upon coaflnuM appropdaUon or ovslieMity of funds.
Including any suOtaouani cnangat to the appropflstlen.er avaDeMily ei.hmds enacted by
any aiata or fadarol lagWatlwo or axecutlva acflon that reduces, ollmlnatas. or o(h«rw(so
modWIes the opproprtatlon or ovofiablBiy el funding for tnit 'Agraameru end INe Scopo'of
Services provided bt exhibit A. Scope of Servlcos. In wftoie or in 'pon. Ih no event Shan the
Stole be liable lor any payments heraundsr in excess of appropnated or eveOebta funds, in
the'event ol a reduction, termination or modlAcatiort of epproprtitad or avaBabio funds, the
State shall have the right to wtthhoW payment urdH such funds become available, if ever. The

>  State Shan have the ilghi to reduce, leimlnata or modify servicei under this Agreement
immediately u^n giving the Contractoi notice of such.reduction. terminatran or modification.
The Stole shall not be reputrcd to transfer funds from arty other source or occpu.rd into tta
Accounys) Identiried in block 1.6 of the Genensi ProtrUlbnt, Accouni Number, or any other
account^ in the event funds are reduced or unovoDebie.

Subparegrwh 10 of the General Provisions of thb contir'pd. T.^Thiri^on^s
foilovnng.langupge;

10. t The Stale may taiminatethe Agreement al any time for any reason, ot the sote,discretion of
' the Stele. M.deyf of^r.^vt^.the Contractor wrttter>,.noti« .thal^lhe^Siate^ts,.eMrcJs^.JU
;  option'tojcfniinmeihe'^r^ .:'s^ i:/n.Vn^,

10.2 in-ihe'eveni 'of eeiiy lermlrtaiion. the extractor shaS. wtihin 1S dayi of notice of early
termination, develop and submii to the Slate e Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, incfud'tng but not limited to. identifylrtg the present end future needs of cilenis
rec'cMrvg servtcei under the Agreement arid estobfishes o process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Controctor sheu fully coopersie wtih the Slate end shsu promptly provide detailed
InfQtmoiion to suppoR-lhe Tronsltion nan IrKludirtg, but rx>i limited to. any information or
data requested by the Stale reioicd to Ihe termination of the Agreement end Transition Plan
ond BheP provide ongoing communlutionondreyiiiont of (he TranslUpn.Planto the Stale os
requested.

10.4 In the event that aervtces under the Agreement. Including but not limited to crcnis'receMng
services under the Agreement ere transitianed to having services delivered by another entity
bicludlng contracted 'providers or the Slate, the Contractor shall pro^e a process (or

' urdnterrvpied delivery of leivlees In Ihe TrtmsRIon Ptan.

10.5 The Conlreelor shan estebtish a method ol notifyirig clients end oiher effected (nd'ividusis
about the ironslilon. The Contractor shall Indude the proposed commuNcaUons In Its
TronalUon Ran lubmtned to ihe State as aascrtbed above.

Renewal:

The Oepartmeni resarvea the right to extend this Agrcemertt for up to ivio (2) odditiort&l years,
contingent .upon lotisfectory de&very of servicas. available funding, agreement of the parlies end
approval of (ha Governor and Executive Council.

ExMbBC-l-Rf-tetomMSunStnlP'vitttan ConUvLtor bSQH*

oraNisris
CUO'OniiTn r»e» t cir



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-82FE39F98949

New Hampehire'Department of Health and Human 9erviee»
EahlbtlO

CERTIFICATION RECARPING DRUC^REE WORKPUCE REftmREMEWTS

I

The Coruractor identitod In Section V3 of the General Provtaiont agree* to complir with the provHlona of
Section* SiSt-St60 of (he Drug-Free WorTplace Act o> 1986 (Pub. L. 100-690. Tiiia V. Subthle 0:41
U.S.C. 701 et aeq.). end further egreei to have (he Contrector'a repre«entolrve, o* identified.ih SecOoni
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provision* execute thefoOowtng CcrtiTicetion:

ALTERNATIVE t - FOR ORANTEES OTHER THAN INOlVIOUALS

U3 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AORICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This eerUnceOon I* racpiltedby (he regulation* impNimnUng Secterti 5i6i-S160 ot (he Dnrg-Free
WotltplKe Act of 1966 (Pub.L. 100-690. TIDa V. 8ubtnaO;41 U.S.C. 701 eUeq.). The January 31.
i969rc9uU(ioiM were amended arMpubibhed ai Parti! of the May 35.1990 Federal Regbier (paoe*
21661-21691). arM require certiflcetion by grantees fand by (nfererice, sub-grantaaa and lub-
coniraciors). prior (o award, that they wd maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of (he
reguiaCion provide* (hat a grantee (and by inference, lub-granteei and sub-coniractor*) that 1* a State
may ieleei to make one cartiricaiion to (ho Oeparuneni h each federal fiicaf year in Oeuofcartlflcata* (or
each grant during (he federal fiscal year covered by iht certlftcailon. The ceniflcate set out beiow la a
material represantation el (act irpon vHttch retianca is piacad when ihe ogincy awards (he g'rani. False
certification or viotatleh of the certifldatiori-shau be grounds for euipenslon of poymems. auspensJon or
lerminaiiorr'oCgfDnts'.'or'govemrhcni wide suspension of debarmeni. Contractors using thb form'ehouid
sertdltio:

Commbsionet, " " "
- NH Oeportment of Heatlh end Human Services
129 Pleasant Sireai.
Concord. NH 03301-6505 ' •• •

1. Trtcoranieecertinesthol'ilwUlorwiacontlnuaioprovideodrug-freewqnipla'ca^.''
.1.1. Publbhing 0 alatemeni notifying employees lhat the unlawful manutacture/dbtrtbOtion.

diipenslrsg. possession or use of a corMroQed substance Is prohibited in the graniee't
vrortplace and ipecffyirrg ihe actions that wti be taken against emptoyeaa for notation of-such
prehibOien;

1.2. .Estabibhtng on ongoing drug-froe awareneu program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in (he vwrkptace;
1.2.2. The grsntae's poliey.of mainuilning s ftug-free workplace:
1.2.3.- Any available drug counielirtg. rahabflliailon. end employee aubtanca programs; end
1.2.4. The persailie* thai may be imposed upon employees for drug' obusa violations

occurring In (he worbptace:
1.3. Making H a requiremanlthsi each employee to be engaged in the performonceof (he groni be

given a copy of the statement required by pirograph (a);
1.4. Notifying (he employee in the iiaiemani requtrad by paragraph (a) (hat. as a condiilon of

emptoymant ursder the grant, the erhployea Mil
1.4.1. Abide by (he terms ot the statement and
1.4.2. Noiify the employer In writing of hb or her cor^vlcllon (or a violalion ol a criminal drug

slalute occurring In (ha workptace no later than frvt calarMar days aftar auch
conviction: >

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten catondar day* after racahring notice under
subparag/oph t .4.2 from an employee or ouierwiso receiving actual notice of-such conviction.
Employers of eanvlct.ed emptoyees mutt previda notice. Indudlrtg poitllon ilUe. to every grent
officer on «Hsose grant ectlvity.che convicted employee was vmriitng. unless (he Federal oger>cy

ejemflP-CenFUQBnrffOff^OnjQriw CenvscUr.UiSlit*
WempKe Rvsutrsmero

cuoewiwtii Peptiolf- Oet» l/IZ/IX
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Now Hompohiir* Ooporunoni or Hoilft and Human 8«nrico»
-  EihlbUD

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notic«s. Notice shaO tnctude tr>«
^WentWcBtlon number<s) of e#ci> eftected arant:

1.6. Toking one of the foOov^ actfofta. wtthin 30 calendar days of receMng notlco under
luoparaareph 1.4.2. ««4th respect to ony empioyee ̂ o is so convicted
1.6.1. TaUrtg eppropHate personnel action sgainat such on employee, up to end incfudtng

tennlnation. consistent wtih the reqUrements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1673. as
emended; or ' > '

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to pontcipite soUiractDrtiy In o drug abuse esslsience or
rehabntlatlon preqram eppfoved for luch purpotat by • PeOeroi. Slate, or local health,
law entomement, or ether opproprieta oger^cy;

1.7. Making a good fsim effort to eenitnue to mBimoin • drug-free workplace through
Implemernalion of porog/ophs i.i, i.2. i.3. i.s, t.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may injart in the space provided below the slte(s) for the pertonnonce of worn done in
connection wQh the specific grant.

Place of Performance (ttresi address, city, county, state, zip code) <iisl each lecstior^)

Check O If there ore workplaces on hie that ore not idenblled here.

Contractor Nome: iSI Rrwirch a Training Inullirtt. Inc d/br«
CommunltwHolih innlluw

y/i2/ii

Daip Name: lonMh*^
TlUe: Sc|teA«i

EtfM 0 • CartBtcjIlan oovdVie Ocvg Fraa CofOraOB) InTUOti,
wovsoea RMuSvmanta

Ortijm£«L
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Mew HBfnpehIre Oepaitment of Health and Human Servlcei
EthlbQE

CERTIFICATION RECAROINQ LOBBYING

The Cont/dClOf identifiefi ift Section 1.3 of Iha General Provljkini ogrcei to comply with the provatona of
Section 319 of Pu&llcl.aw10t-I2l. Government wide Gutdencefoi New ̂eithciioni on lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1332. endfwrthef •greeeiohavemeContfaetor'i fepreeenioiKe, eiWenlifled In Sections t.tt
end 1.12 of the^'Cenerel Pro^sbns ciecute the followtng C^llicellon:

US OEPARTMErvT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT Of AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Progroms (Indleete eppilcebte progrem covered):
'Temper^ Assistance to Needy FemSet under Tide IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Progrsm under Tide lV-0.
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'MediceW Program under Title XIX
'Commufltty Services Block Grent uf«Jer Tide VI
*Ch3d Care Oevclopmeni Block Grant under Title iv

TheunderslgnedcerUflcs. lo'ihabeitdrhlsorherknoMledgeendOelief. that; -

1. - No Federal appropriated funds hove been paid or wS. be paid by or on behoit of the understgnipd-. to
-■-'any. pe/aorvfpr Mluendng or ettempting to Influence en officer or employee of ony agency, a Member

of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in.
connectior^wlththeawardingofanyFedeieicontrecl. continuelioh. renewal, arnendmenior ■
modification of ony Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperatrve'agreemeni (and by specific mention

'  tub-grantee or tub-contractor).

3. . il any funds other than Federal approphtled fimds have been paid cv wU be pe'd.lo any peraon for
-influencirtg or anemptlng to influence on officer or-employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or emptoyae of Conpresi, or an tmptoyCt Of 0 l^ber of Congress In connecdo'n w4th this
Federal contract grant, loan. orcooperatNe ogreamont (and by specific mention sup-grantee.or sut>-
coniractor). the urtdersigned shall complete and auOmil Starvfard Form LLC. (Disclosure Ferm to
Report Lobby<r>g. In accordarKe <Mlh its instrucliont. altached and identiflad as Starvdard Eihlt^t E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall reculre that the language of this ceRiflcallon be included in the award . '
document for sub-owards at oD lien (indudlng subGoniracts. sub-gmnts. end contracts under grams,
loans, and cooperaiive 8g/eemer\!s) and that sD suO-recipients shaO certify end disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a msiertol representation of (act upan which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered inio. Submission ofthiscenjUcatton is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction knposed by SecBon 1332. Title 31 ..U.S. Code. Any peraon who foils to file the required
certification shaO be 8ub)ect to a clv9 perxafly of not less than f lO.OOO end not more than 3100.000 tor
each such failure.

Contrtctor Name; in (Umrch a Trtwrtf lAfiiivtr. inc. tf/br*
Cemmurtky H/tkh Iniihuie

9/12/IS

Oote Name: Ivnnlxn
TlUet lUikm*! D

CmbkE-CsntfiuSertRsfltrtfheiooeyeio Cam/voecmmtfi

p»p» 1 v 1' 0ns4^sri^ii
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New HsmpsMre Oepeflmem of Mteltti end Humen Bervkoe
Eihibnr

CEftTlFlCATtON REOPBOtWQ OEBARWENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

Tr^ CoAtmdor identified in Section 1.3 of me Genemi Provtilone sgreee to compfy wtm the provtsloni of
Exo^>vo Office of the Preetdent. Executive Order 12&49 end 4$ CFP Pen 76 regerding Deboment.
Suepenelcn, end Other Reeoontibibty Metten, and hrrmer ogreei to have the Contractor'e
repreeentetive. es IdentiAed in Sections t.tl end l.i2oftheOcoefei ProvisJona execute (hefoPowtng
CcrMAeelton;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
t. By eignb^g end eubmlRing tKN propoeel (eornrod). me prospecttve pfimary penieipem ta prov<dlr\g ine

ceitlftcotlon Ml out bdow.

2. The IrwbQty of e person to provide the certincetion rtgulred below wio not neccieerVy reiun in deniei
of pen'ctpetlon in ihU covered troneection. if neceuery. the prospective pariiclpent shall submit en
eKptpnelion of wtiy ■> cennei provide the ceniticeiloA.' The ccrtifleelion or explenetlon wiO be
considered in connection with the NH Oepertmen! of HeeRh end Humen Servtces' (OHHS)
detemtlnotlon whether to enter inio this behssetion. However, lelh/re of the prospective pfimery
perb'cipDni to furnish o ccrtiflceilon or en exptanstton sheD dlsqueltfy such persor> from pirticJpstlon Ir>
this tiensection.

3. The certlflcetion tn tfvs dsuse b o melerfal representetlon of fed upon wtvch rellanee-wes placed "
when OHHS determined to criler tnto this irenuctlen. If 0 b bter determined ihei th'e-prdspectfvtf
prtme/y partJdpam iuiowtngly rendered en erroneous certiflcelion. h addiiloolo other remedies "* •"
evailebte to the Federal Government, OHHS mey lermlhete thb trensaction for cause or defauQ.

4. The prospective primary peitlcipant shaO p/ovide Immediate wrtiten notice to the^HHS ogericy to
whom (his proposal (contnci) is submitted If ol anytime the prospective-pitm'ery partidp^ bams
thai Its ceitiflcalion was ehoneous when lubmiitad or has become erroneous by rebion of cho'nged
clrcumstonces. , * . '

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debemed.' 'susptnded.' 'ineligible.* 'lower tier covered
lrens'oction,*'pcrtfclparii.* 'person.' •prtmeiy covered Ironsoclton,' •pdncipel!"propoiel.* end
'volunieniy-exduded.* es'used in-lhis'ctause, have the meanings set out In the Defmibom ond
Coverage iMCtlons of the rules Impbmenilng Executive Order t2$49:4S CFR Pan 76. See
eiteched deftnWons.

6.' The prespedlve prlma/y perildpont ogrees by submRUrtg thb proposal (conboct) ihet. should me
propOMd covered irantacUon be entered into. Il shsO not knowtngly enter into any lovMr tier covered
trurruction with 0 pereon who is debaneo. suspended, decbred Inetgible. or vofuntaitly excluded
from perUdpalion (n this covered bansadbn. unbii authertzed by OHHS..

7. The prospective prtmary partblpant further ogrees ty submitting this proposal ihot A woi ir>clude the
clause tided 'CertAIcatlori Regerding Oeberrrtenl. Svspensbn, inellglblBry end Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tbr Covered Trensections.' provbed by OHHS. without modiflcation.'in aO lower tier covered -
transactbni end in all soQcliatlons for lower tier covered tronsactbns.

6. A partblpant in e covered trenieciion may rely upon o certtfbatton of o prospective pertidpani In o
lower tbr covered irensactlon mot it b' not debarred, auiperbed. Ineligible, or Invotuntartly exchrded
from the covered t/insaction. unbsi it knows thai me certlftcaiion Is erroneous. A pertbipant may
decide the method end frequency by whlc^n determines the cDgibirity of Ui prtncipals. Each
portbipDni may. but b not required to. check (he Nonprocurtmenl Ust (of excluded panleq).

\  •

9. Nothing contoined In the foregoing shafl be construed to reqvtre estoblishmeni of o system of records
tn order to render in good faim the certflcalion required by (his douse. The krwwiedge ond

Em&l f - Cs/dhCiOen RscwOrO PtMrmwe. SuipenHeo Cwvsoor mews \ C
A/dOOw/AtipwuJbOyMxnwv

PsBVlfiJ
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informstion of '■ participent« not roRuireO to exceed inei Math li normeSjr poimofd by e prydent
pereon in the ordineo' coutle of businets deeltnga.

10. Except for traAiecttona auihorUed under parsgreph 6 of theae inauueiiona, if e peitlcipant in o
covered trenaection knowtngty entem Into s lower tkr covered OBnaaction e pereon-^o ia
luapended. debarred, inallgibte. or voluntarily eidi^ed from penlclpatlon fri tNa trenaection. In
addition to other remedies evoiiable to the Federal jovernment. OHHS may terminate this irenaoctlon
for ceuae or default.

PRIMARY COVERS TRANSACTIONS
11. The proapoetJve prtmory pertldpant certlAea to ino beat of Ha knoMeOge or^ bcClef. thot it ond tia

pdndpeta: .
11.1. are not presently debarred, auaper^ded. proposed for deberment. dedered ineOgit)te. or

,  votvAteilly eictuded from covered t/ansacUoAS by any Federal depertment or oger^cy*.
11.2. have net within p three-yeor period preceding this proposal (contrect) been convicted of or hod

e civil JudgmeAt rendered against them for ccmmlsilon of fraud or e chminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performlnp a public (Federal. Stale or local)
transaction or a conueci under a public t/emaclion': violation of Faderal or-Slate antitniit

■  "statutai'or commission of embezzlement; (hsfl. forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
' --lecords. making fatsa slstefnents. or receMngstoien property;

11.3. ere not presentfy Indicted for otlwfwise crfmb\elly or dviity charged by a govemmerttat entity
(Federat, State or local) with commlsilon of any of the offenaae enumerated in peragrsph (i)(b)
of this certiDcation; and

11.4. have not wtthin a three-year period preceding thii'epplicatlon/propoioi had one or-more public
transactions (Federal, Slate Of local) lermineted for cause or defaun.'--- -

12. Wlwrc the prospccHve 'prlmary participant b unable lo certify to any of ̂ e statements in this
eertlflcetlon. such prospective pohlcipani shoD attach an expianaticm.to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and eubmiitfng mis lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 43 CFR Pert 70. certifiei lo the beet of hi knowledge ond belief thel h and ils principals;
13.1. ere riot presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarmeni. declared inetigible. Of

vobntarOy excluded from partic^atlon In this transacUon by any (ederol departmeni or agency.
13.2. where the prospecllvd lower tier partidpent li unable to certify to any of the above, such .

prospective pertlclpcnl shall ottach an explanation to this proposel (contract).

14. The prospective tower tier porticipaol ftxiher egrtet by submitting this proposal (contrect) thai h will
indude thb clause entitled 'CertlAcabon Regarding Debarmenl. Suspension. IneliglbUily. ond
Voluntary Exdusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaebens.* wUhout modiflcatlon in eS lower Her covered
transactions and in aO solicitations for lower tier covered transacUons.

Contn^oi Nenfie: J$| hfuiKh aTrslnlni lfuitiuic.tn<.4/b/«
Con«niiiAli,^CShh JniltlUlt

l/ll/ll

Date Neme:l«nt(h(ns
TISe: Hrpon

&Mb4 F-CanlAoeon Ragirehg OtbwmM. Swtpantign CanaMor MtUtt
Ana oowr rtnpowibciT Mtnm t/ii/ti

cuew«MiM) P«gst«ri
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CgftTlFlCATrOM Of COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINIHC TO

pgPgftAL NOHDiaCRlMIHATlON. EQUAL TREATfFEHT OF FAfTM-BASgP OROANIZATIONS AND
WMISTLEBLOWEW gROTECTIQMS

Ttw Coniroctor WeAiifled in Section 1.3 of l^• Gertenl Provisiont SQ'FF* ̂ 7 •Jgnature of the Controctofo
roprateniots^ 00 Uontinad In Section* t.tt end 1.12 of the Cenerel Proviiloni. to execute tAe foOowfnp
ceniflcaUon:

Convecter comply. onO «wlO reoul/o any cubgranlcet or iwbcontroeter* to comply; viflh any appileaoia
federal nondiacrirnlnatien raoulromenta, wti'eh may include-.

.  the Omnibut Cr^e Conboi end Sefe Sireete Act of IflSa (43 U.S.C. Sectiort 37690} wtticn proM&ite
reclpiente of federel funding under tMs auiiwlo from diicrfminotlng. eiVier In empfoymoni procilceo or in
the deOvery of KMcea or oerwfltB. on tfte bosia of roce. color. reOgion, neUonei origin, end act. The Act
require* certain recipient* to produce on Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

' tito JuvenOe'JutUce Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 6672(b)) wtiich edopts by
reference, tne civO right* obiigslion* of the Safe Streeu Act. Recipient* of federal funding under this
•teiule ore proMbited from ditcnminetSng. either In emptoyment practice* or b the detivery of service* or
berteflt*. on the beil* of roce. color. reGg^. rtallonel origin, end lei. The Act Include* Equel
Emptoyment Opportunity Plan requlrtmenii:

■ the Civil .Right* Act of (42 U.S.C. Section 20000. which prohibit* recipient* of fedprel ̂ rxiel
os*i*l3nu from diicrfrriliteiirig.ontlhe ba*l9 of rece, cotai. or naUonalongln in any program aVactivIty};
• the'RehebliUabcn Act c1 1973 (29-UiS'.C. Section 794). which prohibit* recipieni* of Federal rmendel
osilsfance from dlscdmlnatir^ on the basis of disobfllty, In regard to emptoyment end (he deOvery of
services or benerns, in any program or octwify;

.th«American*w4thOisa.bi!ilie*Acl.on990(42U.S.C.S*^ona1213V34).w!hichprohibil* ..
discrimination arid ensure* erqual opportunity for pcrions wlih diseblille* in employment. Sieta end locei
go^mmentiervices'. public eccom'inodailons.commerdarfedlHlet.'o^trenip^tip.n; . ,

• the Educetion Amendment* of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Section* teei. 1663.166S46). which prohibit*
diacrimination on the besi* of mx b federally asslsled. iducalion programs;

• (he Age Oitcrlmination Act of 1675 (42 U.S.C. Sectbcis 6106-07). which prohibit* discrfminalion on the
basil of age (h programs or octMUes recerving Federoiflnanclal aiilitance. U does not Include
employment dls^minalion:-

• 26 C.P.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Oepartmeni of Justice Regutstionf - OJJOP Grant Programs): 26 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - NondbccfmiAation: Equal Employmem Opportunity: Policies
ar>d Procodures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the taws for fafth-besed and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13SS9. which pro^Me fundamental principle* end poOcy-meklng
crilerie for parlr>erBhips with (ihh-besed end neighborhood organizations:

• 26 C.F.R. pi. 36 (U.S. Oepartmeni of Justice Regutaiions - Equel Treabneni for Foith-Based'
Organization*): and Whisliebiowcr protection* 41 u.S.C. }47i2 and The Notional Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.20l 3) the Pilot Pregram tor
Erihancemant of Contreci Employee WhliUebiower Prctectiana, which protects employtes ogeinst
reprisal for certain wttistle blowing eclMlie* in connection with federal grants end contracts.

The certificate sal out below is a material representation of fad upon which reiiarKe is placed vmen the
agency awards the grant. False cartiflcelfon or violation of ihe canificeUon ihaii be grourtd* for
suipentlon of payments, auspenslon or'teimlrxation of grants, or government wide suipei^fion or
debormenl.

ExMMiO
Conl/K1« l(eU|t»
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In the event e Fedemi or Slate court or Federal or Stale odmlniitretrve oge/Ky makea a of
dlscitmination after a due proeeta hearing on the grounda of race, cotor. religion, natlenat origin; or aei
ageinat e recipier^t of funds, the recipient wtll forward a copy of the finding to the Office for CMi Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division wilHn the Oeparlment of Health and Human Services, and
to the Oepartment of HeaHh end Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contraictor ioenlified in Sectton 1.3 of the General Provisions egree# by sigr^eture of ihe Contractor's
ivpreMntetive esideniiried in Sealons 1.11 end t.i3 cfthe Geneiel Provisions, to eiecuta the (otSowing
eeniilcetien:

>. By signing end submlning this proposal (eontraci) ne Coneector egrets to compry wtih the provliior^s
iftdJcetad ebove.

ConlrKlOf Nome; W' fe Tf»tnin| muiiuu. l«c d/Wi
nmunlir Hfklih (miIiuw

s/iiria

Date Name: Ism
Title: IU|teMi

€tMcr)0 '
Cenl/tOor WUsh

CwoeWK p CwWww ew ie»w^ • f we iwwWwwk le.* e r*-6we OiwtiS'
wu«h
•w

r;,v.. Fsg.2.13 osujiii^



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7B73B355-50E6-4270-BC63-B2FE39F98949

New Honofhire Pepsrtniont of Heelth end Humen Senrlcee
EthlbltH

CEftTlPtCATlQW ggQARPIMQ EMVIROMMENTAL TOBACCO_RI«?KE •

Public lew 103-227. Part C • Envlroftmento} Tebocco 5^e. otto known oi tho Pro-ChW«o Act ol 19W
(Act)..r«ou>rei tnot cmoklng not be permined tn ony ponioA el erty indoor feciCty owned or leaied or
conuacted tor by on entity end used routinely or regutody for the provieion el heolth; day coro. education,
or Bbrery lervlces to chOdren under the ege oM 8. U the lervlcet are fur^ded by Fedarol progrorne either
direcdy or through State or local govemmenti. by Fedciol grorti. corttroct, lean, or loan gueranlee. The
lew dee* rwi apply to ehidrcrt'B Mrvtca* provided In private reeideneee, laelitlet funded eolely by
Medleere or wedlceW lundi. ond pertloni ol raclities uted (or tnpatient dnrg or oicohol treatment. Failure
to comply w<th iha provltiane of the lew mey reeun in the impoeliioo ot e cMl monetery penalty or up to
$1000 per day end/or the Impeeltion of en admlnlstretlve compSence order en the reeponefbte entity.

The Contractor idcnUfied in Section 1.3 of Iho Gcnerei Provieione ogreei. by elgneiure of the Comrectore
rcprceenlalrve at Idenlifted m Section l.n and I.Uofihe General Proviebni. lo aiecula the foltowtng
caniTication:

1. By etgr^ng ond lubmltting mit contract, the Conirador egreei to make reaionabte efforie to comply^
with ail appflcabte provliiorit of-Pubt'c Law 103-227. Pen C. known as tho Pro-Children Act of 1694.

Contractor Namd: IS' RtKirtSATrtlnlnilruiltuic. Inc'd/b/t
ComnMnlidHnlih Innliuir

t/l2/ll

Qgic Name: lehaiiunprwi[i
TItta; iU|io«i 0

■<k(  CMbO H. CentfeefloA Reptrdhe Cencecterinaaa _ .
Em4re<vntniiTeeeoea^die .A,'

Cuovonmo P»ee 1 d 1 0»w
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HEALTH tNSURAWCE PORTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Comraclor identifred in SiKtion V3 of the General Provisions of the AgreenTent agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portabiliry and Accouniablllly Act. PuOIic lew 104-191 end
with the Standards .for Privecv Old Security of indjviduaDy idenUfieble Health Information. 45
CPR Peru 160 and 164 epplicaOte to business sssocletei. As defined herein. 'Business
Aasocieie* shell mean the Contractor end subcontractors end agente of (ha Contractor thol
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement amj 'Covered
Entity' shall mesn ihe State of New Hampshire. Dcpeitment of Health end Human Services.

(1] Dehnltlonn.

a. 'Breach' shell heve the seme meaning as tha term 'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code ol Federoi Regulations.

b. rSuKineas AfiSQCiate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations. -

c. 'Covert Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 ofTitje 45.
Code of Federal Regulationi. ' • . >

d. 'Desionatcd Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set*
m 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AoareQation' shall have'the sarrw meoring'es Ihe term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Cere Ooeratlons" shall have the seme meaning as the term 'health'cere operations*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501!

g. 'HITECH Act* means the HeaRh Information Technology for Econonrtic end Cllnicat Health
Act. TilleXlll. SubtiUa 0. Pen 1 6 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. *HIPAA* moans the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Lew
104-191 and lt>e Standards for Privacy end Security of Individually Idantlflebia Health
Information. 45'CFR Parts 160,162 end 164 end emendmonls thereto.

1. 'Indivtduar shell have the tame meaning as the term 'indivtduar in 45 CFR Sect'>on 160.103
end shall Include a person who qualifies as a personol representative in accordertce with 45
CFR SecdoA 164.S0t(g}.

). 'Prfvocv Rule' shell mean the Standards for Privacy of Individuetty Identifoble Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 end 164. proimilgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Oepertment of HeaRh and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Intofmatlon' shall have the seme meaning as the term 'protected health
information* in 45 CFR'Section 160.103. limited to the inlormaUon created or received by
Business Associate from or on behell of Covered Entity.

y»U Eitoni C«ra;KI«
Himnietnnce rerveoyAa
BvPofti AaMOlOAerMffWiK

Pi9»tite OBt »/n/u
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I. 'RgQuifod Ov Law' sHall have (he eame me<inl/>o e» the term 'required by law* in 45 CFR
Section 154.103. V .

m. •SecretBfv* ihell rneen the Secretary of the Oeperlment of Health end Human Servtcee or
hie/fter desionee.

n. 'Security Rule* shell meen the Security Sianderds (or the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Informetion ot 45 CFR Perl 154/Subpert C. and amendments thereto.

o. 'UnBgcuied Pfoteetnrf Henlth Intorffnatiof^* means protected heeHh information that Is not
secured by.e technoloov standard thet renders protected health informotlon unusobto.
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Indtviduals and is develo^d or endorsed by
a standards developing organixatlon that is accredited by the American Nationel Standards
Institute.

p. Qthar Definhlons - All,terms not otherwise defined herein shsU have the meanli^
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 150.162 and 104, as emsndsd from time to time, end the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Assoclots Use and Olactosurs of Prefectsd Hsahh InfofmaBow.

a. Business Associate shell not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Informetion (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement.' Further. Buiirtess Assoclale, Including but not limited to ell
Its directors, officers, employees and ogenis, shall not use; disclose' mainteirior tmnsmit
PHI in any mariner that wotrid constitute a violalion of the Privacy' end Securify'Rule.

b. . Business Associate may use or discJose PHI: '
I. For the proper management end admlnistreiionofthe Business Associate; .
II. As required by taw, pursuant loihe terms eel forth in paragraph d. belowi.or
III. For data aggregation purposes for ihe health care operations of Covered

Gnthy.

c. To the extent Business Assoctaie is permSied under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (I)

]  reasortable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentlaDy and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose tor vrhich It was
disdosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Buslnesa
Associale. in accordance with the HIPM Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentioiiry of the PHI. to the extent it has obtair^ed
knowledge of such broach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disdosura Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement. discJose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that il a required by law, without firel notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to Ihe disclosure and
to seeJi eppropriste relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busir>ess

4y}0i4 £jcHWi Comrtctor mnuii
. Hti'iMntvrtnea retibBrrAa

6suJnni AuodM AgrwnMnt
f
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AasQC>8le refrain from disclosInQ the PHI undl Covered Entity has eihauBled ad .
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Buslnees Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by eddHionat restrieltons over and jSbove those uses or disclosures or securtty
eafeguards of PHI pursuant to th'e Privacy orid Security Rule, the Business Associate
Shan be bound by such additional restrictions and shetl not discloso PHI ir> violaiion of
such aOditlonat resincUons and shell abide by ony eddlttonal security safeguards.

(3) Qbllgnttone and AcliylUee of Bualneep ApbpcIMQ.

e. The Business Associate shall notify theCovered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after tne eu8ir>e88^Associate becomes ewsre of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breeches of unsecured
protected health Information end/or any security 'mcidenl.thai may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. Tlw Busmes's Associela shall imrnedioiely perform a risk essessrnent when It becomes -
awaredf'any of ̂ e ebdve*^ situations.' The risk essessrnent shall include, bul not t>e
tiWtied'tb!"^ • . ..

''' b ' the'nalure and extent of the prolecled health information involved, includir>g the
types of identifiers er>d the'liketihood of ro-Mentifltotion;

-  0 The un'eulhorlieed person used (he protected health information or to whom the'
disclosure Was" made;

'o ■ iMtether the p^'olacted health inforihalion was actually eicquired'or viewed'
0 ' The extent (o| which the risk to the protected heafth lnforrriation has'been" "

mitigaled,. ' '

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment wHhin 46 hours of .the •'
breech and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In wrttlnQ to the*'
Covered Eniity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security ..end
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make oveilable ao of its internal policies end procedures, books
ar>d records relating to the use end disclosure of PHI received from, or creeled or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determlnir>9 Covered Entity's compliance wHh HIPAA end the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall rcguire all of its business associales thai receiva. use or have
Bccass to PHI under the Agreenvnt. to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions end conditions on the use end disclosure of PHI contolned herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
ehall be considered a diract third party beneOciary of the Conlracioris businass associate
egreernente with Contractor's intended business essocieles, who.will be receiving PHI

VMI4 Cxtftbl Canrvdor InUab

H»«8h UvmnoB fonibeztr Ad
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purtuant to iNs Agreement, wflh rights of enforcement ena tndemrtJflcatior^ from auch
business essocletes who ahen be govemed by etanderd Paregreph 013 of the atehderd
conlrDct piovialona (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use end disclosure of
protected health Infofmatkm.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a wrinen request from Covered Cntliy.
Business Asaodete aha!! make availeble during normal busineas r>oure at iia offieea all
reeorda. books, agreements, policies end procedures relating to the use end disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of erwbling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associaid'e comfMianee w<th trie terms of the Agreement.

g. Wdtiin ten (10) busmeas days ofrcceMnge written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access lo PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity. (6 on individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving o written truest from Covered Entity'tor on
amaridntent of PHI or a record about en IndMduBi contained in a Designated i^ecord
Sel, the Business Associate shad moke such PHI available to Covered Entity'for
amendment and (rKO^rate eny such amendment to'cnable Covered Enti^ 'to'fulfill Ita
obligations under4S CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Aosocialo shall docurr^nt such diacloaures of PHI and Information related to
such disclosures es ̂ uU be required forCoverM Entity to respond to a requesfOy on
individual for en occounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Sedion
164.528.'

j. Wi(hiri'teri'(lO)'bu'i'>ness,da^6 of receiving e written request from Covered Entity for'a
requisst'for'eri eccouhting of disclosures'of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entify such Information as Covered Entity mey require to fulfill Hs oUigetions
to pro'vide an accounting of disclosures win respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In (he event eny individual requests accesi to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Assxiate. the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fonvard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shaO have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, If forwarding the
individuare request to Covered Entity wouU ceuse Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate

, shall instead respond to the indrvidual's request as reqJred by such law ertd notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon »s procticable.

i. Within ten (10) business days of (ermlnaiion of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ell PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in conrtection with (he
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of euch PHI. if return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of (he PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Assxiate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to sxh PHI end limit further uies end disclosures of such PHI to those
pmpqses thai make ihe return or destruction tnfeasibie. for so long as Business

VJOH eawii cow/KWf waib
Htivt uowwio rwuousy Aa
OuilMIl AO'VWWW
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Asiociale maintalnB such PHI. If Coverod Entity. In He sole disc/etton, re<|uiree that the
' Buiinese Associate destroy eny pr all PHI. the Business Associate shell certify to
Covered Entity thet the PHI has been destroyed.

fd) Obligations of Covered Entity

0. Covotod Entity shod notify Busmeaa Aaaodele of any changes or limilolton(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in eccordance with 45 CPR Section
164.520. to the extent thet such change or limitetion may effect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PH I.

b. Covered Entity shell promptly notify 6usin«ss Asscclote of ony cHenges in, or revocation
Of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under thU Agreemeni. pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

e. Covered .entity shall promptly notify'Business Associate of any resthctions on the use or
disclosure of PHI met Covered Entity r>ea agreed to in eccordance wfth 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may effect Business Associate's use or disclosure of -
PHI.

.(5) Tefmlnatlon for Cause

fn addiUon to Paragraph tO of lhe slendare-terms end conditions (P-37) of thii
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immedieiely termineie the Agreement upon Covered
Entir/s knowledge of e breach by Business Associete of the Business Associeie
Agreenvnt set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immedietely
terminate the Agreernent or provide en opportunity tor Business Associate to cure the
eOeged breech within a timefreme specifted by Covered-Entity, if Covered Entity

. determines that neither termmaiion nor cure is feesible, Covered Entity shell report the
vidlation-to the Secretary.

(6) fXIscotlBneous

B. ... Oefinitions end Reoulatorv References. Allterms used, but not otherwise dafined herein,
shell heve the seme meaning as those terms in Vho Privacy er>d Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in me Agrecrriant. as emended to Include this Exhibil I. to
e Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means ihe Section as to effect or as
emended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity end Businest Associate agree to take such edion as is
necessary to emend Ihe Agreemeni. from tirT\e to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Pnvacy and
Security Rule, end applicable federal end itste lew.

c. Dala Ownership. The Business Assoc'iate ecknowledges that It has no ownership rights
-with respect to the phi provided by. or creeled on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. interDretatton. The parlies agree that any imbiguity in the Agreement shaD bo resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HiPAA. the Privacy end Security Rule:

y30\4 EjMMI C«nit*aar MOab
Kta-Vtbuvftti IwUMOjrAd
eu»k«li AQtwimni
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Seareoalion. If ony term or condKion of this Exhibit I or the epplrcotion thereof to any
pefSon(s] 01 circumstsnce i» hotd invefid. tuch invelidify thaU not affect other term or
corKfitiooa which can be given etfoci without the invalid term or condition; to thie'er>d the
terms and condiUons of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survivet. Provislona In (hie Exhibit I rogording the use end disclosure of PHI, return or •
destruction of PHI. exlensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense end indomnlTication provisions of section (3) e end Poregreph 13 of the
•tenderd terms and conditions (P-37}, she'D survive the tarmlnation of the Agreemani.

(SI JUvirth a T<»1aIa| Iftiihwtr. Inc S/V*
Cemmuniii Hiikii liuiligi«

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. Ihe parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

OepirVnen) of Hesih snd Hunnen Services

The State Name of

Signature of Authorized RepresentetNe d RepresentelrveSigneiu

loniilu/iSirWiln

Nome of AOTnorlzed RepreserMetive

Title of Authorized Represenielive

Date

Neme of Authorized Ropretentetive

Dlfiricw

TKie of. Authorized Representative

S/I2/1I

Dale

VIOl«
H««m inturiAC* rMisCb Ad
Bw»ln«W AM*d<a X4i«*«n»n|
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CgRTinCATlQN HEQAROINO THE FEDERAL PUNOINQ ACCQUHTABIUTY AND TRAMSPARgNCY

ACT fFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federsi Funding AccountsMlty end Tronspaienqr Aci (FFaTA} requlrea pdme awaidaet of indMtfuai
Fedofvi grants equel to graater then t2S.OOO end ewwded on of sflef October 1. 2010. to report on
deto rotated to eiecutive compensatlor> end aaaoetaied flrvt^er aud-g/ams of $25,000 or more, if the
initial award it batow $25,000 but aubaequent grant modifleaUona reaud (n e tote) ewrard equal to or over
$25,000, (he ewerd la awbjecl to the FFata reporting raqulrementa, os of the dale of the eword.
In accordance with 2 CFR Pen 170 <Reporting Subeward artd Ciecutlwe Cemponsation Infermallort). the
Oepahmant'of Hedith er^ Human Servleei (OHHS) mutt report the following inforrnation for any
aubaword or eontrect ewnord aubjeci to the FFATA repotlng requiramatxia:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of owmrd

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for corxtracts ICFOA program number for grants
5. Program aource
6. Award title .descriptive of the purpose of the fvrxdlng action
7. Location of the entity
fi. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS 0}
10. Total compenaatiorx and names of the top five executives If:

-  tO.t. More than 80% Of annual gross revenues art from the Fedaral government, and those
revenues ere greslerlhon $2SM anrxuaOy and '

.  tO.2. Compensation Information is nol already avdiable ihreugh reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant reciplerxta must submd FFATa required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, In which
the award or oward amendmani Is made.

The Contractor identified in Section t.3 of the General Provisions agraes to comply with Ihe provlitons of.
The Federal Funding Accovniability and TransparerKy Act. Public Law 109'282 end Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward end Ciacutlvt CompensoUon Information), and further agrees
lo have the Contractor's representsiive. as Ideniifietl in Sections t.ti and i.t2 of the Gerxerai Provisions
execute the follov^ng CertlfeaUon:
The below named Conbacior agrees to pmvide needed informetion as outlined above to ihe NH
Cepartmeni of Health ond Human Servlcai and to conipfy.wllh ell appUcable provisions of the Federal
Financial AocountabUiiy end Transparency Act.

ContrSCtOr Name: 'S' X'uirth a Trilninf Inillivu. Inc drb/i
rimuAlit>ICill>i Iniiliutr

7;ii/ia

Gate ' Neme: fom

Title: fUilenJoi

Emisa it - C»n>flc«0»A Ow FaOtnl Fi,n«n9 C«nv*OorlflftUli
AcceunUbOy And Traronwtnci AO (FFATA) Cempaarce

CwOwvtxno Ftp* 1^1 Oat*
4.
t/l2/lS
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Ai lha Contractor Mentlted in Saction V3 ofthaCaneral Provisions, i carilfy thai (ho reiporues to iho
below liaied quesBons ore tnie and accurate.

V The Ot/NS number for voui entity li:

Z. (n your buslnaaa or organisedon'a precadtng complotad fiaeal year, did your business or organUotion
receive (t 190 percent er more of your ennuel grosi revenue In U.S. federe) eonirscts. subcorttrects.
leant, grants, su^granu. and/or cooperative agreimerUi; and (2) $2b.OOO.(XiO or more In ormual
groit'fevamjet front U.S. tooaral eontracle. subeontracis. leans, granii. subgrants. artd/er
ceoperaiive agreennamsT

NO YES

if tne answer TO 02 above Is NO. Stop here

II the answer lo 02 obove Is YES. please answer the loOowing:

). Does the public have access lo information eboul the compensation el (he eiecutives in your
business or organlzotlon through periodic reports lUed under section l3(o) or 15(d) of (he Securities
EicMtnge Ad of 1934 (1S U.S.C.79m(a). 76o<d)) or section 9104 of (he Internal Revenue Code of
19897

NO YES

ff (r\a answmr to 83 above b YES, Stop here

If the answer to 03 above Is NO. please answer the foiiovdng:

The names and comperMation of the frve motl highly compensated officeri in your business or
orgenlaailon are as fouows;

Neme:

Name:

Name:.

Name:

Name:.

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:.

Amount:'

Amouni;

cuvwdnini)

CtfVoa j •' CsnihuUDA Ripscir^ the FaCmt FtftAtp
AccounUUDy Aod Traraptfwnc) Ad (FFAIA) Compeanca

P«9«3«f}
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DHHS intofmation Security Requlrementa

A. Definitions

The foOowlng lerms may be rerected end have the described meaning In this document:

1. 'Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthortxed disclosure,
unauthorized ecqutsition. unauinortzed access, or any simitar term referring to
sJtuaiione where persons other then authorized users end tor an other than
authorized purpoee have eccess or potential access lo personally tdeniiflable
Intormatioft. whether physical or electronic. With regard' to Protecied Health
Information. * Breach* shall have the sarrw meaning as the term 'Breach* in section
164.402 ol Tille 45. Code of Federal Regutaiions. .

2. *Computer Security Ir>ddent* shall ttave the same meaning 'Computer Security
.  Incident' In eeclion two (2> of NlST Publicstlon 600<6t. Computer Security tnddeni
Handling Guide. Nalionat Institute ol Standards end Technology. U.S.. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Infomtstior)* or 'Conridcntlal Data' meei^s aD'i^'hrHjontiei inforMbtidn '
disclosed by orie* party to the other such as all medicei. health, financial, pubtic
assistance beneHls and personal information including wtthout limitation. S.ubstance
Abuse Trcatme.rii Records, Case Records. .Proiecirt Health ■'info^
Personalty identinabla Informai'ion, . '

Confidential Inforrn'atron also Includes any end all infonriatibn'o^ed or "managed by.
ihe.Stote of NH- treated', received from or on twhaif of the.Qepaiftment of Heajih end
Human S.eryices (DHHS) or eccessed in the course .of performing M'ntrected
services '• ol v^ich colleclion. disclosure.' protection, and disposition is governed by
slate or federal law or regulation. This Information Includes, but is rtol (imited to
Pfoieded Heetm information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Periona) Financial
information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI). SxW Security Numbers (SSN).
Reyrpent Card industry (PCI), and or ether sensitive end confldertiiai Information.

4. 'End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contrector. contractor's employee,
business Bssxiate. subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivalive dale in accordance with the terms ol this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1998 end the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident' rrwans an act thai poienllaDy violatea en explicit or implied securtry policy,
which Irtciudas attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthortzed access lo e
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial ot service, the unauthorized use ol
a system lor the processing or storege ol date; end chariges to system hardware,
rirmwaro. or software characteristics without the owner's Knowledge. Instrvclior), or
consent. Incidents include the loss ot data through ihefl or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement ot hardcopy dxumonis. and misrouting of physical or electron'ic
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mail, all of vrtileh may have the potential to put (he data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, dtsctosure. modificaUon or destrvctioA.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' means any rwtwork or segment of a rietwork that is
not oesignared by the Staid of New Hampsnire'e Oepartmont or information
Technology or detagata as a protected network <designed. teated, and
opproved. by mearia of the Stale, to transmit) will bo considered an open
network and not od^uately eecure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFl,
PHI or conridentiai OHHS data.

8. 'Personal infonmalion' (or 'Pi') means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace en individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Kampshln) RSA 9S9-C;19. biometric records, etc.,
atone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a speclfc individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's molden

.na.me.etc.

0. 'Privacy Rule* shall nwan the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Irifomatlbn at 45 C.'P.R. Peris 160 and i$4. promu^ated under HIPAA by the United
States OeparimenI of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Hearth information' (or 'PHO.has the same meaning es providod'in''.the
definition of *Protected Health Inforrmtion* In (ha HIPAA'Prrvacy Rute'at'4S C.^.R.'§
160.103.' • ■ • • ••• • ■ ■

11. 'Security Rule* shall rnean the Security Standards for the Protection'Of-Electronic
Protected Health information at 45 C.F.R. Pari 164. Subpari C, end amendments
thereto.

12. *Vnsecured Protected Health Informaiion' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health infonmation
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals end Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is ecc/edited by
the American NationarSiandards Instiiuta.

I. RESPONSIBiUTIES OF OHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use end Ocsclosure of Confidenlial Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, mairitain or transmit Conndential Information
except as reasonabfy necessary as-outlined under this Conlract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agarits. musi not
use. disclose, maintain or iransmii PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Pr'tvacy ond Security Rule. '

2. The Contractor must not disclose eny Conridentiai Infcrmstion in response to a

Vi.LnivpMl 04.04.1019 EaMMK Cantrxctorliavo {
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request (or disclosure on the bash thai it is required by law. in response lo e
subpoena, etc.. without fust noltfying OHMS so that OHHS has en opportunity to
consoni or object to the disclosure.

3. If OHHS noiiftes (he Contractor lhai OHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictiona over and above those usos or disclosures or securtty safeguards of RHt
pursuant lo the Privocy end Security Ruta. the Contractor must be bour\d by su^
sddiilonal restrictions arvl mutt not dlscloso PHI In violallcri of such-additional
restrlctlent and must abide by any odditior>oi security safogusrds.

4. The Contractor agrees thai OHHS Data or derivaihre there from dhdosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

' 5. The Contractor agrees OHHS Date obiolncd under this Corttract may not be used for
arty other purposes that are not Indicated in this Cortrad

6. the Conirector agrees to grant acceis to the dale to the authorised representatives
of OHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm oompilance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. frtET^OS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

t. Appricat'loh 'Enc^ptiofl'. If End Ustr h transmitting "OHHS daia 'con'iaining
Confidential Daia'betwe'en appiicaiionj. the Contractor aiiaits the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber eecurlty and that said
appiicaiion'a encryption capabilities ensure aecure transmission via the internel.

2. Computer Disks end.Portable Slorage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable alorage devices, such as a Diumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHHS
data.

3; Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confldeniial Data if
email is er^crvoled and being sent to end being received by email addresses of
persons authorized lo tecelve such information.

4. Encryplad Web Site, if End^-User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSI encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as file Sharing Sites. End User may not use Hlo
hosting services, such as Dropboj or Google Cloud Storage, to trensmit
Confidential Oaia.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only ironsmii ConOdenijal Date vis corr//7ed ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when eeni to e name^ Individual.

7. Laptops end PDA. If Ervf User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must bo encrypted and password-protected.

6. Open Wireless Nelwort^s. End tJser may not transmit Confidential Data via en open
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wireless networt. End User must empioy a vinuai prtvaie network (VPN) when
remotely transmlttino via an open wireless network.

e. Remote User Commurvcation. if End User is employlr>g remote communicetion to
eccess or Irensmit Confidenttol Oeto. o virtue! private network (VPN) must bo
installed on the End User's mobile device<a) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accoGood.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). elso krtown as Secure File Transf^ Protocol. If
End User le empJoyirtg an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, Ertd User wU)
structure the Folder and access priviiegos to prevent Inappropriate disdosure of
informadon. SFTP folders artd sub-fctders used for irartsmitting Confidential Oats win
be coded for 24-hou/ auto-deielion cycle Cue. Cortfidemial Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. IMreless Devioes. If End User is tronsrrtnlng Confidertliel Data via wireless.devlces. all
data must be^encrypted (o.prevent irtapprophate disciosure of informaiion.'

m. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS '

The Conirectof wio only retain the data and any derivaiive of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After su^ time. the. Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the date end any
derivetrve In whaieyer form-it may exist.' unless, otherwise required law'or permitted
under this Contract. To this'end. the'parl'tes must:

A. Retention ''' •

t. The Contractor aQrees it win not store, transfer or process data cofieded In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This phystcal location requirement shad also apply in the imple.menteiion of
doud computing, doud service or cloud storage capebilitles. end includes beckup
data end Disaster Recovery localions.

2-. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabililies are in
piece 10 delect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems'
end/or Depertment confidential intormaiion for conirecior provided systems.

3. The Contractor egrees to provide securtty awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Departmenl confidenlidl Information.

4. The Conirector agrees to retain eo electronic and hard copies of Confidential Date
in a secure location and idenUfted in section iv. A.2

5. The Contrsctor agrees Conndemia) Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH oompiiani solution and oomply wiih all oppQcabie statutes end
regulations regarding the privacy and security, ad servers and devices must have
curreniiy-supported and hardened operating systems, the teiesl aniLviral. onii-
hacker, anii-spam. antl-sp^nvare. end entLmaiwve ut'ilHies. The environment, oa a
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whole, must have aggressive Inlruslon-detection artd flrewei) protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete coopefatlon with the Stale's
Chiet lr\formatlon Officer In the detection of srry secuftFy vyInerobUlty of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor wai maintain arty Confidential Information on its systems (or its
6uO<ontrector systems), the Contractor wiD maintain e documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termnation: end wiD

.  obtain writieri,certification for any Stale of New Hampshire data destroyed by tbe
Contractor or any sut>con(r8ctor8 as a pan of ongoing, emergency, ond or disaster
recovery operations. N^en rto longer In use. electronic media containing Stale of
New Ham'paNre data ehaii be rendered unrecoverable via a aacure wipe program
in ocsordanca wilh industry-accented standards for secure deletion and meqia
sanllizelion. or olhenvise physically dastroyng the 'rnedis' (for'-'example*.

'  degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 600-36, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitizalion. Naltorval inslilute of Standards and 'T^notpgy. U...S..
Depanmenl.of Commerce. The Contractor will docummt and cer^ (n.v^jUn'g'.al
' time of the data destKrdlon. and mID provide v^en cenlflcailon'to'the Oepormnr
upon request. The written certification win include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property desboyed and validated. Where.apprtcabie.
regutaiory end professional standards for retention requirements wtii be')otni)y
evaluated by the Slate and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othenvise-spedfied. within thirty (30)-deys of the termination of this
Contredl. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) daye of Ihe lerminallon of this
Contract. Contractor egrees to compleieiy destroy an electrontc Confidemiai Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wtping.

iV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received ur>der this Contract, and any
dertvatfve data or files, as follows:'

1. The Contractor will msinleln proper security controls lo protect Department
•confidential information coliecied. prxessed, managed, ondfor stored in the delivery
ofconiracied aervlces.

Z The Contractor will maintain potties end procedures to protect Oapartmoni
confideniiai inforrnation throughout the information Dfecycte. where eppiicabie, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage end secure destruction) regerdtess of the
media u.sed to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Conirectof will mainieiA eppropdate outhentlcalion end occesl controls to
contrBCtor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oapartment confidential Information
where eppBcabie.

4. The Controcior will ensure proper lecurlty monHonnp capabilities are In place to
delect potential, security events thsi con Impact State of NH systems and/or
Oepanment confidenlial Information for contractor provided systems. *

5. The Contrsctor will provide regular secvhry ewererress end oducetlon for its End
Users in support of proteclinq Oepartmenl confidential information.

6. if tf>e Contractor wHI be sub-conlrscting any core functions of the engegemenl
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contreclor wiD maintain a
program of 'an internal process or processes ihal defines specific security
expectalioni, end monitoring compiiance io security requirements that at e minimum
match those jot the Contractor, including breach hotrfcatlon requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Oepertmenl lo.sign end comply.wi,ih all. eppilcebie
Stale of New'Hampshir'e and .Department syttem eccess and eulh^aifon policies
and procedure^ systems a.ccess'forrns. end computer .use egroemenis ea peri .of
obtaining end maintaining access to ony Oepertme'nt'eystenrife). Agreements will be
completed end signed by the Contractor and any eppiiubie 8ub<ontractora prior to
system access being euthorized.

6; If Ihe Department determines the Cor>trector Is a Business Assodate. pursuant to .45.
CfR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business. Associate Agreernenl

I  (BAA) with the Department end is rsspcnsibte for maintaining compiiance with the
agreement.

d. The Contractor wfli work with the Deporimeni at its request to complete e System
Management'Survey. The purpose'of ihe.survey Is to enable the Department and
Contreclor to monitor for ar>y changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities thai may

.  occur over the life of the Contractor engagemeni The survey wOi' be combieted
annually, or en alternate .time frame et the Departments discretion with agreement by
the ConlrBclor, or tho Oepariment may request the sunrey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between ihs Department end (fto Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store. kr^owin(ly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
Of Oepartmen] data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obteined from the informelion Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of eny secuHiy breech Contractor sheti
make efforts to invoctigale the cauies of the breech, promptly take meesuros to
prevent future breach and minimise eny damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall r^over Item (he Contractor ai) costs of response and recovery from
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trie brea^. Including bul not Qmited lo: credit monllorir^ cervices. maiCng costs end
costs essodated with website end telephone ceit contor aenrioes necessary due to
the broach.

12. Ccntrocior must, comply with ad.oppitoabto'statutes end regulations regoroing the
privacy end security ol Confidential information, and must tn .^ei) other respects
malniatn the privacy and security of Pt end PHi ei a level and scope thai is not less-
then the level end scope of requirements epplicsbts to (edefa) agencies, including,
bul not Dmlled to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (9 U.S.C. $ 552b). OHMS
Privacy Ad Regulations (45 C.F.R. §$b). HlPAA Privacy end Security Rutes (45
C.F.R. Paris tSO end 164} that govern protections for individualTy idenuhabie healih
intormaiion end as appiicabia under Sieie law.

.13. Contrador agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect ihe conftdenliality of the Confidential Dale and to
prevent unauihorizod use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security-that is'not'iess itian iha level end scope of- security requirements
astabDsheid ̂  thb^State-of New Hampshire. Oepdriment-'of Information technotogy.
Refer to Vehdor ResouroesfProcuremeni at httpsi/Mnww.nh.g'ovfdoilArendor/indei.htm
for-.the. pepo/^ent of Info.rrnellon Technology-policies, guidelines, standards, end
procurement iriformalron relating to viendort.

14. Conlroclor ogrees' to maintain o documented breech rtotiftcelton and inddenl
response process. The Contreclof win nolity the. S.iate'o. Prtyecy OfTieqr.. and
additional enUil addresses proviided in thb .section, of any .security-bre^ wllhjn-tw'o
(2) hours of the lime that the Contractor le'erris of flo occurrehce. This Includes a
confidenilal Information breach, computer security Inddenl. or suspected breach
which affects or includes any Stale of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshue network. ^ ,

15. Conirecior must restrict- access lo tho Confidehiiai Data obtained under this
Contract to only those aulhoriiod End Users who need such OHHS Data to
perform their offldal duties in conneabn with purposes identifie'd in this Centred.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as .referenced in Sedlon IV A. above,
implemented to protect ConfUenilaJ information that Is furnbhed by OHMS
under ihis Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. oafeguard this Infarmalton 0! 09 times. '

& ensure that laptops and other electronic devicesfmedia containing PHI. Pi. a
PF1 are encrypted and passwotd-proteded. -

d. sand emails containing Confidential Informellon only H encrvoied and being
sent to end being received by email addresses of pereons authorized to
recerve such Information.
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e. Emit diedosure of (ho Conrtdeniia) informetion (o (he extern permitted by law.

t. Confidential Inlormetlon reoerved under (his Centred and Individually
idenUfieblo dots derived Irom OHHS Date, muet be stored in en area that is
physicaUy end lechnoioolcony secure from occess by unaulhorizod persons
during duty hours as well ei non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometrfc tdentlhers. etc.). *

g. only euthorized End Users may transmit lha Conndendal Oata, lr>duding any
derlvetlve files containing pervmaDy Identitabie Inrormatton, end in eo cases,
such data must be encrypted at ai) .times when-In t/onsil, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Oata must be maintained, used BrtO
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as daiormlrwd by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understartd that their user credenDats (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Ussrs will keep their c/edential information secure.
Thb applies lO'credeni'iats used to access the site direcdy or indirectly through
a third paiTy app&cation. r.-

Contractor is'responsible for oversight and complianice of (heir End Users. OHHS
reserves- the-.right-.to-cortduct onsiie inspections to-monitor compliance-with this
Conlrecl, including the privacy and security requiremenls .provided, in herein. HIPAA.
and (Mher'eppiicabi'e laws and Federal regulations until 'such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in acoprdartca whh' this Contract.

V. LOSSREPORTINC

The Cor)lroctor must notify (he State's Privacy Officer, Information Security OfTico end
Program Manager of any Security Incfdents end Breaches wfthin two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor teams of their oaurrenca.

The Contractor must further handle end repon Incidents end Breaches involving phi in
accordance with the agency's documented Incidenl Handling end Breach Notification
procedures and In accordanco virrth 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to, and
notwiihstar>dl>^. Contractor's complianeewtth ell applicable obligations end pfocadures.
Contractor's procedures must ebo address how the Contractor wiH;

1. Identify incidents;
2. Oetermine If persor^ally identifiabia information is invoNed in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and oonvone a core response group to determine (he risk level of Incidents
end determine rhk-t>esed responses to tncldenis; end
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5. Oetennine whether Breach nottficatien is required, end. if so, identify eppropriate
Breach nqtiTicetion methods, timing, source, and contents-from among different
options, orid boor costs essociated wlh the &eech notice as well as any mitigation
mesiures.

Incidents ar>d/or Breezes (hat Implicate Pi must be oddroesod end repcned. as
'' applicebte, in eccordonco.wHh NH RSA 3&a-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO COMTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Managemeni or Data Exchar>ga issues:

OHMSlrfofm8tionSecurityOfflce@dhhs.nh.gov

6. DHHS contacts for Privacy Issues:

DHH$Pr1vBcyOfflcer@dhh8.nh.gov

C. OHHS contact for Information Security issues:

OHHStnformatlonSecur1iyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

0. OHMS contact for Breach notificalions:

OHHSInformalionSecurltyOfflce@<Pths.nh.gov

0HHSPrivacy.0fficer@dhh8.nh.gov

4V«. LM( vpdtU Or.O*.mS EcMSnX ConmctO'MOlti
CKKS (nformaitoA

.  SMXthrRMWvnwttt

pvgaim t^uyrimi


